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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K

(Mark One)
| ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
or
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the Transition Period From to
Commission File Number 001-13357
Royal Gold, Inc.
(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in Its Chaer)
Delaware 84-0835164
(State or Other Jurisdiction (I.R.S. Employer
of Incorporation or Organization) Identification No.)
1660 Wynkoop Street, Suite 100
Denver, Colorado 80202
(Address of Principal Executive Offices’ (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code(303) 573-1660

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dlfie Act:

Title of Each Clas Name of Each Exchange on Which Registe
Common stock, $0.01 par val NASDAQ Global Select Marke

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) tie Act:
None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405ed8dturities Act. YeE] NoM

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuiegd to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®ecl5(d) of the Exchange Act.
YesO NoM

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant éb filed all reports required to be filed by Seeti® or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for sslobrter period that the registrant was requirefildsuch reports), and (2) has been subject
to such filing requirements for the past 90 dayss™ NoO

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquigletrs pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K i¢ oontained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge]éfinitive proxy or information statements incorated by reference in Part Il of this
Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10EK.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlexge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, maccelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of “large acceleréited” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reportirgpmpany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filé Accelerated fileld Non-accelerated fileldl Smaller reporting compariy
(Do not check if a smaller reporting compe

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantseell company (as defined in Rule -2 of the Exchange Act). Y¢O NoM



Aggregate market value of the voting stock heldhbg-affiliates of the registrant, based upon tlsiclg sale price of Royal Gold on
December 31, 2007, as reported on the NASDAQ GI8k#ct Market was $811.7 million. As of August 20808, there were 33,926,495
shares of the registrant's common stock, $0.0pkue, issued and outstanding.
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This document (including information incorporategtéin by reference) contains “forward-looking staents” within the meaning of

Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and @@L E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, winicolve a degree of risk and uncertai

due to various factors affecting Royal Gold, Inedats subsidiaries. For a discussion of some e$éifactors, see the discussion in Item 1A,
Risk Factors, of this report. In addition, please $ur note about forwa-looking statements included in Item 7, Managensebiscussion an

Analysis of Consolidated Financial Condition andsBRes of Operations'MD&A”), of this report.

PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
General

Royal Gold, Inc. (“Royal Gold”, the “Company”, “wg"us”, or “our”), together with its subsidiaries, is engaged in th&ress of acquiring a
managing precious metals royalties. Royalties assige (non-operating) interests in mining projélctd provide the right to revenue or
production from the project after deducting specifcosts, if any.

We seek to acquire existing royalties or to finapagects that are in production or near productipexchange for royalty interests. We also
fund exploration on properties thought to contaiecppus metals and seek to obtain royalties anerathrried ownership interests in such
properties through the subsequent transfer of tipgranterests to other mining companies. Subsadiptall of our revenues are and will be
expected to be derived from royalty interests. Wadt conduct mining operations at this time. Dgrihe 2008 fiscal year, we focused on the
management of our existing royalty interests, ttrussition of royalty interests through asset aoporate transactions, and the creation of
royalty interests through financing and strategigleration alliances.

As discussed in further detail throughout this repgome significant developments to our businesing fiscal year 2008 were as follows:
(1) Our royalty revenues increased 43% to $69.4 millcmmpared with $48.4 million during fiscal yeai0Z0

(2) High River Gold Mines Ltd. (“High Riveryaanmenced production at the Taparko mine, whichlredin approximately $7.4 million
in additional royalty revenue to the Company duting fiscal year

(3) We completed the acquisition of Battle Mountain @&sBkploration Corp.“Battle Mountai”). As part of the acquisition, we acquir
thirteen royalty interests in various stages ofipiadion, development or exploration. The acquirattlB Mountain producing royalty
interests contributed approximately $2.8 millioraniditional royalty revenue to the Company durimgfiscal year

(4) In addition to the royalties acquired as part @f Battle Mountain acquisition, we acquired thedwading royalties during our fiscal ye
2008:

* A 2.0% net smelter retur’”NSR") royalty on the Marigold mine, located on the BaMleuntair-Eureka trend in Nevada, a
operated by Goldcorp Inc*Goldcory’);

. A 2.0-4.0% sliding-scale NSR royalty and a 101086 profits interest (“NPI1”) royalty on the El Crete mine, located in
Sonora, Mexico, and operated by Capital Gold, (“Capital Gol("); and

1
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. A 1.5% NSR royalty on gold produced from the Beasncession in the Western Region of the Republi@tudna, Wes
Africa, and controlled by Golden Star Resources [“Golden Ste”).

(5) In November 2007, we completed an offenfd,150,000 shares of 7.25% mandatory converfildéerred stock (“Preferred Stock”),
resulting in net proceeds to us of approximately1$1 million. In March 2008, we converted all oétissued and outstanding share
the Preferred Stock into 3,977,683 shares of oomaon stock in connection with the conversion ofmeferred Stock

(6) We repurchased 196,986 shares of our constumk pursuant to an authorized share repurchagggm for a total cost of
approximately $5.5 million; an

(7) We increased our calendar year dividend to $0.2®&asic share, which is paid in quarterly instatisethroughout calendar 2008. T
represents an 8% increase compared with the didideid during calendar year 20(

Recent Developments
Agreement to acquire Barrick Gold Corporation raygbortfolio

On July 30, 2008, we entered into a definitive agrent to acquire a portfolio of royalties from BekrGold Corporation (“Barrick”) in
exchange for net cash consideration of $150 milliod a restructuring of certain Royal Gold royglogitions at the Cortez Pipeline Mining
Complex (“Cortez”)which is operated by Barrick. The Barrick royaltyrifolio consists of royalties on 77 propertiegliding eight producin
royalties, 2 development stage royalties and 6Toeafion stage royalties. Eighteen of the explamstage projects are considered to be in an
evaluation stage as these properties are engagled gearch for reserves but currently containtewidil mineralized material. Over 75% of the
portfolio consists of precious metals royaltiese rurchase price for the acquisition will be pa@hf cash on hand at closing. The acquisitit
subject to customary closing conditions and is etgukto close on October 1, 2008. Please refdeto ¥, MD&A, within this report for a
further discussion of this transaction.

Certain Defined Terms
The Company’s royalty portfolio contains severdladient types of royalties, which are defined dfos:

Royalt— the right to receive a percentage or other denadiimaf mineral production from a resource extractoperation.

Gross Smelter Return (“GSR”) Royaltya-defined percentage of the gross revenue froraairee extraction operation, less, if applicable,
certain contract-defined costs paid by or chargeti¢ operator.

Net Smelter Returr*'NSR”) Royalty—a defined percentage of the gross revenue froraairee extraction operation, less a proportioniadee
of incidental transportation, insurance, refinimgl amelting costs.

Net Value Royalty'NVR")— a defined percentage of the gross revenue froraauree extraction operation, less certain contatired
transportation costs, milling costs and taxes.

Net Profits Interest Royalty'NPI"}— a defined percentage of the gross revenue froraauree extraction operation, after recovery ofaiert
contract-defined pre-production costs, and afteiludgon of certain contract-defined mining, millingrocessing, transportation, administrative,
marketing and other costs.
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Our Producing Royalty Interests

Our producing royalty interests are shown in tHefang table. Please see Item 2, Properties, isfrigport for further discussion on our
principal producing royalty interests.

Royalty
Mine Location Operator (Gold unless otherwise stated)
Cortez Nevada, US/ Barrick GSR1: 0.40%-5.0% sliding- scale GSR

GSR2W): 0.72%-9.0% slidingscale GSI
GSR3®: 0.71% GSR
NVR1 @D: 0.39% NVR

Robinson Nevada, US/ Quadra Mining Ltd. 3.0% NSR (copper, gold, silver,
(“Quadr) molybdenum’
Taparko@ Burkina Faso, West High River 15% GSR (TB-GSR1) and a
Africa 0%-10% sliding-scale GSR
(TB-GSR2)
Leeville Mining Comple» Nevada, US/ Newmont Mining 1.8% NSR
(Leeville North and Leeville South) Corporation
(“Newmon”)
Goldstrike-SJ Claims Nevada, US/ Barrick 0.9% NSR
Troy ® Montana, USA Revett Minerals, Inc 7.0% GSR (silver and coppe
(“Revet”)
Bald Mountain Nevada, US# Barrick 1.75%-3.5% slidin¢-scale NSF
Mulatos®) Sonora, Mexict Alamos Gold, Inc 0.30%-1.5% slidin¢-scale NSF
(“Alamos™)
El Chanate® Sonora, Mexicc Capital Gold 2.0%-4.0% slidin¢-scale NSR; 10.0% N
Martha Santa Cruz Coeur d’Alene Mines 2.0% NSR (silver)
Province, Argentina Corporation
(“Coeur ¢ Alene”)
Don Mario-Lower Mineralized Zoné&) Chiquitos Province, Orvana Minerals Corp.  3.0% NSR (gold, silver and copper)
Bolivia (“Orvan?’)
Williams ©® Ontario, Canad Barrick (50%) anc 0.72% NSF

Teck Cominco
Limited (50%)

Pefiasquito (oxide(™ Zacatecas, Mexic Goldcorp 2.0% NSR (gold and silve

El Limon ®) El Limon, Nicaragus Central Sun Mining, Inc  3.0% NSR
(“Central Sun”) (95%)
and Inversiones Mineras
S.A. (“Inversiones”)
(5%)

@ Upon the consummation of the royalty acquisiti@ngaction between Royal Gold and Barrick, GSR2helleduced to match the roy:
rate of GSR1 and the portion of the GSR3 and NMi/Alties on the mining claims that comprise theausdbped Crossroads deposit at
Cortez will be eliminated. The NVR1 royalty is 3% NVR royalty. The Company owns 31.6% of the %29VR (or 0.39%), while
our consolidated minority interest owns the renmragrnportion of the 1.25% NVR royalt

@ TB-GSR1 will remain in effect until cumulativeqatuction of 804,420 ounces of gold is achievedntil stumulative payments of
$35 million have been made to Royal Gold, whicheaaurs first. TEFGSR2 will remain in effect unt
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the termination of TB-GSR1. As of June 30, 2008 have recognized approximately $4.7 milliomagalty revenue associated with TB-
GSR1, which is attributable to cumulative productad 36,078 ounces of gold. Portions of our royaitgrests at the Taparko mine are
classified as development stage and exploratiayesta shown belov

®  Royalty will extend until either cumulative prodiset of approximately 9.9 million ounces of silverda84.7 million pounds of copper,
we receive $10.5 million in cumulative paymentsjaklever occurs first. As of June 30, 2008, we h@eegnized royalty revenue
associated with the GSR royalty totaling $8.0 moilliwhich is attributable to cumulative productmrapproximately 3.2 million ounces
of silver and approximately 33.0 million poundscopper.

@ Royalty is capped at 2.0 million gold ounces ofduction. Approximately 248,000 cumulative ouncegalfl have been produced as
June 30, 200¢

() Acquired on February 20, 2008. Please refer to ReMD&A, for further discussion on these royaltygaisitions.

®  Acquired on October 24, 2007, as part of the adtipisof Battle Mountain. Please refer to Item 7DRIA, for a further discussion on tt
acquisition of Battle Mountair

(M The Pefiasquito project consists of oxide and suffiartions. The sulfide portion is classified asedlepment stage as shown belc

Our Development Stage Royalty Interests

We also own the following royalty interests that aurrently in development stage and are not yptaduction. Please see Item 2, Properties,
of this report for further discussion on our prpedidevelopment stage royalty interests.

Royalty

Mine Location Operator (Gold unless otherwise stated)
Pefiasquito (sulfide Zacatecas, Mexico Goldcorp 2.0% NSR (gold, silver, lead and zinc)
circuit)
Dolores® Chihuahua, Mexic: Minefinders 1.25% NSF

Corporation, Ltd. 2.0% NSR (gold and silver)

(“Minefinder<")
Taparka Burkina Faso, Wes High River 2.0% GSR (TI-GSR3)

Africa
Pascua-Lama Region llI, Chile Barrick 0.16%-1.08% sliding-scale NSR
0.22% fixed rate royalty (coppe

Gold Hill Nevada, US# Kinross Gold 1.0%-2.0% slidin¢-scale NSF

Corporation

(“Kinross”) (50%),

Barrick (50%)
Troy Montana, USA Revett 6.1% GSR

2.0% GSF

Don Mari—Upper Chiquitos Province Orvana 3.0% NSR
Mineralized Zone®) Bolivia
Marigold @ Nevada, USA Goldcorp 2.0% NSR
Benso®) Republic of Ghana, West  Golden Star Resources 1.5% NSR

Africa

Ltd. (“Golden Ste")

(1) Acquired on October 24, 2007, as part of the adipnsof Battle Mountain. Please refer to Item 7DBIA, for a further discussion on tt
acquisition of Battle Mountair

(@ Acquired on February 20, 2008. Please refer to ReMD&A, for a further discussion on this royalgquisition.
®  Acquired on December 7, 2007. Please refer to ReMD&A, for a further discussion on this royaltgauisition.
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Our Exploration Stage Royalty Interests

In addition, we own royalty interests in the folloy exploration stage projects. None of these eafilon stage projects contains proven and
probable reserves as of December 31, 2007. Pleaséesn 2, Properties, of this report for furthexcdssion regarding recent developments at
some of our exploration stage royalty interests.

Property Location Royalty Owned or Controlled By
Santa Cruz Provinc Santa Cru: 2.0% NSR Hidefield Gold PLC
Province, Argentini

Night Hawk Lake® Ontario, Canada 2.5% NSR Selkirk Metals Corporation (“Selkirk”) (40%),
East West Resource Corporation (“East West”)
(40%), Trillium North Minerals (20%

Follansbee«® Ontario, Canad 2.0% NSR Goldcorp (51%), Premier Gold (49¢

Joe Manr{t) Quebec, Canada 1.8% to 3.6% sliding-scale  Gold Bullion Development Corp.

NSR; and 2.0% NSI (“Gold Bullion™)
Taparkao Burkina Faso, Wes 0.75% milling fee royalty High River

Seguenega (“Sega®
Marmato Propertie()

Kettukuusikko
Vueltas del Ric®
Lluvia de Oro(®)

Nieves

San Jeronim
Long Valley
Rock Creel
Mule Canyor
Buckhorn Soutt
Ferris/Cooks Cree
Horse Mountair
Simon Creel
Rye

BSC

ICBM

Long Peal
Dixie Flats
Relief Canyor®

Fletcher Junctioft)

Hot Pot()
Svetloye

La India®

Africa

Burkina Faso, West
Africa

Marmato District,
Colombia

Lapland, Finlanc
Western Hondura

Sonora, Mexico

Zacatecas, Mexic
Zacatecas, Mexic
California, USA
Montana, USA
Nevada, US#
Nevada, US#
Nevada, US#
Nevada, US#
Nevada, US#
Nevada, US#
Nevada, US#
Nevada, US#
Nevada, US#
Nevada, US#
Nevada, US#
Nevada, USA

Nevada, US/

Khabarovsk Regior
Russia

Nicarague

(TB-MR1)
3.0% NSR

5.0% NSR

2.0% NSR
2.0% NSR
4.0% NSR

2.0% NSR
2.0% NSR
1.0% NSR
1.0% NSR
5.0% NSR
16.5% NPI
1.5% NVR
0.25% NVR
1.0% NSR
0.5% NSR
2.5% NSR
0.75% NSFk
0.75% NSFk
0.75% NSFk
4.0% NSR
1.25% NSR

1.25% NSk
1.0% NSR

3% NSR

Orezone Resources Inc. (“Orezone”)
Mineros Nacionales S.A“Minero<”)

Taranis Resources, In¢“Tarani¢”)
Lundin Mining Corporation“Lundin”™)

Columbia Metals Corporation Ltd. (“Columbia
Metals")

Quaterra Resources Ir

Goldcorp

Vista Gold Corporatiol

Revett Minerals

Newmont

Barrick

Barrick

Barrick

Barrick

Barrick

Us Gold

BH Minerals USA, Inc.“BH Mineral<")
BH Minerals

BH Minerals

Firstgold Incorporatec”Firstgolc”)

Nevada Exploration Inc“Nevada
Exploratior”)

Nevada Exploratiol

Fortress Minerals Corporatic

Central Sun Mining

@ Acquired on October 24, 2007, as part of the mitipn of Battle Mountain. Please refer to ItemVID&A, for a further discussion on the
acquisition of Battle Mountair



(@  Acquired on May 200¢
(®  Right to convert equity in Revett Minerals into% NSR royalty on the projec
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Our Operational Information

Financial Information about Geographic Areas

Royal Gold’s royalty revenue and long-lived asgeigalty interests in mineral properties, net) geegraphically distributed as shown in the
following table. Please refer to Item 2, Propertfes further discussion on our significant royaltyerests on producing mineral properties.

Royalty Royalty Interests il
Revenue Mineral Properties, ne
2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006

United State: 80% 97% 98% 18% 25% 69%
Mexico 4% 2% 1% 55% 49% 9%
Africa (D) 11% — — 12% 16% 22%
Chile — — — 7% 10% —
Other® 5% 1% 1% 8% — —

(M Consists of royalties on properties in Burkinad-and the Republic of Ghana. Royalty revenue stiswtiributable to revenues from our
royalties in Burkina Fas«

@  The “Other” category for “Royalty revenue” cortsisf revenue from Argentina, Bolivia (2008 onl§Zanada (2008 only) and Nicaragua
(2008 only). The “Other” category for “Royalty Imésts in Mineral Properties, net” for 2008 considtassets in Bolivia, Canada,
Colombia, Honduras and Nicarag!

Our financial results are discussed in Part Imltg, MD&A, and within our audited consolidated firtéal statements are included in Part 11,
Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary.Déia risks associated with the operations of otgifin royalty interests are discussed in
Part 1A, Risk Factors. In fiscal 2008, we generats@lty revenues of $25.1 million and $16.6 miilisom Cortez and Robinson, respectively,
representing 36% and 24%, respectively, of oul tolglty revenue. In fiscal 2007, we generatedaftyyrevenues of $21.5 million and

$12.6 million from Cortez and Robinson, respectivetpresenting 44% and 26%, respectively, of otal royalty revenue.

Competition

The mining industry in general and the royalty segtrin particular are intensely competitive. We pate with other royalty companies, mine
operators and financial buyers in efforts to aageiisting royalties and with the lenders and itasproviding debt and equity financing to
operators of mineral properties in our efforts teate new royalties. Many of our competitors inldraing and mining business are larger than
we are and have greater access to capital tharavwee Key competitive factors in the royalty acqigsi and financing business include price,
structure and access to capital.

Regulation

Like all mining operations in the United States tiperators of the mines that are subject to oualties must comply with environmental laws
and regulations promulgated by federal, state acal lgovernments including, but not limited to, t&ional Environmental Policy Act; the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensatidh iability Act; the Clean Air Act; the Clean WatAct; the Hazardous Materials
Transportation Act; and the Toxic Substances Coitca Mines located on public lands are subjedhi® General Mining Law of 1872 and i
subject to comprehensive regulation by either thidd States Bureau of Land Management (an ageitye dJnited States Department of the
Interior) or the United States Forest Service @enay of the United States Department of AgricélfuThe mines also are subject to
regulations of the United States Environmental &tidn Agency (“EPA”), the United States Mine Sgfahd Health Administration and
similar state and local agencies. Operators of snihat are subject to our royalties in other caastare obligated to comply with similar laws
and
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regulations in those jurisdictions. Although we aog responsible as a royalty owner for ensuringm@ance with these regulations, failure by
the operators of the mines on which we have r@th comply with applicable laws, regulations padnits can result in injunctive action,
damages and civil and criminal penalties on theatpes which could reduce production from the miaed thereby reduce the royalties we
receive and negatively affect our financial coruiti

Corporate Information

We were incorporated under the laws of the Stai@eddiware on January 5, 1981. Our executive offiwedocated at 1660 Wynkoop Street,
Suite 1000, Denver, Colorado 80202, (303) 573-1660.

Available Information

Royal Gold maintains an internet website at wwwatggld.com. Royal Gold makes available, free ofrghathrough the Investor Relations
section of the web site, its Annual Reports on F&0¥K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Repon Form 8-K, and all amendments
to those reports, as soon as reasonably practiaftlesuch material is electronically filed withetSecurities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC"). Our SEC filings are available from the SEGternet site at www.sec.gov which contains ré&pgroxy and information statements
and other information regarding issuers that fieze®onically. These reports, proxy statementsahdr information may also be inspected and
copied at the public reference facilities maintditg the SEC at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, R0549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-
0330 for further information on the operation of fpublic reference facilities. Royal Gaddtharters of key committees of its Board of Dioes
and its Code of Business Conduct and Ethics aceaalsilable on the Company’s website. Any of the@wing information is available in print
to any stockholder who requests it by contactingdR@old’s Investor Relations Department at 303-2880.

Company Personnel

We currently have 16 employees, all of whom arated in Denver, Colorado. Our employees are ngesuto a labor contract or a collective
bargaining agreement. We consider our employeégrtato be good.

Consulting services, relating primarily to geologitd geophysical interpretations and also relatrguch metallurgical, engineering, and other
technical matters as may be deemed useful in teetpn of our business, are primarily providedridependent contractors.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

An investment in our common stock involves a hagrek of risk. You should carefully consider tis&sidescribed below before making
investment decision. Our business, financial céowlitresults of operations and cash flows couldrtzerially adversely affected by any of
these risks. The market or trading price of ournusiies could decline due to any of these riskaaddition, please see our note about forward-
looking statements included in Part II, Item 7, MBgof this Annual Report on Form 10-K . Please rib&t additional risks not presently
known to us or that we currently deem immateriay rakso impair our business and operations.

7
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Risks Related to Our Business

We received a majority of our revenues in fiscary2008 from two properties.

In fiscal year 2008, approximately 36% and 24% wfr@venues were derived from our royalties at €oand the Robinson mine, respectiv
compared to approximately 44% and 26% in fiscal Y887, respectively. We expect that revenue fromroyalties at Cortez and Robinson
will continue to be a significant, though less doanit, contributor to our revenue in future peridelsithermore, as Cortez and other mines on
which we have royalties mature, like SJ Claimscae expect overall declines in production oventbars unless operators are able to replace
reserves that are mined by mine expansion or ssitdesew exploration. There can be no assurandeatibaoperators of Cortez, SJ Claims or
the other properties will be able to maintain ar@ase production or replace reserves as theyiasgim

We own passive interests in mining properties, iirsddifficult or impossible for us to ensure pespies are operated in our best interest.

All of our current revenue is derived from royadtien properties operated by third parties. Thedradd a royalty interest typically has no
authority regarding development or operation ofiaaral property. Therefore, we are not in contfdbasic decisions regarding developmer
operation of any of the properties in which we haldyalty interest, and we have limited or no legghts to influence those decisions.

Our strategy of having others operate propertiaghiith we retain a royalty or other passive intepegs us generally at risk to the decisions of
others regarding all basic operating matters, tlioly permitting, feasibility analysis, mine desimd operation, processing, plant and
equipment matters and temporary or permanent ssgpeaf operations, among others. These decisi@ysh®a motivated by the best interests
of the operator rather than to maximize royaltidghough we attempt to secure contractual righ thill permit us to protect our interests,
there can be no assurance that such rights willydvbe available or sufficient, or that our effarifi be successful in achieving timely or
favorable results or in affecting the operationghef properties in which we have royalty interéstways that would be beneficial to our
stockholders.

Volatility in gold, copper and other metal priceayrhave an adverse impact on the value of our tpyterests and reduce our royalty
revenues.

The profitability of our royalty interests and eagtion properties is directly related to the magkéce of gold and, to a lesser degree, copper
and other metal prices. The market price of eactalnflactuates widely and is affected by numeractdrs beyond the control of any mining
company. These factors include metal supply, intalsind jewelry fabrication and investment demangectations with respect to the rate of
inflation, the relative strength of the U.S. doléard other currencies, interest rates, gold salddaans by central banks, forward sales by metal
producers, global or regional political, economidanking crises, and a number of other factorthdfmarket price of gold, copper or certain
other metals, should drop, our royalty revenueslevalso drop. Our sliding-scale royalties at Corfeaparko and other properties amplifies
this. When the gold price falls below the stepthimsliding-scale royalty, we receive a lower réyahte on production. In addition, if gold,
copper and certain other metal prices drop dramatiove might not be able to recover our investhiemoyalty interests or properties. The
selection of a royalty investment or of a propdatyexploration or development, the determinatimanstruct a mine and place it into
production, and the dedication of funds necessagchieve such purposes are decisions that musatle long before the first revenues from
production will be received. Price fluctuationsveeén the time that decisions about explorationeigmment and construction are made an
commencement of production can have a materialradwedfect on the economics of a mine, and canirgdita or have a material adverse
impact on the value of royalty interests.
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The volatility in gold prices is illustrated by tifi@lowing table, which sets forth, for the periddslicated (calendar year), the high and low
prices in U.S. dollars per ounce of gold, basetherLondon P.M. fix.

Gold Price Per Ounce ($)

Year High Low
1999 326 252
2000 312 267
2001 293 25€
2002 349 27¢
2003 416 32C
2004 454 37t
2005 537 411
2006 725 52t
2007 841 60¢
2008 (through August 13, 200 1,011 81¢

The volatility in silver prices is illustrated blge following table which sets forth, for the pelsdddicated (calendar year), the high and low
prices in U.S. dollars per ounce of silver, basedhe London P.M. fix.

Silver Price Per Ounce ($)

Year High Low

1999 5.7¢ 4.8¢
2000 5.4E 4.57
2001 4.82 4.07
2002 5.1C 4.24
2003 5.97 4.37
2004 8.2¢ 5.5C
2005 9.2t 6.3¢
2006 14.9¢ 8.8¢
2007 15.8: 11.67
2008 (through August 13, 200 20.92 14.4¢

The volatility in copper prices is illustrated byetfollowing table, which sets forth, for the peisandicated (calendar year), the high and low

prices in U.S. dollars per pound of copper, basethe London Metal Exchange cash settlement pacedpper Grade A.

Copper Price Per Pound ($)

Year High Low
1999 0.8( 0.6:
2000 0.8¢ 0.7¢
2001 0.81 0.62
2002 0.7t 0.67
2003 1.0C 0.7z
2004 1.4: 1.1C
2005 2.0¢ 1.44
2006 3.6t 2.1t
2007 3.71 2.3
2008 (through August 13, 200 4.0¢ 3.0z
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We depend on the services of our President and Ekecutive Officer, our Executive Chairman andestkey employees.

We believe that our success depends on the codtsergice of our key executive management perso@uetently, Tony Jensen is serving as
President and Chief Executive Officer and Stanleynpsey is serving as our Executive Chairman. Mrsde’s extensive commercial
experience, mine operations background and indastmyacts gives us an important competitive adygntiir. Dempsey’s knowledge of the
royalty business and long term standing relatignghth the mining industry are important to the Qmany’s success. Loss of the services of
Mr. Jensen, Mr. Dempsey or other key employeesdcjgalpardize our ability to maintain our compettposition in the industry. We currently
do not have key person life insurance for any ofafficers or directors.

Our revenues are subject to operational risks®htiming industry.

Although we are not required to pay capital costnost operating costs, our financial results atgext to hazards and risks normally
associated with developing and operating miningperes, both for the properties where we haveagfibn alliances or indirectly for
properties operated by others where we hold royatgrests. These risks include:

. insufficient ore reserve:

. fluctuations in production costs by the operatarthod parties that may make mining of ore unecoiwal or impact the amount
reserves

. declines in the price of gold and other metal (&

. significant environmental and other regulatory niegons;
. labor disputes

. geological problems

. pit walls or tailings dam failure:

. natural catastrophes such as floods or earthquake

. the risk of injury to persons, property or the eamiment.

Operating cost increases can have a negative efffieitte value of and income from our royalty ing¢seby potentially causing an operator to
curtail, delay or close operations at a mine site.

Estimates of reserves and mineralization by theaipes of mines in which we have royalty interests subject to significant revision.

There are numerous uncertainties inherent in estimaroven and probable reserves and mineralizaticcluding many factors beyond our
control or the control of the operators of mingradperties in which we have a royalty interest.dRes estimates on our royalty interests are
prepared by the operators of the mining properthés.do not participate in the preparation or veaifion of such reports and have not
independently assessed or verified the accurasydf information. The estimation of reserves anatloér mineralization is a subjective
process and the accuracy of any such estimatefarection of the quality of available data and n§meering and geological interpretation and
judgment. Results of drilling, metallurgical tegtiand production, and the evaluation of mine pkutsequent to the date of any estimate,
cause revision of such estimates. The volume aadeegof reserves recovered and rates of productanba less than anticipated. Assumptions
about gold and other precious metal prices areestibp great uncertainty and such prices haveuaiet! widely in the past. Declines in the
market price of gold or other precious metals alsy render reserves or mineralization containitatikesly lower grades of ore uneconomical
to exploit. Changes in operating and capital castsother factors
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including short-term operating factors, such asntbed for sequential development of ore bodiestlamgrocessing of new or different ore
grades, may materially and adversely affect reserve

Estimates of production by the operators of mimestiich we have royalty interests are subject tinge and actual production may vary
materially from such estimates.

Production estimates are prepared by the operatdhe mining properties. There are numerous uag#ies inherent in estimating anticipated
production attributable to our royalty interestg;luding many factors beyond our control or thetoarof the operators of mineral properties in
which we have royalty interests. We do not partitgpin the preparation or verification of produntestimates and have not independently
assessed or verified the accuracy of such infoomafihe estimation of anticipated production isibjective process and the accuracy of any
such estimates is a function of the quality of lldé data, reliability of production history, valbility in grade encountered, mechanical or
other problems encountered, engineering and gexabigiterpretation and operator judgment. Ratggrofluction may be less than anticipated.
Results of drilling, metallurgical testing and puation, and the evaluation of mine plans subsequetite date of any estimate may cause
actual production to vary materially from such esties.

We may incur substantially more indebtedness thaldchave adverse effects on our business.

We may incur substantial indebtedness in the futuomnnection with financing acquisitions, stratetgansactions or for other purposes. Any
such acquisition could be material to us and ceigdificantly increase the size and scope of owiriass. If we were to incur substantial
additional indebtedness, it may make it difficalt fis to satisfy our debt obligations, increasewalimerability to general adverse economic and
industry conditions, require us to dedicate a suii&tl portion of our cash flow from operations amdceeds of any equity issuances to
payments on our indebtedness, thereby reducinguwhigability of cash flow to fund acquisitions aather general corporate purposes and [

us at a competitive disadvantage to our competit@shave less debt or have other adverse effects. Furthermore, if future debt financing
is not available to us when required or is not lade on acceptable terms, we may be unable to grovibusiness, take advantage of
opportunities to acquire additional royalties, @pond to competitive pressures or refinance nmegutébt, any of which could have a material
adverse effect on our operating results and firsmacndition.

We may be unable to successfully acquire additiomglty interests.

Our future success depends upon our ability toieeqayalty interests at appropriate valuations|uding through corporate acquisitions, to
replace depleting reserves and to diversify oualtgyportfolio. We anticipate that most of our raues will be derived from royalty interests
that we acquire or finance, rather than througHaation and development of properties. There andassurance that we will be able to
identify and complete the acquisition of such royaiterests, or businesses that own desired npjtirests, at reasonable prices or on
favorable terms. In addition, we face competitiorthie acquisition of royalty interests. If we arehle to successfully acquire additional
royalties, the reserves on properties currentheoes by our royalties will decline as existing ress are mined. Furthermore, we may
experience negative reactions from the financialkets, our collaborative partners and employeagifire unable to successfully complete
acquisitions of royalty interests or businessesdiaa desired royalty interests. Each of theseofaamnay adversely affect the trading price of
our common stock or financial results and operation

Acquired royalty interests may not produce antit#daoyalty revenues.

The royalty interests we acquire may not produessiiticipated royalty revenues. The success ofayaity acquisitions is based on our abi
to make accurate assumptions regarding the vatuatid timing and amount of royalty payments, paldidy acquisitions of royalties on
development stage properties. If the operator doebring the property into production and operataccordance with
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feasibility studies or other plans, acquired royaiterests may not yield royalty revenues or sigfit royalty revenues to be profitable. The
Taparko project, which recently began productioBumkina Faso, and the Pefiasquito project alsnifial production in Mexico, represent our
largest development stage royalty acquisitionsatie.dThe principal royalty assets of Battle Moumtarhich we acquired on October 24, 2007,
include royalties on gold and silver productiomfrthe Dolores project in Mexico, which is under eélepment. In addition, our Pascua-Lama
royalty acquisition in Chile is in a pre-productistage. The failure of these projects to produdieigated royalty revenues may materially and
adversely affect our financial condition, result®perations and cash flows.

We may experience operational and other difficalifeve complete one or more significant acquisisio

As part of our business model and growth strategyare engaged in a continual review of opportesitd acquire existing royalties, including
acquiring companies that hold royalties. When weuae a company, we may experience the need teadiéional personnel, difficulties in
integrating the acquired company, increases irgeneral and administrative expenses and otheetefabblems. Furthermore, as part of the
acquisition of a company or a group of royalties,may acquire operating or working interests ahemassets outside of our core focus of
precious metal royalties. In the event we expeseahese difficulties in connection with one or maogjuisitions, our business or financial
results may be adversely affected.

Anticipated federal legislation could decreaseroyalty revenues.

In recent years, the United States Congress hasdmyed a number of proposed major revisions t@eeral Mining Law of 1872 (the
“General Mining Law”), which governs the creatiamdgpossession of mining claims and related aawitin federal public lands in the United
States. Several proposals, such as Bill H.R. 2B&@duced in the Congress in May 2007, if enactenljld impose a royalty payable to the
U.S. Government on existing and future productibmmerals from unpatented mining claims in the tddiStates. If enacted, legislation such
as H.R. 2262 could, among other provisions, renddrin federal lands unavailable for the locatdanpatented mining claims, afford greater
public involvement in the mine permitting procegsyvide for citizen suits against miners operatingederal lands, and impose new and
stringent environmental operating standards asagetlew mined land reclamation requirements. €&tk such legislation could adversely
affect the development of new mines and the expari existing mines, as well as increase the aball mining operations on federal lands,
perhaps materially and adversely affecting mineatoes and therefore our royalty revenue.

The effect of any revision of the General MiningALan our royalty interests in the United Statesncdiibe determined conclusively until such
revision, if any, is enacted and challenges tdegeslation, if any, have been finally resolved alidition, a number of the properties on which
we have royalties are located on U.S. federal |&nasare subject to federal mining and other mullnd laws. Changes in such laws or
regulations promulgated under such laws could &fféece development and expansion and significantdyease regulatory obligations and
compliance costs with respect to mine developmedtraine operations, which could adversely affectroyalty revenue from such properties.
By way of example, if a royalty, assessment, prtidadax, or other levy imposed on and measuregrbguction is charged to the operator at
Cortez, which is largely located on U.S. federabls the amount of that charge would be deducted fiross proceeds for calculation of our
GSR1, GSR2 and GSR3 royalties, which would reduce@yalty revenues from these royalties.

The mining industry is subject to significant emvimental risks.

Mining is subject to potential risks and liabilgi@associated with pollution of the environment #reldisposal of waste products occurring as a
result of mineral exploration and production. Laavsl regulations in the United States and abroashitetd to ensure the protection of the
environment are constantly changing and genera#iypacoming more restrictive and costly. Insuraag&inst environmental risks (including
potential liability for pollution or other hazards a result of the disposal
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of waste products occurring from exploration anddoiction) is not generally available to the companwithin the mining industry, such as the
operators of the mines in which we hold a royattgiest, at a reasonable price. If an operatareefl to incur significant costs to comply with
environmental regulations or becomes subject tiremmental restrictions that limit its ability t@utinue or expand operations, it could reduce
our royalty revenues. To the extent that we becsufigect to environmental liabilities for the timerjpd during which we were operating
properties, the satisfaction of any liabilities Mdteduce funds otherwise available to us and cbalce a material adverse effect on our
financial condition, results of operations and cigis.

If title to properties are not properly maintairt®dthe operators, our royalty revenues may be dsek

The validity of unpatented mining claims, which sbttute a significant portion of the propertieswnich we hold royalties in the United Sta

is often uncertain and such validity is always sabjo contest. Unpatented mining claims are gélgaransidered subject to greater title risk
than patented mining claims, or real property gxés that are owned in fee simple. Because ungatemining claims are self-initiated and self-
maintained, they possess some unique vulnerabiliti¢ associated with other types of property edts. It is impossible to ascertain the
validity of unpatented mining claims from publiatgroperty records, and therefore it can be diffior impossible to confirm that all of the
requisite steps have been followed for location mraéhtenance of an unpatented mining claim. i titi unpatented mining claims included
among our royalty properties has not been propesigblished or is not properly maintained, our lyy@venues could be adversely affected.

Foreign operations are subject to many risks.

We derived approximately 20% of our revenues fromeifyn sources in fiscal year 2008. Our foreigiivitits are subject to the risks normally
associated with conducting business in foreign trees This includes exchange controls and currdlucyuations, limitations on repatriation
of earnings, foreign taxation, foreign environmétaas and enforcement, expropriation or natioralan of property, labor practices and
disputes, and uncertain political and economic rements. There are also risks of war and civiidizances, as well as other risks that could
cause exploration or development difficulties apgtages, restrict the movement of funds or reauté deprivation or loss of contract right:
the taking of property by nationalization or exmiapion, without fair compensation. Explorationditses granted by some foreign countries do
not include the right to mine. Each country hasmigon in determining whether to grant a licersentne. If an operator cannot secure a
mining license following exploration of a propertiie value of our royalty interest would be negalihaffected. Foreign operations could also
be adversely impacted by laws and policies of thi#dd States affecting foreign trade, investmend, @xation. We currently have interests in
projects in Argentina, Bolivia, Burkina Faso, Caaa@hile, Colombia, Finland, Ghana, Honduras, MexiMicaragua and Russia. We also
evaluate precious metal royalty acquisitions orefigwment opportunities in other parts of the woildJuding Canada, Central America,
Europe, Australia, other Republics of the formevi8bUnion, Asia, Africa and South America.

We are also subject to the risks of operating irkBwa Faso, West Africa. Countries in the regioméhhistorically experienced periods of
political uncertainty, exchange rate fluctuatiosaslance of payments and trade difficulties and lgrol associated with extreme poverty and
unemployment. Any of these economic or politicaksi could adversely affect the Taparko project.

Our operations in Mexico are subject to risks saglthe effects of political developments and larakst, and communal property issues. Ir
past, Mexico has experienced prolonged periodseafkveconomic conditions characterized by exchaaigeimstability, increased inflation and
negative economic growth, all of which could ocagein in the future. Any of these risks could adebr affect the Pefiasquito and Dolores
projects, as well as the Mulatos and El Chanateesain
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We hold a royalty interest in an exploration prapéhat is subject to the risks of operating in 8asThe economy of the Russian Federation
continues to display characteristics of an emergiagket, including extensive currency controls potentially high inflation. The prospects
for future economic stability in the Russian Fetieraare largely dependent upon the effectivenéssenomic measures undertaken by the
government, together with legal, regulatory andtjpal developments. Russian laws, licenses anthipghave been in a state of change and
new laws may be given a retroactive effect.

Our Martha royalty is subject to risks relatingofmerating in Argentina. Argentina, while currentigonomically and politically stable, has
experienced political instability, currency fluctieams and changes in banking regulations in regeats. Future instability, currency value
fluctuations or regulation changes could adveraéfigct our revenues from the Martha mine.

Our Don Mario royalty, which we acquired in the afMountain transaction on October 24, 2007, Igjest to risks relating to operating in
Bolivia. Bolivia has experienced political and sddnstability, corruption, regulation and tax lavanges, an abundance of administrative
procedures and the potential for nationalizatiofoodign business interests that could materiadyeasely affect the Don Mario mine.
Risks Related to Our Common Stock

Our stock price may continue to be volatile andidaiecline.

The market price of our common stock has fluctuated may decline in the future. The high and lole gaices of our common stock were
$41.66 and $18.74 in the fiscal year ended Jun2@5, $37.50 and $23.25 for the fiscal year erdse: 30, 2007 and $35.42 and $23.85 for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. The fluctnaifdhe market price of our common stock has lefacted by many factors that are beyond
our control, including:

. market prices of gold and other met:

. interest rates

. expectations regarding inflatio

. ability of operators to produce precious metals @enklop new reserve
. currency values

. general stock market conditions; ¢

. global and regional political and economic conditic

Additional issuances of equity securities by us Malilute the ownership of our existing stockhokland could reduce our earnings per share.

We may issue equity in the future in connectiorhveitquisitions, strategic transactions or for ofh@poses. Any such acquisition could be
material to us and could significantly increasedize and scope of our business. To the extenssueiadditional equity securities, the
ownership of our existing stockholders could beteidi and our earnings per share could be reduced.

If a large number of shares of our common stodold in the public market, the sales could redheeitading price of our common stock and
impede our ability to raise future capital.

We cannot predict what effect, if any, future igsees by us of our common stock or other equity dlve on the market price of our common
stock. In addition, our shares of common stock Weissue in connection with an acquisition mayb®subject to resale restrictions. We
issued approximately 1.14 million shares of our own stock in connection with the acquisition of tBaMountain, which
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closed on October 24, 2007 and 3.98 million sharesnnection with the conversion of all of ouried and outstanding Preferred Stock on
March 10, 2008. We may issue substantial additishates of common stock or other securities in eotion with other acquisition
transactions. The market price of our common stmekd decline if certain large holders of our conmstock, or recipients of our common
stock in connection with an acquisition, sell albosignificant portion of their shares of commawck or are perceived by the market as
intending to sell these shares other than in aartyrenanner. In addition, these sales could algmimour ability to raise capital through the
sale of additional common stock in the capital netsk

We may change our dividend policy.

We have paid a cash dividend on our common stackdoh fiscal year beginning in fiscal year 2000r Board of directors has discretion in
determining whether to declare a dividend based namber of factors, including prevailing gold s8¢ economic market conditions, and
funding requirements for future opportunities oergdions. If our board of directors declines toldecdividends in the future, or reduces the
current dividend level, our stock price could falhd the success of an investment in our commatk stould depend solely upon any future
stock price appreciation in value. We have incréame dividends in prior years. There can be norasge that we will continue to do so. For
example, if we were to materially increase our beings to conduct a material acquisition, our baardirectors could elect to modify our
dividend policy and potentially reduce or elimindiegidends on common stock.

Certain antitakeover provisions could delay or prevent a thaidy from acquiring us.

Provisions in our restated certificate of incorpimra may make it more difficult for third parties &cquire control of us or to remove our
management. Some of these provisions:

. permit our board of directors to issue preferretisthat has rights senior to the common stockauttstockholder approval; ai
. provide for three classes of directors servinggetaed, thre-year terms

We are also subject to the business combinatiovigioms of Delaware law that could delay, detemp@avent a change in control. In addition,
we have adopted a stockholder’s rights plan thabses significant penalties upon a person or gtioapacquires 15% or more of our
outstanding common stock without the approval efttbard of directors. Any of these measures corddgmt a third party from pursuing an
acquisition of Royal Gold, even if stockholdersiéet the acquisition is in their best interests.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We do not operate the properties in which we hayalty interests and therefore much of the infoioratlisclosed in this Form 1KR-regarding
these properties is provided to us by the operakamsexample, the operators of the various préegeprovide us information regarding metals
production, estimates of mineral reserves and mddit mineralized material. Reserves are summatistalv in this report in Item 2,
Properties—Reserve Information. Our rights to information frdine operators under our royalty agreements vamppglty and by operator a
we may not be entitled to information regardingai@arproperties. Furthermore, we may receive inftiam regarding certain properties from
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time to time which we contractually may not be piéted to disclose. We have not independently veditany information provided by the
operators.

There is more information available to the pubtomf the operators of the properties in which weehayalties, including reports filed by
Barrick, Newmont, Coeur d’Alene, Capital Gold andl@orp with the SEC. For risks to our businesseissed with operations of mining
properties by third parties see generally the ridscribed under Part I, Item 1A, “Risk Factorot Fisks associated with the operataeserve
estimates, please see Part |, Iltem 1A, “Risk FacteEstimates of reserves and mineralization by theaipes of mines in which we have
royalty interests are subject to significant regisi of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for furtherte.

Royalties on Producing Properties

Recent activities and further information for eaclthe principal producing properties in which wavh a royalty interest are described in the
following pages. Reserves for our producing praperare summarized in this report in Item 2, Priger—Reserve Information.

Cortez Pipeline Mining Complex (Nevada, USA)

Cortez is a large open-pit, mill and heap leachratpen located approximately 60 air miles southveddtlko, Nevada, in Lander County. The
site is reached by driving west from Elko on Intats 80 approximately 46 miles, and proceedinghsontState Highway 306 approximately
miles. Cortez includes the Pipeline, South Pipelidap and Crossroads deposits and is operatedosydgaries of Barrick.

The royalty interests we hold at the Cortez include

(@) Reserve Claims"GSRY") . This is a slidin-scale GSR royalty for all gold produced from araaséginally known as th“Reserve
Claims,” which includes the majority of the Pip&liand South Pipeline deposits. As defined in oyaltg agreement with Cortez, our
GSR royalty applies to revenues attributed to pctslmined and removed, with no deduction for arstpaid by or charged to
Cortez, except for deductions of Mining Law refocosts. Mining Law reform costs includes all amoua#l by or charged to Cortez
for any royalty, assessment, production tax orroaey imposed on and measured by production, gcettient that any such levy is
hereafter imposed by the United States, in conoratith reform of the General Mining Law or othesai As defined, no such Minil
Law reform costs are currently deducted since b seform has yet occurred. The revenues attribiast€zbrtez are determined on a
deemed market value basis of total production &mhecalendar quarter outturned to Cortez’s accatiite refiner. The GSR royalty
rate on the Reserve Claims is tied to the goldepmdthout indexing for inflation or deflation als@wvn in the table belov

(b) GAS Claims “GSRZ") . This is a slidin-scale GSR royalty for all gold produced from areavatside of the Reserve Claims, origin
known as the GAS Claims, which encompasses appeat&lyn50% of the GAP deposit and all of the Croadsodeposit. The GSR
royalty rate on the GAS Claims, as shown in théethklow, is tied to the gold price, without indegifor inflation or deflation, and
applies to revenues attributed to products minetramoved, with no deduction of costs, except famiy Law reform costs, if an

(c) Reserve and GAS Claims Fixed Royal@$R3). The GSR3 royalty is a fixed rate GSR royalty ofil2%% for the life of the mine
and covers the same cumulative area as is covgredriiwo slidin-scale GSR royalties, GSR1 and GS

(d) Net Value Royalty“NVR1"). This is a fixed 1.25% NVR on production from the &&laims located on a portion of Cortez t
excludes the Pipeline open pit. The Company own8%8bf the 1.25% NVR (or 0.39%) while our consol@hminority interest owns
the remaining portion of the 1.25% NVR. This NVRyalty is calculated by deducting contract defipedcessin-
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related and associated capital costs, but not gicists, from the revenue received by the opefatgroduction from the are
covered by the royalty

We also own two other royalties at Cortez wheregl® currently no production attributed to thealby interests and there is insignificant
reserves attributed to the royalty interests.

The following shows the current sliding-scale G&Rtl GSR2 royalty rates under our royalty agreeméhtCortez:

London PM Quarterly Averac GSR1 GSR2

Price of Gold Per Ounce ($U.¢ Royalty Percentag Royalty Percentag
Below $210.0( 0.4(% 0.72%
$210.0( - $229.9¢ 0.5(% 0.9(%
$230.0( - $249.9¢ 0.7%% 1.35%
$250.0( - $269.9¢ 1.3(% 2.34%
$270.0( - $309.9¢ 2.25% 4.05%
$310.0( - $329.9¢ 2.6(% 4.6&8%
$330.0( = $349.9¢ 3.0(% 5.4(%
$350.0( - $369.9¢ 3.4(% 6.12%
$370.0( - $389.9¢ 3.7%% 6.75%
$390.0( - $409.9¢ 4.0(% 7.2(%
$410.0( = $429.9¢ 4.25% 7.65%
$430.0( - $449.9¢ 4.5(% 8.1(%
$450.0( = $469.9¢ 4.7%% 8.55%
$470.0( - and abov 5.0(% 9.0(%

Upon the consummation of the royalty acquisiti@angaction between Royal Gold and Barrick, GSR2leélteduced to match the royalty rate
of GSR1 while the portion of the GSR3 and NVRL1 ttga on the mining claims that comprise the unttgwed Crossroads deposit at Cortez
will be eliminated. Please refer to Item 7, MD&A, this report for a further discussion of the défie agreement between Barrick and us.

Under certain circumstances we would be entitledielayed production payments (i.g@ayments not recoupable by Cortez) of $400,000 pe
year.

Barrick estimated that at a $575 gold price, proaed probable reserves related to our royalty éstsrat Cortez includes 44.09 million tons of
ore, at an average grade of 0.044 ounces perdotgining approximately 1.923 million ounces ofdjas of December 31, 2007. In addition,
Barrick has reported additional mineralized matexidCortez totaling 65.78 million tons of ore aat average grade of 0.028 ounces of gold per
ton.
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The following illustration depicts the area subjgcbur royalty interests at Cortez:
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Robinson Mine (Nevada, USA)

We own a 3.0% NSR royalty on all mineral productitom the Robinson open pit mine operated by aididry of Quadra. The Robinson
mine produces two flotation concentrates for saléhird party smelters. One concentrate contaippen gold and silver. The second is a
molybdenum concentrate. Access to the propertigitfNevada state highway 50, 6.5 miles west of Byada, in White Pine County.

As of December 31, 2007, Quadra informed us treattpper and gold reserves were 114.41 million,tahan average grade of 0.007 ounces
per ton of gold, containing 0.772 million ouncegofd and a copper grade of 0.68% equating to 1nsiBn pounds of copper. The reserves
were calculated at $1.75-$2.50 per pound of copgpeadra does not use a gold price figure to defiserves as gold is produced as a by-
product of copper. Silver and molybdenum reserverewot reported but are produced and sold aspadziict.
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All of the ground within the “property boundary’s &abeled in the following map, is subject to cayaity interest at the Robinson mine:
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Taparko (Burkina Faso, West Africa)

In connection with a financing transaction to Senuitiring our third quarter of our fiscal year 20@@, own a 15.0% GSR royalty (TB-GSR1)
and a sliding-scale GSR royalty (TB-GSR2), randiogn 0% to 10.0% depending on the price of goldatmgold produced from the Taparko
open pit gold mine. The Taparko mine is locateBumkina Faso, West Africa, and is operated by Sangitsubsidiary of High River. The
Taparko mine is accessible by both paved and gragels and is approximately 125 miles northeaSudgadougou, the capital of Burkina
Faso. Please refer to Note 3 to the consolidatehéiial statements for further information regagdime financing transaction.

TB-GSR1 will remain in effect until cumulative praction of 804,420 ounces of gold is achieved oil gnmulative payments of $35 million
have been made to Royal Gold, whichever is eafiBrGSR2 will remain in effect until the terminati@of TB-GSR1. Production at the
Taparko mine commenced during our first fiscal ¢granf 2008. As of June 30, 2008, we have recoghiagalty revenue associated with the
TB-GSR1 royalty totaling $4.7 million, which is aiutable to cumulative production of 36,078 ouncggold.

We also own a perpetual 2.0% GSR royalty (TB-GS#t83ll gold produced from the Taparko mine. A portof the TB-GSR3 royalty is
associated with existing proven and probable reseand has been classified as a development stggiéyrinterest. The remaining portion of
the TB-GSR3 royalty, which is not currently assteibwith proven and probable reserves, is claskidean exploration stage royalty interest.
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In addition, we own a 0.75% milling fee royalty (ABR1) on all gold processed through the Taparkoentirocessing facilities that is mined
from any area outside of the Taparko mine aregestito a maximum of 1.1 million tons per year. fidheurrently are no proven and probable
reserves associated with TB-MR1 and this royaltlassified as an exploration stage royalty interes

Our royalties on the Taparko mine were subjecormetion of our $35 million funding commitment$mmita and the royalty documents for
the forgoing royalties had been signed but heldlpenthe completion of the funding commitment. Venpleted the remaining $0.4 million
our funding commitment on September 27, 2007, andrded our royalty interests.

The Taparko mine commenced gold production in Aug087 and contributed approximately $7.4 milliarrdéyalty revenue (from TB-GSR1
and TB-GSR2) for our fiscal year 2008. Reserve attaristics, mining activity, and gold recoveryfpemance has been near feasibility study
estimates. However, mill performance has suffelnedughout our fiscal year 2008 due to problemsaated with the grinding mill drivérain.
This has resulted in low mill availability and tlughput. Several problems with the original instadia were identified and corrected but
mechanical problems have persisted. Productionce&ased on June 11, 2008, and the entire drivesrainre-evaluated and is now in the
process of reassembly with the assistance of garty mill equipment specialists. Continuous anstaned production is dependent upon
resolving the mill drive-train problems.

As of December 31, 2007, High River estimated &ta $800 gold price proven and probable resenasde 3.70 million tons of ore, at an
average grade of 0.082 ounces per ton, containB@B0million ounces of gold, which reflects the $88lion cap on the TB-GSR1 royalty
based on High River’'s $800 gold price.

The following map depicts the area subject to oyalty interests at the Taparko mine:
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Leeville Mining Complex (Nevada, USA)

We own a carried working interest, equal to a 1M3$R royalty, which covers the majority of the LdkvMining Complex (collectively
Leeville South and Leeville North), in Eureka Coyrifievada. The Leeville Mining Complex is approxteig 19 air miles northwest of Carli
Nevada. The property is accessed by driving nadimfCarlin on State Highway 766 for 19 miles anehtlon an improved gravel road for t
miles. Leeville North is a newly developed undetgrd mine. Currently, we derive royalty revenue franderground operations on a portio
the Leeville North mine, which are operated by lassdiary of Newmont. Production from the Leevilleush mine ceased in late calendar 2(

At the Leeville North mine, proven and probablesress include 5.06 million tons of ore, at an agergrade of 0.427 ounces per ton,
containing 2.161 million ounces of gold as of Debem31, 2007. In addition, Newmont has reportedtaxhél mineralized material totaling
0.64 million tons of ore, at an average grade 446.ounces of gold per ton, at Leeville North aBetember 31, 2007.

The following map depicts the area subject to oyalty interest at the Leeville Project:
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Goldstrike- SJ Claims (Nevada, USA)

We own a 0.9% NSR royalty on the SJ Claims thatt®a portion of the Betze-Post mine, in EurekarBgWNevada. Betz@ost is an open
mine operated by a subsidiary of Barrick, at itddStiike property. The SJ Claims and the Betze-Bpsh-pit lie approximately 24 air miles
northwest of Carlin, Nevada. The property is acegds/ driving north from Carlin on State Highway6/6r 19 miles and then on an improved
gravel road for five miles.

Barrick estimated that at a $575 gold price, proaed probable reserves related to our royalty ésteait the SJ Claims include 52.49 million
tons of ore, at an average grade of 0.133 ounae®pecontaining approximately 6.960 million ousad gold as of December 31, 2007. In
addition, Barrick reported mineralized materiabd32 million tons, at a grade of 0.052 ounces per &s of December 1, 2007.
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The following map depicts the area subject to oyalty interest at the SJ Claims:
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Royalties on Development Stage Properties

The following is a description of our principal &ty interests on development stage propertiesteTae proven and probable reserves
associated with these properties as indicated bélbese development stage royalty interests areuregéntly in production. Reserves for our
development stage properties are summarized beldkis report in Iltem 2, Properties — Reserve Imfation.

Pefiasquito Project (Zacatecas, Mexico)

We own a production payment equivalent to a 2.09R K&yalty on all metal production from the Pefiasmproject, located in the State of
Zacatecas, Mexico, and operated by Goldcorp. Thad$Rpiito project is located approximately 17 milest of the town of Concepcién del
Oro, Zacatecas, Mexico. The project, composed ofrhain deposits called Pefiasco and Chile Colottaakis large silver, gold, zinc and lead
reserves. The deposits consist of oxide and sytfaatgons.

Goldcorp recently reported that construction isgpessing at Pefiasquito and that several construetiestones were completed during the
second calendar quarter of 2008. In May 2008, Refi@spoured the first gold from the oxide circiiccordingly, during our fourth quarter of
fiscal 2008, we reclassified our cost basis indkiele circuit from development stage to producttage. Goldcorp expects production at
Pefiasquito from the first sulfide circuit by latdendar 2009 and expects the second sulfide cit@ié operational near the end of calendar
2010. The Company anticipates that the sulfideu@isawvill contribute significant royalty revenue ttee Company once the circuits reach
commercial production.

Dolores (Chihuahua, Mexico)

We own a 1.25% NSR royalty on gold and a 2.0% tyyah both gold and silver from the Dolores projecated in Chihuahua, Mexico, and
owned and operated by Minefinders. The Doloresgutdg located approximately 155 miles west ofditg of Chihuahua, Mexico.
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Minefinders announced in July 2008 that initial guwotion from the Dolores mine has been delayed thailater portion of third calendar
quarter of 2008 due to a blockade that was esteddlign May 2008 by a group of protestors. Minefiisd#so announced that the revised timing
(from mid-July 2008) for the initial production waffect previously released calendar 2008 productistimates, but did not provide updated
guidance. The 2.0% NSR royalty becomes effectiverwthe facility has been producing at 75% of itsigie capacity for three consecutive
months. This royalty was acquired as part of thel@&lountain acquisition on October 24, 2007. Béeeefer to Item 7, MD&A, of this report
for further information.

Pascud.ama Project (Region lll, Chile)

We own a 0.16% to 1.08% sliding-scale NSR royaitytlee Pascua-Lama project located on the bordarggntina and Chile, and operated by
a subsidiary of Barrick. The Pascua-Lama projelidated within 6.25 miles of Barrick's Valedarmjact. The sliding-scale NSR royalty is
based upon gold price as shown in the followindetab

London PM Monthly Averag NSR
Price of Gold Per Ounce ($U.¢ Royalty Percentag
Below $325.0( 0.1€%
$325.0: - $350.0( 0.22%
$350.0: = $375.0( 0.27%
$375.0: - $400.0( 0.32%
$400.0: = $500.0( 0.5€%
$500.0: - $600.0( 0.7%%
$600.0: = $800.0( 0.91%
$800.0: - and abov 1.08%

When the average quarterly gold price is betwegrntan price ranges above, the royalty rate is pripoal to the change in gold price.

Our royalty interest is applicable to all the gpldduction from Chile. The Company owns an addélonyalty equivalent to 0.216% of
proceeds from copper produced in Chile, net ofaedlole deductions, sold on or after January 1, 2017.
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Reserve Information

Table 1 below summarizes proven and probable resdor gold, silver, copper, zinc and lead thatehlagen reported to us by the operators of
our royalty interests as of December 31, 2007.4eleafer to pages 27-28 for the footnotes to Table

TABLE 1

Summary of Proven and Probable Gold Resef®s
Production Stage Royalties
As of December 31, 20069

Gold
Tons of Average Gold Contained
Ore Grade Ounces
Royalty Operator Category (millions) (ounces per ton) (millions) ¥
Cortez GSR:® Barrick Proven 4.47 0.09:2 0.41(
Probabli 27.7( 0.04¢ 1.23¢
Cortez GSR®® Barrick Proven 1.3C 0.02¢ 0.03d
Probabli 10.62 0.022 0.23¢
Cortez GSR®® Barrick Proven 5.77 0.07¢ 0.44¢
Probabli 38.32 0.03¢ 1.47¢
Cortez NVR16) Barrick Proven 3.71 0.05¢ 0.201
Probabli 33.5: 0.03t 1.18¢
Robinson Quadra Proven 96.8¢ 0.007 0.66¢
Probabli 17.51 0.00¢ 0.10:
Taparko TEEGSR1®) High River Reserve 3.7C 0.08: 0.3047.8)
Taparko TE-GSR2®) High River Reserve 3.7¢ 0.08: 0.3047.8)
Leeville Mining Complex® Newmont Reserve 5.0€ 0.427 2.161
Goldstrike—SJ Claims®) Barrick Reserve 52.4¢ 0.13: 6.96(
Mulatos(20) Alamos Proven 6.7¢€ 0.061 0.411
Probabli 28.6¢€ 0.04% 1.27¢
Bald Mountain(®) Barrick Reserve 31.4¢ 0.02¢ 0.88¢
El Chanate(11) Capital Gol Proven 29.4; 0.02( 0.581
Probabli 14.07 0.01¢ 0.25]
Don Mario2)(LMZ) Orvana Reserve 0.5¢€ 0.337 0.18¢(13)
Williams Williams Proven 7.24 0.07: 0.52¢
Probabli 2.6¢ 0.11¢ 0.31¢
Pefiasquito (oxide(4) Goldcorp Proven 46.41 0.00¢ 0.28:
Probabli 121.6¢ 0.00¢ 0.367
El Limon Central Sur Proven 0.17 0.17¢ 0.03(
Probabli 1.3t 0.13¢ 0.18:
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TABLE 1 (Continued)

Summary of Proven and Probable Gold Resef®s
Development Stage Royalties
As of December 31, 20069

Gold

Average Gold Contained
Tons Grade Ounces

Royalty Operator Category (millions) (ounces per ton) (millions) ¥
Pefiasquito (sulfide(4) Goldcorp Proven 470.57 0.017 7.85¢
Probabli 419.0¢ 0.011 4.54¢
Dolores Minefinders Proven 62.42 0.02: 1.45¢
Probabli 47.0¢ 0.021 0.99(
Pascu-Lama(*%) Barrick Proven 35.71 0.05¢ 1.90(C
Probabli 288.8( 0.04< 12.70(
Taparko TEEGSR3(6:8) High River Reserve 6.0¢€ 0.08: 0.497

Gold Hill © Kinross Reserve — — 0.75(16)
Marigold Goldcorp Reserve 44.5¢ 0.01¢ 0.867
Don Mario2) (UMZ) Orvana Proven 1.1¢ 0.041 0.04¢
Probabli 4.82 0.041 0.20¢
Bensao Golden Sta Probabli 2.54 0.09¢ 0.252
Summary of Proven and Probable Silver Rese®vE$
Production Stage Royalties
As of December 31, 2009
Silver

Average Silver Contained
Tons Grade Ounces

Royalty Operator Category (millions) (ounces per ton) (millions) )
Pefiasquito (oxide(4) Goldcorp Proven 46.41 0.61 28.24¢
Probabli 75.2¢ 0.4¢ 36.06!
Martha Coeur ( Alene Proven 0.0¢ 52.9¢ 2.92¢
Probabli 0.1C 54 5t 5.36¢

Troy ©)7.0% GSF Revett Reserve 2.01 1.1¢€ 2.37¢18]

6.1% GSk Reserve 1.7: 1.1¢ 2.04¢
2.0% GSF Reserve 2.61 1.1¢ 3.08¢
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TABLE 1 (Continued)

As of December 31, 2009

Summary of Proven and Probable Silver ResefvE3
Development Stage Royalties

Silver
Average Silver Contained
Tons Grade Ounces
Royalty Operator Category (millions) (ounces per ton) (millions) ®)
Pefiasquito (sulfide(4) Goldcorp Proven 470.57 0.9¢ 466.99:
Probabli 419.0¢ 0.7¢ 332.56:
Dolores Minefinders Proven 62.42 1.1¢ 73.41¢
Probabli 47.04: 1.1z 53.23(
Don Mario2) (UMZ) Orvana Proven 1.1¢€ 1.5¢ 1.87i
Probabli 4.82 1.3C 6.27¢
Summary of Proven and Probable Copper Resék&s
Production Stage Royalties
As of December 31, 2009
Copper
Average Copper Contained
Tons Grade Pounds
Royalty Operator Category (millions) (% Cu) (millions) 4
Robinson Quadrs Proven 96.8¢ 0.61 1,18¢
Probabls 17.51] 1.07 37t
Troy ®7.0% Revett Reserve 1.94 0.5¢ 21018)
6.1% Reserve 1.5¢ 0.54 17
2.0% Reserve 3.7C 0.5¢ 40
Summary of Proven and Probable Zinc Resefv&s
Development Stage Royalties
As of December 31, 2009
Zinc
Average Zinc Contained
Tons Grade Pounds
Royalty Operator Category (millions) (% Zn) (millions) ¥
Pefiasquito (sulfide(4) Goldcory Proven 470.57 0.7¢ 7,36:
Probabli 419.0¢ 0.6t 5,44t
Don Mario(2)(UMZ) Orvana Proven 1.1¢€ 1.62 38
Probabl 4.82 1.47 14z
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TABLE 1 (Continued)

Summary of Proven and Probable Lead Resédhs
Development Stage Royalties
As of December 31, 20069

Lead
Average Zinc Contained
Tons Grade Pounds
Royalty Operator Category (millions) (% Pb) (millions) )
Pefiasquito (sulfide(4) Goldcorg Proven 470.57 0.3¢€ 3,43¢
Probabli 419.0¢ 0.2¢ 2,447

@

@

(©)

@

®)

(6)
@

Footnotes to Table 1

Set forth below are the definitions of proven anobable reserves used by the SEC. Some of ourtyoyaérators are Canadian issu
Their definitions of “mineral reserve,” “proven nairal reserve” and “probable mineral reserve” camfto the Canadian Institute of
Mining, Metallurgy and Petroleum definitions of geeterms as of the effective date of estimatioregsired by National Instrument 43-
101 of the Canadian Securities Administrators. Theadian definitions of “reserve,” “proven (measi)neeserves,” and “probable
(indicated) reservi’ are different than those used by the SEC as debetmv.

“Reserv” is that part of a mineral deposit which could berexmically and legally extracted or produced attiime of the reserv
determinatior.

“Proven (Measured) Reserves” are reserves lfiichw(a) quantity is computed from dimensions résgan outcrops, trenches, workings
or drill holes, and the grade is computed fromréilts of detailed sampling, and (b) the sitesrfspection, sampling and measurement
are spaced so closely and the geologic characservgell defined that the size, shape, depth amé:rai content of the reserves are well
established

“Probable (Indicated) Reserves” are reserves/foch the quantity and grade are computed frdimrimation similar to that used for
proven (measured) reserves, but the sites for atigme sampling and measurement are farther apanteootherwise less adequately
spaced. The degree of assurance of probable (tediceeserves, although lower than that for praeeasured) reserves, is high enough
to assume geological continuity between pointshsfeovation

Gold reserves were calculated by the operatotsedfollowing per ounce prices: $8— Taparko; $60(— Dolores; $57:— Cortez,
Goldstrike, Bald Mountain, Leeville, Williams an@$tua-Lama; $550 — El Chanate, El Limon and Madg$b25 — Pefiasquito; $500
— Mulatos; $480 — Benso; $400 — Don Mario. Quadraesdoot use a gold price figure to define resergegodd is produced as a by-
product of copper. No gold price is reported fold3dill — see footnote 1¢

Reserves have been calculated by the operatofsecember 31, 2007, with the exception of thediwlhg properties: Don Mari

(UMZ) — October 2006; Benso — April 2007; Pefasguit June 2007; and El Chanate — October 2007. @berves at the Don Mario
mine for the LMZ as of September 30, 2007, are dhasepublicly available reserve and productioniinfation dated December 5, 2005
and November 29, 200

“Contained ounc” or “contained poun(’ do not take into account losses in processing theThe amounts shown are 100% of
reserves subject to our royalty intere

GSR1, GSR2 and NVR1 reserves are a subset oftheves covered by GSR3. Upon consummation of tyedtyoacquisition transactic
between Royal Gold and Barrick, the portion of @8R3 and NVR1 royalties on the Crossroads depakibeveliminated. As of
December 31, 2007, there were no proven and prelsabkrves associated with the Crossroads defesititem 7, MD&A, for further
detail on the transactio

Due to the royalty structure at the Taparko and/Tnines, reserves cannot be broken down into pranehprobable
TB-GSR1 and T-GSR2 royalties are subject to the same res
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(10)

(11

(12)

(13)

(14)

(19)

(16)

an

(18)

(19)

(20)
(1)

The reserves at Taparko have been adjusted, basthé operator’s gold price assumption of $800gp@ce, to reflect the $35 million
cap on the TB-GSR1 royalty. Upon meeting this deth the TB-GSR1 and TB-GSR?2 royalties cease amd BxGSR3 royalty becomes
effective. The TI-GSR3 reserves represent the remaining reservessafigacting the reserves associated wit-GSR1 and T-GSR2.

The operators at Goldstrike, Leeville, Bald Mountasold Hill and Marigold did not provide a breakdwoof proven and probab
reserves

The Compan'’s royalty is subject to a 2.0 million ounce capgoid production. As of June 30, 2008, approximagg,000 cumulativ
ounces of gold have been produc

The reserves shown are subject to the Compaligisg-scale NSR and NPI royalties at EI Chanatg were not adjusted to reflect the
respective caps. The sliding-scale NSR royaltyafgped once payment of approximately $17.0 milliamehbeen received while the NPI
royalty is capped at $1.0 millic

Don Mario reserves consist of a lower mineralizedez“LMZ”) and an upper mineralized zor*UMZ"). A breakdown of proven ar
probable reserves on the LMZ was not provided yoiberator

Reserves represent the oper's reserve estimates as of November 1, 2005, r28@8 and 2007 annual production as reported b
operator.

Operator reported reserve estimates by deposistypsulfide deposit is one in which the sulfidenerials predominate. An oxide depc
is one in which the oxide minerals predomin;

Reserves shown represent the area of interestiia ©hwhich the royalty applie:

Round Mountain Gold Corporati’s Gold Hill reserves are not separately detailethéir publicly available financial reports. Howey
Barrick stated in its September 2006 Nevada Mingr foesentation titled “Barrick in Nevada,” postaudtheir web site, that as of
December 31, 2005, there were 375,000 containedesun reserves that represent their 50% sharesgdrbject

Silver reserves were calculated by the operatabd &0 per ounce for Martha; $10.00 per ouncd foy, Pefiasquito (sulfide and oxic
and Dolores; and $6.00 per ounce for Don Mg

The reserves subject to the 7.0% GSR royalty haea ladjusted downward by Royal Gold due to the&afien of meeting the monet:
cap of $10.5 million in cumulative payments. Rogalld used the operator's December 31, 2007 silndrcapper reserve prices of
$10.00 per ounce and $2.25 per pound, respectiteebalculate this adjustmer

Copper reserves were calculated by the operat®2.50 per pound for Robinson for calendar y2aes8 through 2012 and $1.75 for the
remainder of the mine life; $2.25 per pound foryfrand $1.00 for Don Mario (UMZ

Zinc reserves were calculated by the operator &050er pound
Lead reserves were calculated by the operator.40%ier pound
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Table 2 below summarizes additional mineralizafmmgold, silver, copper, lead and zinc which haeen reported to us by the operators of
our royalty interests as of December 31, 2007.9@leafer to page 32 for the footnotes to Table 2.

TABLE 2

Gold Additional Mineralized Materidh
Production Stage Royalties
As of December 31, 2007

Average Gold

Additional Mineralized Tons Grade

Royalty Operator Material (millions) (ounces per ton)
Cortez GSR:®®) Barrick Measurec@3) 2.8¢ 0.02°¢
Indicated(3) 29.4¢ 0.02C
Inferred2.3) 4.3 0.01:
Cortez GSR:®) Barrick Measurec@3) 3.4¢ 0.04¢
Indicated3) 24.7( 0.03¢
Inferred2.3) 0.9¢ 0.01¢
Cortez GSR®) Barrick Measurec@3) 6.3¢ 0.03¢
Indicated(@3) 54.1¢ 0.02¢
Inferred2.3) 5.2¢ 0.01¢
Cortez NVR1®) Barrick Measurec@3) 3.8¢ 0.04¢
Indicated3) 28.61 0.037
Inferred2.3) 3.3¢ 0.012
Robinsor Quadrz Measurec@4) 573.0( 0.00¢
Indicated@4) 147.0( 0.00z
Inferred @4 89.0( 0.00:
Taparko High River Measure? — —
Indicated® 2.51 0.08:
Inferred®) 1.22 0.08¢
Leeville Mining Comple> Newmont -0 0.6 0.44¢
Goldstrike—SJ Claims Barrick Measurec2 2.7¢ 0.05¢
Indicated® 4.0¢ 0.05(C
Inferred — —
Mulatos(®) Alamos Measurec@) 12.31 0.02¢
Indicated® 58.47 0.027
Inferred® _ _
Bald Mountain Barrick Measured & Indicate( 7.6 0.02¢
Inferred@ — —
El Chanate Capital Golc Measurec28) 11.31 0.01¢
Indicated@8) 32.8¢ 0.02(
Inferred(@8) 6.1¢F 0.021
Williams Williams Measurec@ 1.71 0.09(
Indicated® 2.37 0.15¢
Inferred@ 6.21 0.127
Pefiasquito (oxide(” Goldcorp Measurec? 8.71 0.00z
Indicated® 38.2¢ 0.00¢
Inferred@ 45.1¢ 0.00¢
El Limon Central Sur Measurec@ 0.0¢ 0.13¢
Indicated® 0.3¢ 0.147
Inferred@ — —
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TABLE 2 (Continued)

Gold Additional Mineralized Materigh
Development Stage Royalties
As of December 31, 2007

Average Gold

Additional Tons Grade

Royalty Operator Mineralized Material (millions) (ounces per ton)
Pefiasquito (sulfide(”) Goldcorp Measurec? 109.2: 0.00¢
Indicated® 591.7: 0.00¢
Inferred® 1,299.6: 0.007
Dolores Minefinders Measurec& Indicated®?) 7.7C 0.09(
Inferred® 33.4f 0.02C
Pascu-Lama Barrick Measurec® 8.1¢ 0.037
Indicated 62.3¢ 0.03¢
Inferred® 7.2 0.027
Bensao Golden Sta Measurec@ — —
Indicated® 0.4t 0.072
Inferred® 0.67 0.09¢

Silver Additional Mineralized Materidh
Production Stage Royalties
As of December 31, 2007
Average Silver

Additional Tons Grade

Royalty Operator Mineralized Material (millions) (ounces per ton)
Pefiasquito (oxide(™ Goldcorp Measurec® 8.71 0.2C
Indicated(® 38.2¢ 0.21
Inferred 45.1¢ 0.3¢
Troy ©® Revett Measurec® 35.1¢ 1.4¢€
Indicated® 10.9¢ 1.0t
Inferred — —
Martha Coeur ¢ Alene Measurec@ 0.03¢ 46.3¢
Indicated(® 0.05: 29.7¢
Inferred 0.072 27.5%
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Silver Additional Mineralized Materidh
Development Stage Royalties
As of December 31, 2007

Average Silver

Additional Tons Grade
Royalty Operator Mineralized Material (millions) (ounces per ton)
Pefiasquito (sulfide(” Goldcorp Measurec? 109.2¢ 0.6t
Indicated® 591.7: 0.5¢
Inferred@ 1,299.6. 0.3¢
Dolores Minefinders Measurec& Indicated® 7.7C 2.81
Inferred@ 33.4¢ 0.82
Copper Additional Mineralized Materié
Production Stage Royalties
As of December 31, 2007
Additional Tons Average Copper
Royalty Operator Mineralized Material (millions) Grade (%)
Robinsor Quadrs Measurec@ 573.0( 0.4
Indicated® 147.0( 0.3C
Inferred® 89.0( 0.2¢
Troy © Revett Measurec® 35.1¢ 0.7z
Indicated® 10.9¢ 0.4¢
Inferred® — —
Lead Additional Mineralized Materi&b)
Development Stage Royalties
As of December 31, 2007
Average Lead
Additional Tons Grade
Royalty Operator Mineralized Material (millions) (%)
Pefiasquito (sulfide(” Goldcory Measurec? 109.2: 0.24
Indicated® 591.7: 0.2C
Inferred® 1,299.6: 0.0¢
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TABLE 2 (Continued)

Zinc Additional Mineralized Materidl
Development Stage Royalties
As of December 31, 2007

Average Zinc

Additional Tons Grade

Royalty Operator Mineralized Material (millions) (%)
Pefiasquito (sulfide(” Goldcorg Measurec? 109.2¢ 0.67
Indicated® 591.7: 0.5t

Inferred( 1,299.6: 0.5C

@

@

®

4)
®)

6)

U]

®)
©

Footnotes to Table 2

Mineralized material is that part of a mineral systthat has potential economic significance buhotbe included in the proven a
probable ore reserve estimates until further ddliand metallurgical work is completed, and uritiles economic and technical feasibility
factors based upon such work have been resolvedSHC does not recognize this term. Investorsauwganed not to assume that any
part or all of the mineral deposits in these catiegowill ever be converted into reserv

Some of our royalty operators are Canadian isstiiér definitions o mineral resourc” “measured mineral resour” “indicated
mineral resource” and “inferred mineral resourcefiforms to the Canadian Institute of Mining, Matadly and Petroleum definitions of
those terms as of the effective date of estimaggrrequired by National Instrument 43-101 of tl&lian Securities Administrators.
Mineral resources which are not mineral reservesadave economic viability. Canadian issuerstheg¢erms “mineral resources” and
its subcategories “measured,” “indicated” and “indel” mineral resources. While such terms are reizagl and required by Canadian
regulations, the SEC does not recognize them. taxeare cautioned not to assume that any paitt of the mineral deposits in these
categories will ever be converted into reser

GSR1, GSR2 and NVR1 additional mineralized mateniala subset of the additional mineralized mdteaeered by GSR3. Upc
consummation of the royalty acquisition transactietween Royal Gold and Barrick, the portion of @®R3 and NVR1 royalties on the
Crossroads deposit will be eliminated. Approxima@&0% of the additional mineralized material repdras of December 31, 2007, lies
within the Crossroads depos

Additional mineralized material does not includeames, except at Robinson at the request of temtip.

The operator reported additional mineralizatiomax-reserve material but did not provide a breakdowasueed, indicated and inferr
material.

In June 2008, figures for measured additional nailieed material at Mulatos were corrected from I3dhs, at a grade of 0.040 oun
per ton, to 12.31 tons at a grade of 0.029 ouneesop. Indicated additional mineralized materiakveorrected from 87.13 tons, at a
grade of 0.033 ounces per ton, to 58.47 tonsgaade of 0.027 ounces per ton. These correctidletehe operator’s inclusion of
reserves in their initial additional mineralizedtaréal figure for calendar year end 201

Operator has reported estimates by deposit typesxfle deposit is one in which the oxide minembdominate. A sulfide deposit
one in which the sulfide minerals predomini

Includes additional mineralized material subjedh® slidin¢-scale NSR and NPI royalty interests at ElI Char
Additional mineralized material shown is subjecttie Compan's 2.0% GSR royalty at Tro

NOTE: Additional mineralization is not shown fortidon Mario, Gold Hill and Marigold mines. At Donavlo, figures for the reporte
additional mineralization for the LMZ have not bagydated since the operator's 2005 model, det&il¢ideir December 5, 2005 press release.
Due to the age of the model, Royal Gold has nt#dishese figures. For the UMZ at Don Mario, alfliéidnal mineralization is covered in the
design of the existing pit. Figures for Gold HildaMarigold are not shown because the operatonbaeported additional mineralization
pertaining to our royalty interest.
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Royalties on Exploration Stage Properties

For a listing of the Company’s interests in royedton exploration stage properties, please refieeno 1, Business, of this report. There are no
proven and probable reserves associated with fireperties at this time.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
Casmalia Resources Hazardous Waste Disposal Site

On March 24, 2000, the United States Environmeptatection Agency (“EPA”) notified Royal Gold an@ 8ther entities that they were
considered potentially responsible parties (“PRRster the Comprehensive Environmental Responsap€nsation, and Liability Act of
1980, as amended (“Superfund”), at the Casmali@li®ess Hazardous Waste Disposal Site (the “SiteJadnta Barbara County, California.
EPA’s allegation that Royal Gold was a PRP was baseheodisposal of allegedly hazardous petroleumaatibn wastes at the Site by Ro
Gold’s predecessor, Royal Resources, Inc., dur@@3and 1984.

After extensive negotiations, on September 23, 28@¥al Gold, along with 35 members of the PRP graugeted by EPA, entered into a
Partial Consent Decree with the United States oEAca intending to settle their liability for thenltled States of America’s past and future
cleanup costs incurred at the Site. Based on the minuolaime of allegedly hazardous waste that RoyabRe®s, Inc. disposed of at the S
our share of the $25.3 million settlement amourg $@.1 million, which we deposited into the escamgount that the PRP group set up for
that purpose in January 2002. The funds were paidet United States of America on May 9, 2003. Uhéed States of America may only
pursue Royal Gold and the other PRPs for additiole@n-up costs if the United States of Americataltcleandp costs at the Site significan
exceed the expected cost of approximately $272amilWe believe our potential liability with the ied States of America to be a remote
possibility.

At present, Royal Gold is considering entering iatde minimis settlement with the State of Califarhe date for accepting a settlement was
extended indefinitely by the State of Californiangimg preparation of settlement documentation leyState. Such settlement will result in a
final conclusion regarding the Company’s respotigjitto address the matter.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of our sectnitgers during the quarter ended June 30, 2008uIRerom our annual meeting will |
described in Part Il, Item 4 of our report thatlwi filed on Form 10-Q for the quarter ending Deber 31, 2008.

PART Il

ITEM5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information and Current Stockholders

Our common stock is traded on the Nasdaqg Glob&cE&larket (“Nasdaq”) under the symbol “RGLD” amulthe Toronto Stock Exchange
under the symbol “RGL."” The following table setstf for each of
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the quarterly periods indicated, the range of lagt low sales prices, in U.S. dollars, for the camrstock on NASDAQ), for each quarter si
July 1, 2005.

Sales Price
Fiscal Year High Low
200¢ First Quarter (July, Aug., Sej— 2005) $30.2( $18.7¢
Second Quarter (Oct., Nov., De— 2005) $35.6¢ $20.9¢
Third Quarter (Jan., Feb., Mar— 2006) $41.6¢ $27.01
Fourth Quarter (April, May, Jur— 2006) $37.5( $23.0(
2007 First Quarter (July, Aug., Sej— 2006) $31.82 $25.61
Second Quarter (Oct., Nov., De— 2006) $37.5( $24.1:
Third Quarter (Jan., Feb., Mar— 2007) $36.5( $29.31
Fourth Quarter (April, May, Jur— 2007) $30.81 $23.2¢
200¢ First Quarter (July, Aug., Sej— 2007) $34.3¢  $23.8¢
Second Quarter (Oct., Nov., De— 2007) $35.3¢ $26.5¢
Third Quarter (Jan., Feb., Mar— 2008) $35.4: $27.51
Fourth Quarter (April, May, Jur— 2008) $32.9: $26.87

As of August 13, 2008, there were 1,001 sharehsldérecord of our common stock.

Dividends

We have paid a cash dividend on our common stac&doh calendar year beginning in calendar yea®.200r board of directors has
discretion in determining whether to declare adfvid based on a number of factors including prenpdold prices, economic market
conditions and funding requirements for future apyadities or operations.

For calendar year 2008, we announced an annualetisiof $0.28 per share of common stock, payatieuinquarterly payments of $0.07
each. The first payment of $0.07 per share was roade

January 18, 2008, to shareholders of record ae@dbbusiness on January 4, 2008. The second payh#8.07 per share was made on
April 18, 2008, to shareholders of record at tleselof business on April 4, 2008. The third paynoéi$0.07 per share was made on July 18,
2008, to shareholders of record at the close dhkas on July 3, 2008. We anticipate paying thetfopayment of $0.07 per share on
October 17, 2008, to shareholders of record atlise of business on October 3, 2008.

For calendar year 2007, we paid an annual dividgi®D.26 per share of common stock, in four qurieayments of $0.065 each. We paid
first payment of $0.065 per share on January 197 2® shareholders of record at the close of lassiton January 5, 2007. We paid the seconc
payment of $0.065 per share on April 20, 2007 hersholders of record at the close of businessmii B, 2007. We paid the third payment of
$0.065 per share on July 20, 2007 to shareholdeesord at the close of business on July 6, 200& paid the fourth payment of $0.065 per
share on October 19, 2007, to shareholders of deatthe close of business on October 5, 2007.

For calendar year 2006, we paid an annual dividgi®D.22 per share of common stock, in four qurieayments of $0.055 each. We paid
first payment of $0.055 per share on January 206 2® shareholders of record at the close of lassiton January 6, 2006. We paid the seconc
payment of $0.055 per share on April 21, 2006 hersholders of record at the close of businessmii A 2006. We paid the third payment of
$0.055 per share on July 28, 2006 to shareholdeesord at the close of business on July 7, 2006 paid the fourth payment of $0.055 per
share on October 20, 2006, to shareholders of deatathe close of business on October 6, 2006.

34




Table of Contents

We currently plan to pay dividends on a calendar yasis, subject to the discretion of our boardifctors. However, our board of directors
may determine not to declare a dividend basedmmaber of factors including the gold price, econoard market conditions and the finan
needs of opportunities that might arise in theritu

Sales of Unregistered Securities

We did not make any unregistered sales of our g&=iduring the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Selected Statements of Operations Data

For The Fiscal Years Ended June

Amounts in thousands, except per share 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Royalty revenut $69,39: $48,35] $28,38( $25,30: $21,35:¢
Costs of operatior 3,81¢ 3,26t 2,28¢ 1,843 1,51z
General and administrative expel 7,20¢ 5,82¢ 5,022 3,69t 2,92
Exploration and business developm 4,07¢ 2,49: 3,391 1,89: 1,392
Depreciation, depletion and amortizati 18,36¢ 8,26¢ 4,261 3,20t 3,31«
Current and deferred tax expel 12,92¢ 9,54¢ 5,101 4,10z 3,65¢
Net income 26,10¢ 19,72( 11,35( 11,45 8,87:
Net income available to common stockholc 21,32( 19,72( 11,35( 11,45 8,87:
Basic earnings per she 0.6¢ 0.7¢ 0.5C 0.5t 0.4z
Diluted earnings per sha 0.6¢ 0.7¢ 0.4¢ 0.54 0.4z
Common dividends declared per sh® 0.2¢ 0.2t 0.2z 0.1¢ 0.1t

(M The 2008, 2007, 2006, 2005 and 2004 calendardrei@iends were $0.28, $0.26, $0.22,$0.20 and $0ekpectively, as approved by our
board of directors. Please refer to Item 5 of thort for further information on our common dividks.

Selected Balance Sheet Data

For The Fiscal Years Ended June

Amounts in thousanc 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Total asset $546,28¢ $356,64¢ $171,76! $102,15¢ $93,21¢
Working capital 204,10¢ 90,99t 81,45: 53,33( 49,46(
Royalty interests in mineral properties, 300,67( 215,83¢ 84,59( 44,817 40,32¢
Note payable 15,75( 15,75( — — —
Other lon¢-term liabilities 504 98 98 97 103
Net deferred tax liabilitie 26,03« 5,911 6,68 7,42¢ 7,772
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion provides information thaanagement believes is relevant to an assessnmetnhaerstanding of the consolidated
financial condition and results of operations of/RldGold and its subsidiaries. This discussion agsies matters we consider important for an
understanding of our financial condition and resoftoperations as of and for the three fiscal yeaded June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006.

Overview

Royal Gold, together with its subsidiaries, is eygghin the business of acquiring and managing pusainetals royalties. Royalties are passive
(non-operating) interests in mining projects thatvide the right to revenue or production from gineject after deducting specified costs, if
any.

We seek to acquire existing royalties or to finapagects that are in production or near productioexchange for royalty interests. We are
engaged in a continual review of opportunitiesdquire existing royalties, to create new royaltt@®ugh the financing of mine developmen
exploration, or to acquire companies that hold ltis® We currently, and generally at any time,éaequisition opportunities in various stages
of active review, including, for example, our engagnt of consultants and advisors to analyze pdatiopportunities, analysis of technical,
financial and other confidential information, sulsgion of indications of interest, participationpireliminary discussions and involvement as a
bidder in competitive auctions. We also fund exafimn on properties thought to contain preciousatsetnd seek to obtain royalties and other
carried ownership interests in such propertiesufinahe subsequent transfer of operating intetesither mining companies. Substantially all
of our revenues are and will be expected to berddrirom royalty interests. We do not conduct mynaperations at this time. During the 2008
fiscal year, we focused on the management of oigtieg royalty interests, the acquisition of royaititerests, and the creation of royalty
interests through financing and strategic exploraélliances.

Our financial results are primarily tied to thegeriof gold and other metals, as well as produdtiom our producing stage royalty interests.
price of gold and other metals have fluctuated Wyidkerecent years. The average price of gold perce during our fiscal year 2008, 2007 and
2006 was $821, $638 and $527, respectively. Thé&etetility and the price of gold are influencedriymerous factors beyond the control of
the Company and may have a material and adverset effi the Company’s results of operations anchfiiz condition.

The increase in the average gold price, the coatimamp-up of gold production at the Taparko aneMilke mines, increased production at
Robinson and Leeville, and production from the nélgeacquired Battle Mountain royalties, contribadite royalty revenue of $69.4 million
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, condpareoyalty revenue of $48.4 million during thedal year ended June 30, 2007. The
increase in our royalty revenue during the fisedry2008 was slightly offset due to a decreaseddyztion at the Cortez and certain other of
our principal producing royalties.

Please see Part I, Item 1, Business, and Paei, 2 Properties, of this Annual Report on FornKifer discussion on Royal Golgl’producing
development stage and exploration stage royalgrasts.

Royalty Acquisitions

Marigold and El Chanat

On February 20, 2008, we acquired three royalti@®s fAngloGold Ashanti (U.S.A.) Exploration Inc. (hyloGold’), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of AngloGold Ashanti North America Infor $13.75 million. The first royalty is a 2.0% RSoyalty on the Marigold mine, located
on the Battle Mountain-
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Eureka trend in Nevada, and operated by Goldcdip.second royalty is a 2.0-4.0% sliding-scale N&Rity on the El Chanate mine, located
in Sonora, Mexico, and operated by Capital Golc ffird royalty is a 10.0% NPI royalty, also on feChanate mine. The sliding-scale
royalty is capped once payments of approximateR.&nillion have been received while the 10.0% NRhlty is capped at $1.0 million.

The Marigold mine is a large scale, open-pit, Heagh operation. The 2.0% NSR royalty interest bosdthe majority of six sections of land,
containing a number of open pits, but does not cthes current mining area in the Basalt/Antler afgaproximately 38% of the current
reserves are covered by this royalty. AccordinGtddcorp’s December 31, 2007, reserve statemesgrves subject to our royalty include
44.59 million tons of ore, at a grade of 0.019 @sper ton, containing about 0.867 million oundegotd . We estimate this royalty will begin
generating royalty revenue in calendar 2011 whaeringioperations move into areas covered by ourltpy@erests. The Marigold 2.0% NSR
royalty is classified as a development stage rgyaterest on the Company’s consolidated balaneetsh

According to Capital Gold’s reserve statement opt&aber 4, 2007, El Chanate contains proven arlohjpte reserves of 43.5 million tons of
ore, at a grade of 0.019 ounces per ton, contakgogit 832,000 ounces of gold. The open-pit mirtehaap leach operation commenced
production in mid-2007 and Capital Gold estimatexipction of approximately 60,000 ounces of goldafendar 2008, with a potential
expansion to 100,000 ounces per year in calendzd.Zthe El Chanate sliding-scale royalty pays r@te of 2.0% when the average gold price
is below $300 per ounce, 3.0% when the gold pedeeiween $300 and $350 per ounce, and 4.0% whegoth price is above $350 per our
Including royalty payments made to AngloGold, theaee been cumulative payments made on the sl&tiafe NSR royalty of $1.1 million,
resulting in $15.9 million remaining under the L illion cap as of June 30, 2008. There have Ipeapayments made on the NPI royalty as
of June 30, 2008; however, the Company has acapprbximately $0.5 million as of June 30, 2008,tfer NPI royalty based on information
received from Capital Gold. The NPI royalty is pblgin February 2009. The El Chanate sliding-sealg NPI royalties are classified as
production stage royalty interests on the Compacgisolidated balance sheets.

Bensc

On December 7, 2007, Royal Gold paid $1.875 miltmirairWest Energy in exchange for a 1.5% NSRItpyn gold produced from the
Benso concession in the Western Region of the RigpofoGhana, West Africa. The Benso concessiontrmdled by Golden Star, is located
approximately 25 miles south of Golden Star’'s Wamg#e. Golden Star has reported that, as of Jun2Q, the project contains 252,000
ounces of probable reserves, consisting of 2.5Homitons of ore, at a grade of 0.099 ounces perThe operator expects production to
commence during the third quarter of calendar 200@. Benso royalty is classified as a developmegesroyalty interest on the Company’s
consolidated balance sheets.

Other developments

Please also see the “Liquidity and Capital Resalrsection below within this Item 7 for discussiofour Preferred Stock offering, credit
facility amendment, stock repurchase program ahdratecent liquidity and capital developments.
Agreement to acquire Barrick royalty portfo

On July 30, 2008, we entered into a definitive agrent to acquire a portfolio of royalties from Bekrin exchange for net cash consideration
of $150 million and a restructuring of certain Rb@ald royalty positions at Cortez, which is opeby Barrick. The Barrick royalty portfolio
consists of royalties on 77 properties, includifgheproducing royalties, two development staggqmts and 67 exploration
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stage properties. Eighteen of the exploration spaggects are considered to be in an evaluatioyesss these properties are engaged in the
search for reserves but currently contain additiorineralized material. Over 75% of the portfoliansists of precious metals royalties and
complements our existing geographical royalty pas# with significant growth into Canada and Aukdra

We will pay Barrick net cash of $150 million andluee certain of our royalty positions at Cortezjohtare described further in Item 2,
Properties, of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Téstructuring of certain Cortez royalty positionsludes the reduction of the GSR2 sliding-
scale royalty rate ranging from 0.72%-9.0%, to hdte current GSR1 sliding-scale royalty rate ragdgrom 0.40%65.0%. In addition, we wil
also eliminate our interest in the 0.71% GSR3 &wed\VR1 (non-consolidated minority interest porjiooyalties on the mining claims that
comprise the undeveloped Crossroads deposit atZ@arrick has announced that it is currently gt exploration and engineering
resources to advance the development of the Cradsmbeposit and is targeting over 1.0 million osnaiereserves by calendar year end 2008.
The GSR3 and NVRL1 royalties which cover areas deatsf the Crossroads deposit will not be affectethis transaction. GSR2, as reduced,
will continue to apply to the Crossroads deposit.

The royalty portfolio, which was assembled by Bakrand various predecessor companies, includincePl2ome, Lac Minerals, AurionGold,
Delta Gold and Plutonic generated approximately i®ilRon in royalty revenue in calendar 2007. Thengpany expects royalty revenues to
grow within this portfolio, assuming current comntggrices and as development stage projects coroenproduction. The key assets in the
Barrick royalty portfolio include the following pperties:

Mulatos—A sliding-scale NSR royalty currently pagi.5% on Alamos’ Mulatos mine. We currently owf.80%-1.50% sliding-scale
NSR royalty on the property. This acquisition cditedes the Mulatos royalty and increases our cuinr@yalty interest from 1.5% to 5.0%,
at current commodity prices. The royalty is cappe#.0 million gold ounces of production and apjmately 248,000 gold ounces have
been produced through June 30, 2008;

Malartic—A 2.0%-3.0% sliding-scale NSR royalty dretCanadian Malartic gold project, owned by Osisloing Corporation (“Osisko”).
Osisko anticipates releasing additional mineralimederial estimates on Malartic in the third cakmnguarter of 2008 and expects to
complete feasibility work in the fourth calendaageer of 2008. The royalty is subject to a buy daight and a right of first refusal;

Siguiri—A sliding-scale NSR royalty currently pagiri.875% on the Siguiri gold mine in Guinea, Wektoa, operated by AngloGold
Ashanti. The royalty is capped on a dollar basts @pproximately $15 million remains to be paid;

Mt. Goode/Cosmos—A 1.5% NSR royalty covering aiparbf Xstrata’s Cosmos nickel mine in Australialakge portion of the royalty
interest is located to the south of the CosmosGosimos Deeps ore bodies and includes potentiaiefgiwduction from identified
mineralization, including Tapinos, Prospero and Adé&posits; and

Allan—A 40% interest in a sliding-scale royalty Botash Corporation of Saskatchewan’s potash muetdd in Canada. The royalty is
currently paying at a rate of $1.44 per ton relativ production, subject to reductions based omanproduction.

The purchase price for the acquisition will be piagin cash on hand at closing. The acquisitiorulgext to customary closing conditions ar
expected to close on October 1, 2008.
Proposed Acquisition of Royalties at Limpopo PlatmProject

On April 3, 2008, Royal Gold entered into a lettéintent to acquire two royalties from MinEx Proije Pty Ltd (“MinEx”) on the Limpopo
platinum project in South Africa for $19.25 milliomhe first royalty
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is a fixed 0.704% NSR royalty on the producing Mesdease area and the second royalty in a 1.5% &StRe norproducing Dwaalkop lea:
area, both of which are located within the Limpgpoject area approximately 120 miles north of Jolesburg, South Africa. The transactio
subject to definitive documentation, completiordak diligence, and board approval, and acquisgfdhe Dwaalkop royalty is subject to a
right of first refusal. The letter of intent is liimg and governed by the laws of the Republic aftB&frica.

Acquisition of Battle Mountain Gold Exploration Qo

On October 24, 2007, we acquired 100% of the issmeldoutstanding capital stock of Battle Mountaimitransaction whereby our wholly-
owned subsidiary, Royal Battle Mountain, Inc., wasrged with and into Battle Mountain, with Battlehtain surviving as a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Royal Gold. The aggregate considenatonsisted of 1.14 million shares of our commtoglsand approximately $3.4 million in
cash.

Subiject to settlement of the Battle Mountain litiga discussed below, additional considerationpfaian aggregate of 37,418 shares of Royal
Gold common stock and approximately $0.1 milliocéash may be paid to Battle Mountain stockhold®rs September 13, 2006, an action
was filed against Battle Mountain and its formeaiman and Chief Executive Officer, Mark Kucher,Xames E. McKay, a former officer &
director of Battle Mountain, in the second Judi€alurt of the State of Nevada. The action seelentorce alleged rights to certain shares of
Battle Mountain common stock and options to puretsisares of Battle Mountain common stock pursuaatdtock option agreement and a
stock option plan, and unspecified damages. Rogéd @Gay pay the additional consideration descrieolve to Battle Mountain stockholders
depending upon the cost of settling this litigation

As part of the acquisition of Battle Mountain, wegjaired thirteen royalty interests in various sgageproduction, development or exploration.
The Company recognized approximately $2.8 milliomdyalty revenue associated with the acquiredi®atbuntain production stage royalty
interests from the date of acquisition through Ja@e2008.

The key royalty interest acquired in the Battle Mtain acquisition was a 1.25% NSR royalty on gald a 2.0% NSR royalty on both gold ¢
silver from the Dolores project, located in ChihuahMexico, and owned and operated by Minefindeng. 2.0% NSR royalty becomes
effective when the facility has been producing%#67of its design capacity for three consecutive tmenn February 2006, Minefinders
received an optimized bankable feasibility studgt approved the mine construction on the DoloregeptoMinefinders announced in

July 2008 that initial gold and silver pours frohetDolores mine have been delayed until the lateign of third calendar quarter of 2008. The
mine plan estimates a 12 year mine life.

We carry our interest in the proven and probaldemees at the Dolores project as a development staglty interest, which is not currently
subject to amortization. The remaining portionhe Dolores royalty, which is not currently asscaibatvith proven and probable reserves, is
classified as an exploration stage royalty intea@st is not currently subject to amortization.

Please refer to Note 2 of the notes to consolidiitethcial statements for further discussion onabeuisition of Battle Mountain.

Operators’ Production Estimates by Royalty for Calendar 2008

We received production estimates from the operatbosir producing mines during the first calendaager of 2008. The following table
shows such production estimates for calendar 26Q@8edl as the actual production reported to ushewarious operators for the six months
ended June 30, 2008. The estimates and produetmmts are prepared by the operators of the mimiagerties. We do not
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participate in the preparation or calculation @& tperators’ estimates or production reports ane hat independently assessed or verified the
accuracy of such information.

Operators’ Production Estimate by Royalty for Cden2008 and Reported Production
For the period January 1, 2008 through June 308 200

Calendar 2008 Operator’s Production Reported Production through
Estimate (1) June 30, 20082
Gold Silver Copper Gold Silver Copper

Royalty (0z.) (0z.) (Ibs.) (0z.) (0z.) (Ibs.)
Cortez GSR: 316,00( — — 141,44¢ — —
Cortez GSR:®) 51,00( — — 20,36: — —
Cortez GSR®) 367,00( — — 161,81( — —
Cortez NVR1®) 242,00( — — 86,12( — —
SJ Claims 792,00( — — 327,80: — —
Leeville 415,00( — — 212,67¢ — —
Taparka 91,00( — — 27,28( — —
Pefiasquit(4 67,00( 2.3 million — 1,61¢ 91,60: —
Dolores®) 40,00( 1.0 million — — — —
Don Mario® N/A — — 41,16: — —
Williams 126,00( — — 68,09: — —
El Limon 43,00( — — 21,21( — —
Bald Mountain 28,00( — — 17,29: — —
Mulatos 120,00( — — 68,58¢ — —
El Chanate(® 50,00( — — 20,90¢ — —
Benso 25,00( — — — — —
Martha(®.9) — 3.2 million — — 1.8 million —
Robinson(®.10) 115,00( — 150 million 67,71¢ — 77.6 million
Troy 1) — 1.4 million 12.5 million — 448,73: 4.4 million

(I There can be no assurance that these productiomagss will be achieved. Please refer to our caatip language regarding forwe
looking statements and to the risk factors idegdifin Part |, Item 1A, of this Annual Report on Fot0-K for information regarding
factors that could affect actual resu

@ Reported production relates to the amount of hseflas, subject to our royalty interests, forpleiod January 1, 2008 through June 30,
2008, as reported to us by the operators of thest

(®  Upon the consummation of the royalty acquisiti@ngaction between Royal Gold and Barrick, GSR2Mvlteduced to match the roy:
rate of GSR1 and the portion of the GSR3 and NMiAlties on the mining claims that comprise theawedoped Crossroads deposit at
Cortez will be eliminated. None of the productictimates shown are attributable to the Crossroepssit.

@  Reported production estimate relates to the oxiaeit. Goldcorp recently reported that construetis progressing at Pefiasquito and
several construction milestones were completechduhie second calendar quarter of 2008. In May 2B@8asquito poured the first gold
from the oxide circuit. Goldcorp expects productarPefiasquito from the first sulfide circuit biel@alendar 2009 and expects the
second sulfide circuit to be operational near the @& calendar 201(

®)  Minefinders announced in July 2008 that initialguotion from the Dolores mine has been delayed tigilater portion of third calend
quarter of 2008 due to a blockade that was estaddiin May 2008 by a group of protestors. Minefirsdeso announced that the revised
timing (from mid-July 2008) for the initial produet will affect previously released calendar 2008duction estimates, but did not
provide updated guidanc

(6)  The operator at Don Mario did not provide us a paitn estimate for calendar 20(
(M Reported production is for the period from the dztacquisition through June 30, 20!
®  Recovered metal contained in concentrate and sufojélsird party treatment charges and recovergds:
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®  Asdiscussed in Coeur d’Alene’s National Instram43-101 report of the Canadian Securities Adniaiion filed as of December 31,
2007, it was estimated that the Martha mine woutitlpce approximately 5.0 million ounces of silveridg calendar 2008. During the
second calendar quarter of 2008, Coeur d’Alene amoed that estimated production at the Martha mioeld be approximately
3.2 million ounces of silver for calendar 2008. T@mpany has revised Martha production herein adoghy.

(100 As a result of strong performance at Robinsoaubh the first six months of calendar 2008, Quadirounced in July 2008 that it
increased its 2008 annual metal production guidémee 130 million pounds to 150 million pounds @fpper and from 100,000 ounce:
115,000 ounces of gol

(11)  Recovered metal contained in concentrate and sufojélsird party recovery losse

The following table discloses historical production the properties that are subject to our royadtgrests, as reported to us by the operators o
the mines, for the past three fiscal years:

Historical Productio) by Royalty
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30,

Royalty Metal 2008 2007 2006
Cortez GSR: Gold 400,39¢ oz. 502,62¢ oz. 598,97+ oz.
Cortez GSR: Gold 35,75: oz. 7,647 oz. —
Cortez GSR: Gold 436,14¢ oz. 510,27 oz. 598,97+ oz.
Cortez NVR1 Gold 127,19¢ oz. 291,96 oz. 263,22 oz.
Robinson Gold 120,87 oz. 80,60 oz. 13,087 oz.
SJ Claims Gold 698,48¢ oz. 950,46: oz. 1.0 million oz.
Leeville Gold 360,81 oz. 230,45¢ oz. 83,69¢ oz.
Bald Mountain Gold 50,14: oz. 109,51! oz. 126,31° oz.
Mulatos Gold 120,93: oz. 103,26: oz. 23,91: oz.
Taparko®@ Gold 36,07¢ oz. N/A N/A
El Chanate®) Gold 20,90¢ oz. N/A N/A
Don Mario®) Gold 63,41¢ oz. N/A N/A
El Limon @ Gold 28,38 oz. N/A N/A
Williams 4 Gold 105,89¢ oz. N/A N/A
Troy Silver 744,00¢ oz. 1.0 million oz. 884,52¢ oz.
Martha Silver 3.2 million oz. 2.9 million oz. 2.3 million oz.
Troy Coppet 7.1 million Ibs. 9.6 million Ibs. 7.1 million Ibs.
Robinson Coppet 139.0 millior Ibs. 116.9 millior Ibs. 27.2 millior Ibs.

(1) Reported production relates to the amount of hsafles, subject to our royalty interests, throdghe 30, 2008, as reported to us by the
operators of the mine

(@ Production commenced during the quarter ended Bdéyeie30, 2007
®  Royalty was acquired in February 20
@  Royalty was acquired on October 24, 2007, as gdheoacquisition of Battle Mountai
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Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In March 2008, the Financial Accounting Standardarfd (“FASB”) issued Statement No. 16Djsclosures about Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activitie—an amendment of FASB Statement No. I33FAS 161”). SFAS 161 intends to improve financigborting about
derivative instruments and hedging activities yuieng enhanced disclosures to enable investobgtier understand their effects on an
entity’s financial position, financial performanaad cash flows. SFAS 161 also requires disclodoo@tzan entity’s strategy and objectives for
using derivatives, the fair values of derivativetinments and their related gains and losses. SBASs effective for fiscal years and interim
periods beginning after November 15, 2008, andlvélhpplicable to the Company’s fiscal year begigriiuly 1, 2009. The Company is
evaluating the impact, if any, the adoption of SF3 could have on its financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement No(re4dsed 2007);Business Combinations,(*SFAS 141R"), which significantly changes
the ways companies account for business combirsatiod will generally require more assets acquiretliabilities assumed to be measured at
their acquisition date fair value. Under SFAS 14iEgal fees and other transaction-related costexgensed as incurred and are no longer
included in goodwill as a cost of acquiring theihass. SFAS 141R also requires, among other thawggjirers to estimate the acquisition date
fair value of any contingent consideration andettognize any subsequent changes in the fair védloentingent consideration in earnings. In
addition, restructuring costs the acquirer expedtetiwas not obligated to incur, will be recogrizeparately from the business acquisition.
SFAS 141R is effective for the Company’s fiscalneaginning July 1, 2009, and is to be applied pectively. The Company is evaluating the
impact, if any, the adoption of SFAS 141R couldéam its financial statements.

Also in December 2007, the FASB issued Statementll0,“Non-controlling Interests in Consolidated Finantiatatements, an amendment
of ARB No. 51(“SFAS 160”). SFAS 160 requires all entities toogmon-controlling interests in subsidiaries aeparate component of
equity in the consolidated financial statementsASH60 establishes a single method of accountingifanges in a parent’s ownership interest
in a subsidiary that do not result in deconsol@atiCompanies will no longer recognize a gain sslon partial disposals of a subsidiary where
control is retained. In addition, in partial acdtigsms, where control is obtained, the acquiringhpany will recognize and measure at fair value
100 percent of the assets and liabilities, inclgdionodwill, as if the entire target company hadnbeequired. SFAS 160 is effective for the
Company'’s fiscal year beginning July 1, 2009, antbibe applied prospectively. The Company is atalg the impact, if any, the adoption of
SFAS 160 could have on its financial statements.

In June 2007, the Emerging Issues Task Force (“Blfgached consensus on Issue No. 06Aldcounting for Income Tax Benefits of
Dividends on Sha-Based Payment AwardsEITF Issue No. 06-11 requires that the tax bemelitted to dividend and dividend equivalents
paid on equity-classified nonvested shares andesiad share units, which are expected to vesedmrded as an increase to additional paid-in
capital. EITF No. 06t1 is to be applied prospectively for tax benaditsdividends declared in our fiscal year beginnlaly 1, 2008. We do n
expect the adoption of EITF 06-11 to have a mdteripact on our consolidated financial statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement No, “1%8e Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Rioal Liabilities,” (“SFAS 159”)
which allows entities to choose to measure margniiial instruments and certain other items atvalne. The provisions of SFAS 159 are
effective for our fiscal year beginning July 1, 830@nd interim periods within the fiscal year. Wernbt expect the adoption of SFAS 159 to
have a material impact on our consolidated findreta&tements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement Nf.Feir Value Measuremen{§SFAS 157”). SFAS 157 provides guidance for udiaig
value to measure assets and liabilities. SFAS pplies whenever other accounting standards regoirpermit) assets or liabilities to be
measured at fair value
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but does not expand the use of fair value in any ciecumstances. Under SFAS 157, fair value retiethe price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability betweentigipants in the market in which the reportingigntransacts. In this standard, the FASB
clarifies the principle that fair value should kesbd on the assumptions market participants waddmnen pricing the asset or liability. The
provisions of SFAS 157 are effective for our fisgahr beginning July 1, 2008, and interim periodtbiw the fiscal year. We do not expect the
adoption of SFAS 157 to have a material impactanconsolidated financial statements.

On July 13, 2006, Financial Accounting StandardarBq“FASB”) Interpretation No. 48 (“FIN 48”Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes — An Interpretation of FASB Statement No., W8 issued. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting fiocertainty in income taxes recognized
in a company’s financial statements in accordanite 8FAS 109. FIN 48 also prescribes a recognitimashold and measurement attribute for
the financial statement recognition and measuremietaix position taken or expected to be takentaxareturn. FIN 48 also provides guidance
on de-recognition, classification, interest andgiées, accounting in interim periods, disclosuaned transition. The Company adopted FIN 48
on July 1, 2007. Refer to Note 11 for a discussegarding the effect of adopting FIN 48.

Critical Accounting Policies

Listed below are the accounting policies that tlhenfany believes are critical to its financial sta¢gts due to the degree of uncertainty
regarding the estimates or assumptions involvedfamdnagnitude of the asset, liability, revenuexpense being reported.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of our financial statements, infeonity with accounting principles generally acaegin the United States of America,
requires management to make estimates and assms\plioese estimates and assumptions affect thetedpmmounts of assets and liabilities,
at the date of the financial statements, as welh@aseported amount of revenues and expensesydiereporting period.

Our most critical accounting estimates relate toamsumptions regarding future gold prices ancettienates of reserves and recoveries of
third-party mine operators. We rely on reservenestes reported by the operators on the propertiediich we have royalty interests. These
estimates and the underlying assumptions affegbdtential impairments of long-lived assets andahiity to realize income tax benefits
associated with deferred tax assets. These esirmaattassumptions also affect the rate at whicbhhaege depreciation, depletion and
amortization to earnings. On an ongoing basis, @ment evaluates these estimates and assumptawsyér, actual amounts could differ
from these estimates and assumptions.

Royalty Interests in Mineral Properties

As of June 30, 2008, the net carrying value of ltyyiaterests in mineral properties was approxiya$300.7 million. Royalty interests in
mineral properties include acquired royalty intésés production stage, development stage and esdiidon stage properties. The fair value of
acquired royalty interests in mineral properties @apitalized as tangible assets when such insedestot meet the definition of a financial
asset under the FASB Statement of Financial Acc8tartdards (“SFAS”) No. 14@ccounting for Transfers and Servicing of Finandakets
and Extinguishments of Liabilities — a ReplacemehfsASB Statement No. 126r a derivative instrument under SFAS No. 188counting
for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activit.

Acquisition costs of production and developmengsteoyalty interests are depleted using the uriggaduction method over the life of the
mineral property, which is estimated using proved probable reserves. Acquisition costs of roymitgrests on exploration stage mineral
properties, where there are no proven and prolyabrves, are not amortized. At such time as tbecéted exploration stage mineral
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interests are converted to proven and probablewesethe cost basis is amortized over the remgilifiea of the mineral property, using proven
and probable reserves. The carrying values of exfiim stage mineral interests are evaluated fpairment at such time as information
becomes available indicating that the productiolhnat occur in the future. Exploration costs akpensed when incurred.

Royalty Revenue

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, we rezednioyalty revenue of approximately $69.4 milli&ayalty revenue is recognized pursuant
to guidance in Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 1(Revenue Recognition for Financial StatemeiRgvenue is recognized in accordance with the
terms of the underlying royalty agreements sulife¢i) the pervasive evidence of the existencédnefdrrangements; (ii) the risks and rewards
having been transferred; (iii) the royalty beingefi or determinable; and (iv) the collectabilitytibé royalty being reasonably assured. For
royalty payments received in gold, royalty reveisugzcorded at the average spot price of goldHermteriod in which the royalty was earned.

Revenue recognized pursuant to the Robinson roggltygement is based upon three percent of revexee/ed by the operator of the mine,
Quadra, for the sale of minerals from the Robinsdme, reduced by certain costs incurred by Quaduadra’s concentrate sales contracts with
third-party smelters, in general, provide for aitiah payment based upon provisional assays antequoetal prices at the date of shipment.
Final true up payments are subsequently based firgdrassays and market metal prices set on afggfiiture dates, typically one to three
months after the date the concentrate arriveseathiid-party smelter (which generally occurs thi@six months after the shipment date from
the Robinson mine).

Royal Gold recognizes revenue under the Robinsgaltyoagreement based on amounts contractuallypdusuant to the calculations above
the underlying sale. As a result of pricing vanas in gold, silver and copper over the respec@tdement period, royalty revenue recognized
on the Robinson royalty could be positively or nagdy impacted by any changes in metal priceswben the provisional and final settlement
periods.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Overview

At June 30, 2008, we had current assets of $21illidmcompared to current liabilities of $7.3 midlh for a current ratio of 29 to 1. This
compares to current assets of $95.7 million andeatifiabilities of $4.7 million at June 30, 200@sulting in a current ratio of approximately

20 to 1. Our current ratio increased during thegokeprimarily due to an increase in cash and edenta, which was largely due to net proceeds
received from the issuance of preferred stockedléd our November 2007 preferred stock offeringgussed below, of approximately $111.1
million as well as cash received during the fisezdr 2008 from royalty revenue of approximately .$6#&illion. This increase in cash and
equivalents was partially offset by cash paid as gfethe acquisition of Battle Mountain of apprmately $3.4 million, cash paid for common
and preferred stock dividends of approximately $Tiillion and cash paid during the period for rdyalcquisitions and income taxes of
approximately $16.2 million and $13.3 million, resgively.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, liguideeds were met from $69.4 million in royalty eaues (including $1.4 million of minority
interest royalty revenue), net proceeds from isseiari preferred stock related to our November 2@@Terred stock offering of approximately
$111.1 million, our available cash resources ater@st and other income of $6.7 million. Also dgrthe fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, our
total assets increased to $546.3 million compavegB66.6 million at June 30, 2007. The increasepvasarily attributable to net cash
proceeds received from our November 2007 prefesteck offering of approximately $111.1 million atieé preliminary allocation of
approximately $85.5 million in royalty interestsririneral properties as part of the Battle Mountain
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acquisition. At June30, 2008, our cash and equiNalas shown on the consolidated balance shee¢spsierarily held in money market
accounts which are invested in United States trgdsills or United States treasury backed secwiti@e are not invested in auction rate
securities. The Company has not experienced asgs$a®lated to these balances and managementdseiligeredit risk to be minimal.

We believe that our current financial resourcesfands generated from operations will be adequatover anticipated expenditures for
general and administrative expense costs, expboratnd business development costs, and capitahdikpees for the foreseeable future. Our
current financial resources are also availabledgalty acquisitions and to fund dividends. Ourdeterm capital requirements are primarily
affected by our ongoing acquisition activitiestte event of a substantial royalty or other actjoisj we may seek additional debt or equity
financing opportunities.

Recent Liquidity and Capital Resource Developments

Stock Repurchase Program

On January 25, 2008, the Company announced thatodtsl of directors authorized the repurchase dbu§80.0 million of its common stock
the open market through March 31, 2008. The tinaind number of shares repurchased through March(8B, depended on market
conditions and other corporate considerations.fAdarch 31, 2008, the Company repurchased 196,886won shares, at an average price of
$28.00 per common share for a total cost of apprately $5.5 million. The common share repurchasa®viunded through cash and cash
equivalents. The total cost to reacquire the 19B&@8nmon shares was includedTlireasury Stockn the Company’s consolidated balance
sheets as of March 31, 2008. The repurchase progmarsuant to the January 25, 2008, announcemeai¢deon March 31, 2008.

On April 2, 2008, the Company retired the 196,986 mon shares repurchased, pursuant to the Janbia?p@8, repurchase announcement.
The 196,986 common shares retired have been rettortee Company’s authorized but unissued amolucommon stock. Also, on June 20,
2008, the Company retired the remaining 229,224nsomshares held as treasury stock. The 229,224 conshvares retired have been retu
to the Company’s authorized but unissued amounbwrfmon stock. As of June 30, 2008, the Companyg&ascommon shares included in
treasury stock.

Amendment to Credit Facilii

On January 3, 2008, the Company entered into améiment of its existing credit facility with HSBC Bla USA, National Association. The
amendment extends the maturity date of the cradility two years from December 31, 2010 to Decen3de 2012. The amendment also
updated the assumptions used in the calculatidimeoborrowing base, which included an increas@énmbetal price assumption of gold and
added a metal price assumption for silver. Thedwairrg base calculation is recalculated as of Afiland October 15 each year. As of Jun
2008, the Company’s borrowing capacity under tlelicifacility was $70.8 million. Please refer toti@ of the notes to the consolidated
financial statements for a further discussion andtedit facility.

Common Stock Dividend Increase

On November 14, 2007, the Company announced ghhb#rd of directors increased the Company’s anjeagndar year) common stock
dividend from $0.26 per share to $0.28 per shagalple on a quarterly basis of $0.07 per share@wiheon stock, beginning with the quarterly
dividend paid on January 18, 2008.
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Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock Offer

On November 9, 2007, the Company completed anin§feaf 1,150,000 shares of 7.25% mandatory corderpireferred stock (the “Preferred
Stock”) at a price of $100.00 per share, less umdiEr discounts and other related expenses, regul net proceeds of $111.1 million.
Dividends on the Preferred Stock were payable cmnaulative basis when, as and if declared by oardof directors at an annual rate of
7.25% per share on the liquidation preference 60%der share. We were to pay dividends in cashpoamstock or a combination thereof, on
February 15, May 15, August 15 and November 15ache/ear to and including November 15, 2010, conuingnon February 15, 2008.

Under the original terms of the Preferred Stocleiffg, each share of the Preferred Stock was tinzatically convert on November 15, 2010,
into between 2.8335 and 3.4002 shares of our constomk, subject to anti-dilution adjustments. Ay @ime prior to November 15, 2010,
holders may have elected to convert each shafeed?teferred Stock into shares of our common sibthe minimum conversion rate of
2.8335 shares of common stock per share of thePeglf Stock, subject to ardilution adjustments. At any time prior to May 2508, we ma
have, at our option, caused the conversion obatlnot less than all, of the Preferred Stock sitares of our common stock at the provisional
conversion rate described within the Preferred IStdfering. However, we could not elect to exerase provisional conversion right if, on or
prior to May 15, 2008, we completed a material¢eation involving the acquisition of assets or aibess with a purchase price of

$100 million or more.

On January 10, 2008, the Company’s board of direateclared the regular quarterly dividend forfirst dividend period of $1.9333 per share
of the Preferred Stock. The dividend was paid dorfrary 15, 2008, to preferred shareholders of tkadthe close of business on February 1,
2008. The preferred dividend of $2.2 million wagdpa cash.

On January 25, 2008, the Company announced thgeitised its provisional conversion right foralthe issued and outstanding shares of its
Preferred Stock. As part of the provisional coniersight, each share of the Preferred Stock wasexed into shares of our common stocl
March 10, 2008 (the “Conversion Dateljpsed on the average closing price per common shatee Nasdaq over a 20 consecutive trading
period, which ended on March 5, 2008, as providetié Certificate of Designations of the Prefers@dck. The average closing price over the
20 consecutive trading day period was $29.78 anH eatstanding share of Preferred Stock was autoatlgtconverted into 3.4589 shares of
common stock on the Conversion Date. The Comparueis 3,977,683 shares of its common stock uponeesion of the Preferred Stock.

In connection with the conversion, all accrued angaid dividends on the Preferred Stock up to theversion Date were paid in cash at
$0.5035 per share of Preferred Stock, or $0.6 anillto holders of record on the Conversion Datedifg of the Preferred Stock on the
NASDAQ was suspended at the close of business anhvia 2008, and the Preferred Stock we-listed on March 24, 2008. The conversion
of the Preferred Stock into shares of our commoaokssimplified our capital structure and will si§joantly reduce our cost of capital due to
elimination of the 7.25% after tax Preferred Stdokdend payment. The Company applied a contingentficial conversion feature model to
account for the provisional conversion of the Pefg Stock during its third fiscal quarter of 2008ich resulted in the Company recognizir
deemed dividend of $2.0 million during our fiscalby 2008. There were no tax consequences to th@&ugnupon conversion of the Preferred
Stock.

Acquisition of Battle Mountain Gold Exploration Qo

On October 24, 2007, we acquired 100% of the issmeldoutstanding capital stock of Battle Mountaimitransaction whereby our wholly-
owned subsidiary, Royal Battle Mountain, Inc., wasrged with and into Battle Mountain, with Battlehtain surviving as a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Royal Gold, for aggregate considerationsisting of 1.14 million shares of our comnstock and approximately $3.4
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million in cash. At the time of acquisition, Batfiéountain had approximately $1.4 million in casked3e refer to Note 2 of the notes to
consolidated financial statements and “Other Dgualents” in this MD&A for further discussion on thequisition of Battle Mountain.

Contractual Obligations

Our contractual obligations as of June 30, 2008 aarfollows:

Payments Due by Period (in thousan

Less thar More thar
Contractual Obligation Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
Note payable®) $17,73: $ 52¢ $17,20: $ = $ =
Operating lease 904 18¢€ 631 87 —
Other lon¢-term obligations 94 26 53 15 —
Total $18,73( $ 741 $17,88: $ 10z $ —

(M Amounts represent principal ($15.75 million) antireated interest payments ($2.0 million) assumiagarly extinguishmen

For information on our contractual obligations, deses 7 and 15 of the notes to consolidated filstatements under Part Il, Item 8.
“Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” isfAmnual Report on Form 10-K. Royal Gold belieitesill be able to fund all existing
obligations from net cash provided by operatingvis.

Results of Operations

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008, Compared withaFiear Ended June 30, 2007

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, we redandeincome of $26.1 million, or $0.69 per basiare and $0.68 per diluted share (after
adjustments for preferred stock dividends and deedngdends), compared to net income of $19.7 onillior $0.79 per basic share and diluted
share, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007.

For fiscal year 2008, we received total royaltyerewe of $69.4 million (including $1.4 million of marity interest), at an average gold price of
$821 per ounce, compared to royalty revenue of4pasillion (including $1.5 million of minority inteyst), at an average gold price of $638 per
ounce for fiscal year 2007. Royalty revenue andctireesponding production, attributable to our ttyyaterests, for fiscal year 2008 compa

to fiscal year 2007 is as follows:
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Royalty Revenue and Production Subject to Our Rgyaterests
Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2008 and 2007
(In thousands, except reported production in ozd.lbs.)

Fiscal Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2008 June 30, 2007
Royalty Reported Royalty Reported
Royalty Metal Revenue Production @) Revenue Production @)
Cortez Gold $25,08¢ 436,14¢ oz. $21,48¢ 510,27: oz.
Robinsor $16,57¢ $12,57:
Gold 120,87 oz. 80,60 oz.
Copper 139.0 millior Ibs. 116.9 millior Ibs.
Taparko® Gold $ 7,43¢ 36,07¢ oz. N/A N/A
Leeville Gold $ 5,57( 360,81: oz. $ 2,661 230,45¢ oz.
Goldstrike— SJ Claims Gold $ 5,08¢ 698,48¢ oz. $ 5,46: 950,46: 0z.
Troy $ 2,53¢ $ 3,067
Silver 744,00¢ oz. 1.0 million oz.
Copper 7.1 million Ibs. 9.6 million Ibs.
Mulatos Gold $ 1,521 120,93: oz. $ 1,012 103,26: oz.
Don Mario® Gold $ 1,43( 63,41¢ oz. N/A N/A
El Chanate® Gold $ 1,081 20,90¢ oz. N/A N/A
Martha Silver $ 98¢ 3.2 million oz. $ 714 2.9 million oz.
El Limon ® Gold $ 70¢ 28,38t oz. N/A N/A
Williams 3) Gold $ 618 105,89¢ oz. N/A N/A
Bald Mountain Gold $ 607 50,141 oz. $ 1,281 109,51! oz.
Gold Hill Gold $ 10cC N/A $ 10cC N/A
Pefiasquito (oxide $ 59 N/A N/A
Gold 1,61¢ oz. N/A N/A
Silver 91,60! oz. N/A N/A
Joe Manr®) Gold $ 3 13¢€ N/A N/A
Total Revenue $69,39: $48,357

(O  Reported production relates to the amount of hsedas, subject to our royalty interests, fortithelve months ended June 30, 2008 and
June 30, 2007, as reported to us by the operatdng onines

(@ Receipt of royalty revenue commenced during thetquanded September 30, 20
(®  Royalty acquired on October 24, 2007, as part efitquisition of Battle Mountail

@ Royalty was acquired on February 20, 2008. Royaienue amount shown includes amounts recognizers figr both the slidir-scale
and NPI royalties. Please refer to “Recent Develapimi— Marigold and El Chanate Royalty Acquisitiomsthin this MD&A for further
discussion

The increase in royalty revenue for the fiscal yevadted June 30, 2008, compared with the fiscal greded June 30, 2007, resulted from an
increase in the average gold price, increased ptimfuat Robinson and Leeville, the continued ramppf gold production at the Taparko m
and production from the recently acquired Battleukitain production stage royalty interests. The iooetd ramp-up of production at the
Taparko mine contributed approximately $7.4 millinrroyalty revenue during the period, while protioie from the recently acquired Battle
Mountain royalties contributed approximately $2.8iom in royalty revenue during the period. Theiaase in royalty revenue was offset
slightly by decreases in production volume at tloet€z, Goldstrike — SJ Claims, Bald Mountain andylmine royalties.
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The Taparko mine commenced gold production in Aug087 and contributed approximately $7.4 milliarrdyalty revenue for our fiscal ye
2008. Reserve characteristics, mining activity, goldl recovery performance has been near feagibiiitdy estimates. However, mill
performance has suffered throughout our fiscal 2888 due to problems associated with the grindiiibdrive-train. This has resulted in low
mill availability and throughput. Several problemish the original installation were identified andrrected but mechanical problems have
persisted. Production was ceased on June 11, 2668he entire drive-train was re-evaluated ambig in the process of reassembly with the
assistance of third party mill equipment speciali§€tontinuous and sustained production is depengmnt resolving the mill drive-train
problems.

Cost of operations expenses increased to $3.8miitir the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, fror8 $8llion for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2007. The increase was primarily due to@ease in the Nevada Net Proceeds Tax (“NNPApease, which resulted from an
increase in royalty revenue from the Cortez, Léedhd Robinson royalties.

General and administrative expenses increased.2orfiiflion for the quarter ended June 30, 2008nf®5.8 million for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2007. The increase was primarily due to@ease in general corporate costs of approxign&@5 million, tax and consulting fees of
approximately $0.4 million, non-recurring generafforate costs associated with the preferred sifeking of approximately $0.2 million and
an increase in employee related costs of approgim&0.2 million.

Exploration and business development expensesasedeto $4.1 million for the fiscal year ended J8®e2008, from $2.5 million for the fisc
year ended June 30, 2007. The increase is dueitwi@ase in legal and consulting services forress development activities during
period.

The Company recorded total non-cash stock compensatpense related to our equity compensation @l&2.9 million for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2008, compared to $2.7 millionHerfiscal year ended June 30, 2007. Our non-cask sbmpensation is allocated among
cost of operations, general and administrative,eqdoration and business development in our citesteld statements of operations and
comprehensive income. Please refer to Note 8 ofithes to consolidated financial statements fah&mrdiscussion of our stock-based
compensation and the allocation of non-cash stoakpensation for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008007.

Depreciation, depletion and amortization increaseftl 8.4 million for the fiscal year ended June 3008, from $8.3 million for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2007. The increase was primarilyaltiee continued ramp-up of gold production atTaparko mine, which contributed
approximately $4.5 million in additional depletidaring the period. Depletion from the recently acegh Battle Mountain producing royalties
also contributed approximately $2.3 million in atlztial depletion during the period. An increas@iinduction at Robinson and Mulatos as
as the additional depletion from the recently aegiroyalties on the EI Chanate mine also resuttediditional depletion of approximately
$1.4 million over the prior period. Finally, an nrease in production at Leeville resulted in addiilodepletion of approximately $1.0 million
over the prior period.

Interest and other income increased to $6.7 miliawrthe fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, from $4ilBon for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2007. The increase is primarily due to an incréadends available for investing over the prioripdr which is due primarily to the preferred
stock offering completed in November 2007, as dised above in “Liquidity and Capital Resources’himtthis MD&A. The increase was
partially offset by lower interest rates on ourltas/estments when compared to the prior period.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, wegeized current and deferred tax expense totalirgg@illion compared with $9.5 million
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. Thiglted in an effective tax rate of 33.1% in therent period, compared with 32.6% in the p
period. The increase in our effective tax ratdesresult of the increase in the amount of forédgses for which no tax
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benefit is currently recognized, as well as andase in our non-cash stock compensation expenseiatesi with incentive stock options for
which there is no current tax deduction.

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007, Compared withaFi¥éear Ended June 30, 2006

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, we redangeincome of $19.7 million, or $0.79 per basiare and diluted share, as compared to net
income of $11.4 million, or $0.50 per basic share $0.49 per diluted share, for the fiscal yeareehiline 30, 2006.

For fiscal year 2007, we received total royaltyenewe of $48.4 million (including $1.7 million of nurity interest), at an average gold price of
$638 per ounce, compared to royalty revenue of4b@8llion, at an average gold price of $527 peramufor fiscal year 2006. Royalty revenue
and the corresponding production, attributableuoroyalty interests, for fiscal year 2007 compatietiscal year 2006 is as follows:

Royalty Revenue and Production Subject to Our Rgyaterests
Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2007 and 2006
(In thousands, except reported production ozs Izl

Fiscal Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2007 June 30, 2006
Royalty Reported Royalty Reported
Royalty Metal(s) Revenue Production ) Revenue Production @)
Cortez Gold $21,48¢ 510,27: oz. $16,81: 598,97: oz.
Robinson $12,57: $ 2,20¢
Gold 80,60: oz. 13,08: oz.
Copper 116.9 millior Ibs. 27.2 millior Ibs.
Goldstrike— SJ Claims Gold $ 5,46: 950,46: oz. $ 4,78¢ 1.0 million oz.
Troy $ 3,067 $ 1,69
Silver 1.0 million oz. 884,52¢ oz.
Copper 9.6 million Ibs. 7.1 million Ibs.
Leeville Gold $ 2,661 230,45¢ oz. $ 76¢ 83,69¢ oz.
Bald Mountain Gold $ 1,281 109,51! oz. $ 1,49 126,31 oz.
Mulatos(@) Gold $ 1,012 103,26: oz. $ 22t 23,91: oz.
Martha Silver $ 714 2.9 million oz. $ 401 2.3 million oz.
Gold Hill ® Gold $ 10C N/A $ N/A N/A
Total Revenue $48,357 $28,38(

(1) Reported production relates to the amount of hsefles, subject to our royalty interests, forfikeal years ended June 30, 2007 and
June 30, 2006, as reported to us by the operatdng anines

(@  Receipt of royalty revenue commenced during ourtfoguarter of fiscal year 200

(®  Royalty revenue received represents an annualagvroyalty payment per the Assignment and Mihiegse with Option to Purchase
between Round Mountain Gold and Royal Gold. Thed@#ll royalty was acquired during our second gerdf fiscal year 2007

The increase in royalty revenue for the fiscal yeradted June 30, 2007, compared with the fiscal greded June 30, 2006, resulted from an
increase in metal prices, increased productiohet eeville Mining Complex, the Troy mine, and & fiear of revenue from the Robinson and
Mulatos royalties. The consolidation of CrescenliéfaPartners, L.P. (“CVP"yontributed $1.6 million to royalty revenue durithg fiscal yea
ended June 30, 2007, $1.5 million of which is efiated from income as minority interest in incomeafsolidated subsidiary. See Note 16 to
the consolidated financial statements for furtidorimation.
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Cost of operations increased to $3.3 million fa tiscal year ended June 30, 2007, compared tori8n for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2006. The increase was mainly due to an increafeihNPT expense, which resulted primarily fronirarease in royalty revenue from the
Cortez, Leeville and Robinson royalties.

General and administrative expenses increased.8or#llion for the fiscal year ended June 30, 20mnpared to $5.0 million for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2006. The increase was pryntlud to an increase in legal fees of approximakélg million and accounting fees
approximately $0.2 million. These increases wenmarily the result of the internal review of stogftion matters and other corporate matters
during our third and fourth fiscal quarters of 2007

Exploration and business development expensesatextao $2.5 million for the fiscal year ended J8@e2007, compared to $3.4 million for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006. The decreas¢rmarily due to a decrease in exploration colktpproximately $0.2 million, a decrease
in non-cash compensation expense allocated to etlo and business development expense of appateiyn$0.2 million and a decrease in
consulting services for business development of@pmately $0.4 million, which is the result of t@®mpany completing royalty acquisitions
and capitalizing the related acquisition costs.

Depreciation and depletion increased to $8.3 mnilfir the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, comp@ar&d.3 million for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2006. The increase was primarily due diitiadal depletion incurred of approximately of $illion, as a result of the Robinson and
Mulatos royalty acquisitions during the fourth geearof fiscal year 2006. Increased production améharease in depletion rates for our
Leeville Mining Complex and Troy mine royalties uéied in additional depletion of approximately $aillion over the prior period.

The Company recorded total non-cash stock compensatpense related to our equity compensationspdé$2.7 million for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2007, compared to $2.8 millionHeffiscal year ended June 30, 2006. Our non-cask sbmpensation is allocated among
cost of operations, general and administrative,expdoration and business development in our cdsesteld statements of operations and
comprehensive income. The total non-cash compemseakipense allocated to cost of operations, geaathbdministrative expenses, and
exploration and business development expensebddidcal year ended June 30, 2007, was $0.4 mjl$ié.5 million and $0.8 million,
respectively, compared with $0.4 million, $1.5 moitl and $0.9 million, respectively, for the fisga@lar ended June 30, 2006.

Interest and other income increased to $4.3 miliarthe fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, compar&3.2 million for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2006. The increase is primarily due tbdrignterest rates, an increase in average furaitahle for investing over the prior period ¢
interest earned on the Battle Mountain bridge itgcil

Interest and other expense increased to $2.0 mildothe fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, compar&0.2 million for the period ended
June 30, 2006. The increase is due to interestchaidg the period for the outstanding revolvingdit facility balance during our third fiscal
quarter and the RGCL note payable, as discussedabdRecent Liquidity and Capital Resource Depahent.”

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, we rezegdrsurrent and deferred tax expense totaling $@l®n compared with $5.1 million for tF
fiscal year ended June 30, 2006. This resulted iefeective tax rate of 32.6% and 31.0% as of Bhe&007 and 2006, respectively.
Forward-Looking Statements

Cautionary “Safe Harbor” Statement under the Pei&ecurities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Witretexception of historical matters, the
matters discussed in this report are forward-logldtatements that involve risks and uncertaintias ¢ould cause actual results to differ
materially from projections or
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estimates contained herein. Such forward-lookiatestents include statements regarding projectedliption estimates and estimates of
timing of commencement of production from the opensof our royalty properties; the adequacy oéficial resources and funds to cover
anticipated expenditures for general and adminigg@&xpenses as well as costs associated witletfgn and business development and
capital expenditures, and our expectation thattauakially all our revenues will be derived from edty interests. Factors that could cause a«
results to differ materially from these forward-kimg statements include, among others:

. changes in gold and other metals pric

. the production at or performance of our produciogaity properties

. decisions and activities of the operators of oyaly properties

. the ability of operators to bring projects into guction and operate in accordance with feasibditidies;
. unanticipated grade and geological, metallurgisadcessing or other problems at the proper

. changes in project parameters as plans of the topsrare refined

. changes in estimates of reserves and mineralizhtidhe operators of our royalty properti

. economic and market conditior

. future financial need:

. federal, state and foreign legislation governinguthe operator:

. the availability of royalties for acquisition orhatr acquisition opportunities and the availabitifydebt or equity financing necessary
complete such acquisition

. our ability to make accurate assumptions regarttiegzaluation and timing and amount of royalty payts when making acquisitiol

. risks associated with conducting business inijoreountries, including application of foreign lswo contract and other disputes,
environmental laws and enforcement and uncertditigad and economic environmen

. risks associated with issuances of substantiatiaddi common stock in connection with acquisiti@notherwise

. risks associated with the incurrence of substaatiditional indebtedness if we take such actiorimection with acquisitions
otherwise; ant

. the completion of the Barrick royalty acquisitic

as well as other factors described elsewhere gr#gort and other reports filed with the SEC. Mifghese factors are beyond our ability to
predict or control. Future events and actual reszduld differ materially from those set forth a@ntemplated by or underlying the forward-
looking statements. We disclaim any obligation pdate any forward-looking statement made hereiadRes are cautioned not to put undue
reliance on forward-looking statements.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKE T RISK

Our earnings and cash flow are significantly impddby changes in the market price of gold and atietals. Gold and other metal prices can
fluctuate significantly and are affected by numeréactors, such as demand, production levels, enmnpolicies of central banks, producer
hedging, world political and economic events, dreldtrength of the U.S. dollar relative to otherencies. Please see “Volatility in
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gold and other metal prices may have an adversadhgn the value of our royalty interests and reduar royalty revenues,” under Part I,
Item 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for manéormation that can affect gold and other priassvell as historical gold, silver and
copper prices.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, wertegaoyalty revenues of $69.4 million, with an eage gold price for the period of $821 per
ounce and an average copper price of $3.53 perchdpproximately 75% of our total recognized revesitor the fiscal year ended June 30,
2008, were attributable to gold sales from our gwladucing royalty interests, as shown within thB&RA. For the fiscal year ended June 30,
2008, if the price of gold had averaged highewoardr by $50 per ounce, we would have recorded emre@se of approximately $3.1 million ¢
decrease of approximately $3.3 million in royakyenue, respectively. Approximately 22% of our ltoégognized revenues for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2008, were attributable to coppes sd Robinson and Troy. For the fiscal year el 30, 2008, if the price of copper had
averaged higher or lower by $0.25 per pound, weldvbave recorded an increase or decrease in resafwproximately $1.2 million,
respectively.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Index to Financial Statements
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Shareholders and Board of Directors Royatldoc.:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated foialnstatements listed in the accompanying appepidizent fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Royal Gold, Inc. andstghsidiaries at June 30, 2008 and 2007, and thtged their operations and their cash flows
for each of the three years in the period endeé 30n 2008 in conformity with accounting principganerally accepted in the United States of
America. Also in our opinion, the Company maintainia all material respects, effective internalttohover financial reporting as of June 30,
2008, based on criteria establishedhiternal Control — Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidribe
Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s manageimeasponsible for these financial statementspfaintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting and for its assesat of the effectiveness of internal control ofileancial reporting, included in the
accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Cootrer Financial Reporting appearing under paritéim 9A. Our responsibility is to
express opinions on these financial statementoarnde Company internal control over financial reporting basedoarr integrated audits. W
conducted our audits in accordance with the statsdairthe Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@fdited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audits toiolf@asonable assurance about whether the finasteiidments are free of material
misstatement and whether effective internal cordvelr financial reporting was maintained in all eral respects. Our audits of the financial
statements included examining, on a test basideage supporting the amounts and disclosures ifirthecial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimiatade by management, and evaluating the ovenahdial statement presentation. Our a

of internal control over financial reporting incled obtaining an understanding of internal contsa@rdinancial reporting, assessing the risk

a material weakness exists, and testing and ewadute design and operating effectiveness of ivalecontrol based on the assessed risk. Our
audits also included performing such other proceslas we considered necessary in the circumstaieebelieve that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonableaagsuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetméor external purposes in accordance with gelyeaacepted accounting principles. A
company'’s internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (fppeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettilansactions and dispositions of the assetseoédmpany; (i) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@awith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expendituree®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (iii) provide readslaassurance regarding prevention or timely dieteaf unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company'’s assets that could lzareaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detmisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods afgect to the risk that controls may become inadézjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdates may deteriorate.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Denver, Colorado
August 19, 2008
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ROYAL GOLD, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
As of June 30,
(In thousands except share data)

Current assel
Cash and equivalen
Royalty receivable
Income tax receivabl
Deferred tax asse
Prepaid expenses and ot

Total current asse

Royalty interests in mineral properties, net (Nt
Restricted cas— compensating balant

Inventory— restricted

Note receivabl— Battle Mountain Gold Exploration (Note
Other asset

Total asset

Current liabilities
Accounts payabl
Income taxes payab
Dividends payabli
Other

Total current liabilities

Net deferred tax liabilitie
Note payabl¢
Other lon¢-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note
Minority interest in subsidiary (Note 1
Stockholder equity
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 10,000,000 steardmrizec
Common stock, $0.01 par value, authorized 100,@@0shares; and issued 33,926,495 and 28,89:
shares, respective
Additional pait-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive inco
Accumulated earning
Less treasury stock, at cost (0 and 229,224 shagsectively

Total stockholder equity

Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

2008

$192,03!
17,62}
1,31(
131

30¢€

211,41:

300,67(
15,75(
11,17(

7,28
$546,28¢

$ 3,127

2,38¢
1,79i
7,30¢

26,03¢
15,75(
504

49,59!

11,41

33¢
463,33!
65
21,54:

485,28

$546,28¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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2007

$ 82,84:
12,47(
154

217
95,68

215,83¢
15,75(
10,61:
14,49:
4,271
$356,64¢

$ 2,347
5

1,86¢
472
4,68¢

5,911
15,75(
98

26,44,

11,12

28¢
310,43¢
45¢
8,99:
(1,099
319,08:

$356,64!
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ROYAL GOLD, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Compsélemcome
For the Years Ended June 30,
(In thousands except share data)

2008 2007 2006

Royalty revenue $ 69,39 $ 48,351 $ 28,38(
Costs and expens

Costs of operations (exclusive of depreciationJetggn and amortization shown

separately below 3,81¢ 3,26¢ 2,28¢

General and administratiy 7,20¢ 5,82¢ 5,022

Exploration and business developm 4,07¢ 2,49: 3,391

Depreciation, depletion and amortizat 18,36¢ 8,26¢ 4,261
Total costs and expens 33,47( 19,85 14,96¢
Operating incomi 35,92: 28,50¢ 13,41:
Interest and other incon 6,74z 4,25¢ 3,20¢
Interest and other expen (1,729 (1,979 (165)
Income before income tax 40,93¢ 30,791 16,45!
Current tax expense (Note 1 (12,81) (10,310 (5,979
Deferred tax (expense) benefit (Note (115 761 873
Minority interest in income of consolidated subaigi (1,359 (1,529 —
Loss from equity investmel (550) — —
Net income $  26,10¢ $ 19,72 $  11,35(
Adjustments to other comprehensive incc

Unrealized change in market value of availablesde securities, net of t: (399 (40) 783
Comprehensive incon $ 2571t $ 19,68 $ 12,13¢
Net income $  26,10¢ $ 19,72 $ 11,35(
Preferred stock dividends and deemed divic (4,78¢) — —
Net income available to common stockholc $ 21,32 $ 19,72 $  11,35(
Basic earnings per she $ 0.6¢ $ 0.7¢ $ 0.5C
Basic weighted average shares outstan 31,054,72 24,827,31 22,863,78
Diluted earnings per sha $ 0.6¢ $ 0.7¢ $ 0.4¢
Diluted weighted average shares outstan: 31,390,29 25,075,08 23,134,03

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements
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Balance at June 30, 20

Issuance of common stock f
Equity offering
Exercise of stock optior
Vesting of restricted

stock

Tax benefit of stock-based
compensation exercis

Recognition of non-cash
compensation expense
stock- based
compensation (Note ¢

Reversal of deferred
compensatiol

Net income and
comprehensive income
for the year ended
June 30, 200

Dividends declare

Balance at June 30, 20

Issuance of common stock f
Equity offering
Pefiasquito royalty

acquisition
Exercise of stock optior
Vesting of restricted
stock

Tax benefit of stock-based
compensation exercis:

Recognition of non-cash
compensation expense
stock- based
compensation (Note ¢

Net income and
comprehensive income
for the year ended
June 30, 200

Dividends declare

Balance at June 30, 20

Issuance of preferred stock
for:
7.25% Mandatory
Convertible offering
(Note 9)

Issuance of common stock f

Conversion of 7.25%
Mandatory
Convertible
Preferred Stoc

Battle Mountain
acquisition (Note 2

Equity offering costs
(April 2007)

Exercise of stock optior

Vesting of restricted
stock

IAMGOLD Corporation
and Repadre
International
Corporation (Note ¢

Retire treasury stoc

Repurchase of common stock
(Note 9)

Tax benefit of stock-based
compensation exercis:

Recognition of non-cash
compensation expense
stock-based
compensatiol

Net income and
comprehensive income
for the year income for
the year ended June 30
2008

Preferred stock deemed
dividend upon conversic
of 7.25% Mandatory
Convertible

Preferred stock dividends
declarec

Common stock dividends
declarec

Balance at June 30, 20

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
For the Years Ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006
(In thousands except share data)

ROYAL GOLD, INC.

Additional Accumulated Othe Accumulate: Total

Preferred Share Common Share Paic-In Comprehensiv: Deferred (Deficit) Treasury Stocl Stockholder’
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Income (Loss Compensatio Earnings Shares Amount Equity

21,258,57 $ 21z $ 104,16: $ (28%) $ (525) $ (10,73 229,22: $(1,097) $ 91,731

2,227,91 22 54,69¢ 54,71¢

276,77 3 3,90¢ 3,91:

53,37¢ 1 @ _

1,43¢ 1,43¢

2,77¢ 2,77¢

(524 525 1

78¢ 11,35( 12,13¢

(5,05¢) (5,05¢)

- — 23,816,64 $ 23¢ $ 166,46( $ 49¢ $ — $ (4440 229,22 $(1,09) $ 161,65

4,400,06: 44 121,89: 121,93¢

577,43: 6 18,49¢ 18,50:

46,467 — 582 582

52,37t 1 (1) —

34¢€ 34¢

2,66 2,66

(40) 19,72: 19,68:

(6,289 (6,289

— — 28,892,98 $ 28¢ $ 310,43¢ $ 45¢ $ — $ 8,992 229,22: $(1,097) $ 319,08

1,150,001 115,00( (3,9072) 111,09¢

(1,150,001 (115,000) 3,977,68: 40 116,94¢ 1,98¢

1,144,02! 11 35,83: 35,84!

(29) (29

101,75( 1 724 72%

19,62¢ — Q

216,64: 2 6,342 6,34t

(426,210 (4) (6,609) (426,210 6,61¢ —

196,98t (5,51¢) (5,51¢)

72z 72z

2,86¢ 2,86¢

(399) 26,10¢ 25,71t

(1,986 (1,986

(2,809 (2,809

(8,769 (8,76¢)

— — 33,926,49 $ 33¢ $ 463,33! $ 65 $ — $ 21,54 — $ — $ 485,28:




The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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ROYAL GOLD, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended June 30,

(In thousands except share data)

2008 2007
Cash flows from operating activiti
Net income $ 26,10¢ $ 19,72(
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigea by operating activitie:
Depreciation, depletion and amortizati 18,36« 8,26¢
Loss on available for sale securit 49 —
Deferred tax expense (bene 11¢& (767)
Non-cash employee stock compensation exp 2,86¢ 2,66:
Interest income accrued for Battle Mountain noteieable (713) —
Tax benefit of stoc-based compensation exerci: (722) (346)
Changes in assets and liabiliti
Royalty receivable (4,430 (6,50¢)
Prepaid expenses and other as (232 414
Accounts payabl 58C 1,02(
Income taxes (receivable) paya (970 16
Other (1,899 (140
Net cash provided by operating activit $ 39,12 $ 24,34
Cash flows from investing activitie
Capital expenditures for property and equipn $ (42) $ (28
Acquisition of royalty interests in mineral propges (16,24¢) (120,80%)
Note receivabl— Battle Mountain Gold Exploratio — (14,499
Restricted cas— compensating balant — (15,750
Purchase of available for sale securi — (81)
Deferred acquisition cos (157) (979)
Battle Mountain acquisition, net of cash acquirée$1398 (2,939 —
Net cash used in investing activiti $(19,379 $(152,39))
Cash flows from financing activitie
Common stock dividenc $ (8,259 $ (5,72))
Preferred stock dividenc (2,802) —
Debt issuance cos (27) (464)
Issuance of Note payat — 15,75(
Tax benefit from stoc-based compensation exerci: 722 34¢€
Gold loan payof— Battle Mountair (6,47¢) —
Net proceeds from issuance of common s 69¢ 122,52¢
Net proceeds from issuance of preferred s 111,09¢ —
Stock repurchase progre (5,516 —
Net cash provided by financing activiti $ 89,44 $ 132,43
Net increase in cash and equivale 109,19: 4,39:
Cash and equivalents at beginning of 82,84: 78,44¢
Cash and equivalents at end of y $192,03! $ 82,84:

See Note 12 for supplemental cash flow informat

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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4,261

(879)
2,77¢

(1,439
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ROYAL GOLD, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands except share data, per ounce and ppound amounts)

1. OPERATIONS, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIC IES AND RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING
PRONOUNCEMENTS

Operations

Royal Gold, Inc. (“Royal Gold”, the “Company”, “wg"us”, or “our”), together with its subsidiaries, is engaged in th&ress of acquiring a
managing precious metals royalties. Royalties assige (non-operating) interests in mining projéictd provide the right to revenue or
production from the project after deducting specifcosts, if any.

We seek to acquire existing royalties or to finapagects that are in production or near productivexchange for royalty interests. We also
fund exploration on properties thought to contaiecpus metals and seek to obtain royalties anerathrried ownership interests in such
properties through the subsequent transfer of tipgranterests to other mining companies. Subsaliptall of our revenues are and will be
expected to be derived from royalty interests. Wedt conduct mining operations at this time. Dgrihe 2008 fiscal year, we focused on the
management of our existing royalty interests, ttgussition of royalty interests, and the creatiémayalty interests through financing and
strategic exploration alliances.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates

The preparation of our financial statements in oomity with accounting principles generally accepite the United States of America requires
us to make estimates and assumptions that affecefforted amounts of assets and liabilities, ascdasure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the dates of the financial statements, andaperted amounts of revenues and expenses duringgbeing periods. Actual results could
differ significantly from those estimates.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include to®ants of Royal Gold, Inc., its whollywned subsidiaries and an entity over which corné
achieved through means other than voting rights Kggte 16). Intercompany transactions and accaalanbes have been eliminated in
consolidation.

Cash and Equivalents

We consider all highly liquid investments purchasgétth an original maturity of three months or lésde cash equivalents. At June 30, 2008,
cash and equivalents were primarily held in moneyk®t accounts which are invested in United Stiéasury bills or United States treasury
backed securities. As of June 30, 2008, approximn&t90.2 million of our total cash and equivalewiss held at one financial institution.

Available for Sale Securities

Investments in securities that management doeksawa the intent to sell in the near term and thaelreadily determinable fair values are
classified as available-for-sale investments ardrasiuded as a separate componer@ibier asseten the Company’s consolidated balance
sheets. Unrealized gains and losses on these ingett are recorded in accumulated other compreheimsiome as a separate component of
stockholders’ equity, except that declines in mavikdue judged to be other than temporary are neiced in determining net income. When
investments are sold, the realized gains and
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ROYAL GOLD, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except share data, per ounce and ppound amounts)

losses on these investments, determined usingtwfie identification method, are included in detening net income.

The Company’s policy for determining whether deetinin fair value of available-for-sale investmeams other than temporary includes a
guarterly analysis of the investments and a re\igwinanagement of all investments that are impalfesich impairment is determined by the
Company to be other than temporary, the investraeutst basis is written down to fair value and rded in net income during the period the
Company determines such impairment to be othertéraporary.

Royalty Interests in Mineral Properties

Royalty interests in mineral properties includeldsed royalty interests in production stage, depeient stage and exploration stage prope
The fair value of acquired royalty interests in eral properties are capitalized as tangible asgets such interests do not meet the definition
of a financial asset under the Financial Accounfitgndard Board’s (“FASB”) Statement of FinancialcAunt Standards (“SFAS”) No. 140,
Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Finandakets and Extinguishments of Liabili— a Replacements of FASB Statement No, &25
a derivative instrument under SFAS No. 188¢counting for Derivative Instruments and Hedgirgivities. Also, in accordance with FASB
Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue No., BFg 04-02, Working Group Report NoWhether Mineral Rights are Tangible or
Intangible Assets and Related Issiwe recognize our royalty interests as tangibletasseof June 30, 2008 and 2007. We based our
conclusion on the following factors:

1. Ourroyalty interests in mineral properties do metet the definition of financial assets under FASBtement No. 140; ar
2. Our royalty interests in mineral properties do metet the definition of derivative instruments unBASB Statement No. 13

Acquisition costs of production stage royalty iet&s are depleted using the units of productiomatebver the life of the mineral property,
which is estimated using proven and probable resecquisition costs of royalty interests on depetent stage mineral properties, not yet in
production, are not amortized until the propertgibe production. Acquisition costs of royalty irests on exploration stage mineral properties,
where there are no proven and probable resen@soaramortized. At such time as the associatetbeatipn stage mineral interests are
converted to proven and probable reserves, thebes#s is amortized over the remaining life of tieeral property, using proven and probe
reserves. The carrying values of exploration stagesral interests are evaluated for impairmentiahgime as information becomes available
indicating that the production will not occur iretfuture. Exploration costs are charged to operatwhen incurred.

Asset Impairment

We evaluate long-lived assets for impairment whenevents or changes in circumstances indicatehibakelated carrying amounts of an asset
or group of assets may not be recoverable. Thevegability of the carrying value of royalty intetesn production and development stage
mineral properties is evaluated based upon estihfatare undiscounted net cash flows from eachltpyaterest property using estimates of
proven and probable reserves. We evaluate the eeglolity of the carrying value of royalty interssh exploration stage mineral properties in
the event of significant decreases in the pricgaddl and other metals, and whenever new informatgarding the mineral properties is
obtained from the operator that could affect therieirecoverability of our royalty interests. Imaénts in the carrying value of each property
are measured and recorded to the extent that theéravalue in each property exceeds its estimégd/alue, which is generally calculated
using estimated future discounted cash flows.
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Our estimates of gold and other metal prices, dpegsaestimates of proven and probable reservega@lto our royalty properties, and
operator’s estimates of operating, capital andareetion costs are subject to certain risks andrtainées which may affect the recoverability
of our investment in these royalty interests in enah properties. Although we have made our begtsassent of these factors based on current
conditions, it is possible that changes could ocatiich could adversely affect the net cash flowgeeted to be generated from these royalty
interests.

Royalty Revenue

Royalty revenue is recognized pursuant to guidam&taff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 104Revenue Recognition for Financial
StatementsRevenue is recognized in accordance with thegeaifthe underlying royalty agreements subject)tthé persuasive evidence of
the existence of the arrangements; (ii) the risicsr@wards having been transferred; (iii) the riyybeing fixed or determinable; and (iv) the
collectability of the royalty being reasonably agsli For royalty payments received in gold, royaltyenue is recorded at the average spot
price of gold for the period in which the royaltysvearned.

Revenue recognized pursuant to the Robinson roggltyement is based upon 3 percent of revenueveethy the operator of the mine,
Quadra Mining Ltd. (“Quadra”), for the sale of miaks from the Robinson mine, reduced by certainsciogurred by Quadra. Quadra’s
concentrate sales contracts with third-party smglie general, provide for an initial payment whapon provisional assays and quoted metal
prices at the date of shipment. Final true up paymare subsequently based upon final assays ark@hmaetal prices set on a specified future
date, typically one to three months after the tla¢econcentrate arrives at the third-party sméitdrich generally occurs four to five months
after the shipment date from the Robinson mine).

Royal Gold recognizes revenue under the Robinsgaltyoagreement based on amounts contractuallypdusuant to the calculations above
the underlying sale. As a result of pricing vaoas in gold, silver and copper over the respedetdement period, royalty revenue recognized
on the Robinson royalty could be positively or rtegdy impacted by any changes in metal pricesybeh the provisional and final settlement
periods.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under SFAS8®Accounting for Income Taxemd FASB Interpretation No. 48 (“FIN 48”),
Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Ta—An interpretation of FASB Statement No. 188N 48 clarifies the accounting and reporting for
uncertainties in the application of the incomeltaxs to the Company’s operations. The Company @&dbptN 48 on July 1, 2007. Please refer
to Note 11 for a discussion regarding the effeciadpting FIN 48.

The Company’s deferred income taxes reflect theawhpf temporary differences between the reponteduents of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and such amounts medday tax laws and regulations. The deferred et and liabilities represent the future
tax return consequences of those differences, whiltieither be taxable or deductible when the tsaad liabilities are recovered or settled. A
valuation allowance is provided for deferred tageds when management concludes it is more likely tiot that some portion of the deferred
tax assets will not be realized.

StockBased Compensatian

Effective July 1, 2005, we account for our stockdmhcompensation in accordance with SFAS No. J8s@d 2004)Share-Based Payment
(“SFAS 123(R)"). SFAS 123(R) requires all sharedihs
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payments to employees, including grants of emplayeek options and restricted stock, to be recaghin the financial statements based on
their fair values. See Note 8 for further discussio the Company’s stock-based compensation.

Operating Segments and Geographical Information

We manage our business under one operating segoo@sisting of royalty acquisition and managemetivdies. All of our assets and
revenues are attributable to the royalty operadggment.

Royal Gold’s royalty revenue and long-lived asgeigalty interests in mineral properties, net) geegraphically distributed as shown in the
following table. Please refer to Note 4 for furtlégcussion on our significant royalty interestsppoducing mineral properties.

Royalty Royalty Interests il
Revenue Mineral Properties, ne
2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006

United State: 80% 97% 98% 18% 25% 69%
Mexico 4% 2% 1% 55% 49% 9%
Africa () 11% — — 12% 16% 22%
Chile — — — 7% 10% —
Other@ 5% 1% 1% 8% — —

(I Consists of royalties on properties in Burkina Fasd the Republic of Ghana. Royalty revenue shavattiibutable to revenues from ¢
royalties in Burkina Fas¢

@ The“Othe!" category fol*Royalty revenu” consists of Argentina, Bolivia (2008 only), Cang#@08 only) and Nicaragua (2008 onl
The “Other” category for “Royalty Interests in Mia¢ Properties, net” for 2008 consists of Bolivzgnada, Colombia, Honduras and
Nicaragua

Comprehensive Income

In addition to net income, comprehensive incoméuihes changes in equity during a period associattdcumulative unrealized changes in
the fair value of marketable securities held fde saet of tax effects.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividiegt income or loss by the weighted average nuofii@ymmon shares outstanding during
each year. Diluted earnings per share reflecteffieet of all potentially dilutive stock-based coemsation awards.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the prior period financial statats have been reclassified for comparative pagptsconform with the presentation in the
current period financial statements.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In March 2008, the FASB issued Statement No. 1Bkclosures about Derivative Instruments and HedgiActivities—an amendment of
FASB Statement No. 1" (“SFAS 161"). SFAS 161 intends to improve financigorting about derivative instruments and hedgictiyities
by requiring enhanced disclosures to enable investobetter understand their effects on an estfigancial position, financial performance
and cash flows. SFAS 161 also requires disclosoatean entity’s strategy and objectives
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for using derivatives, the fair values of derivatimstruments and their related gains and los$e5S3.61 is effective for fiscal years and
interim periods beginning after November 15, 2008] will be applicable to the Company’s fiscal ybaginning July 1, 2009. The Company
is evaluating the impact, if any, the adoption BAS 161 could have on its financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement No(rb4ised 2007),Business Combinations,*SFAS 141R”), which significantly changes
the ways companies account for business combirsatiod will generally require more assets acquiretliabilities assumed to be measured at
their acquisition date fair value. Under SFAS 14lEgal fees and other transaction-related costexgensed as incurred and are no longer
included in goodwill as a cost of acquiring theibhess. SFAS 141R also requires, among other thatggjirers to estimate the acquisition date
fair value of any contingent consideration andettognize any subsequent changes in the fair védloentingent consideration in earnings. In
addition, restructuring costs the acquirer expedietiwas not obligated to incur, will be recogrizeparately from the business acquisition.
SFAS 141R is effective for the Company’s fiscalnfeaginning July 1, 2009, and is to be applied pectively. The Company is evaluating the
impact, if any, the adoption of SFAS 141R couldéam its financial statements.

Also in December 2007, the FASB issued Statementll0,“Non-controlling Interests in Consolidated Finantiatatements, an amendment
of ARB No. 51(“SFAS 160”). SFAS 160 requires all entities toogmon-controlling interests in subsidiaries aeparate component of
equity in the consolidated financial statementsASHG60 establishes a single method of accountinglfanges in a parent’s ownership interest
in a subsidiary that do not result in deconsol@atiCompanies will no longer recognize a gain sslon partial disposals of a subsidiary where
control is retained. In addition, in partial acdtigss, where control is obtained, the acquiringhnpany will recognize and measure at fair value
100 percent of the assets and liabilities, inclgdinodwill, as if the entire target company hadnbaequired. SFAS 160 is effective for the
Company'’s fiscal year beginning July 1, 2009, antbibe applied prospectively. The Company is atalg the impact, if any, the adoption of
SFAS 160 could have on its financial statements.

In June 2007, the EITF reached consensus on Issu@@Nl1 “Accounting for Income Tax Benefits of Dividendssbare-Based Payment
Awards” EITF Issue No. 06-11 requires that the tax bemekited to dividend and dividend equivalents paicquity-classified nonvested
shares and nonvested share units, which are exptectest, be recorded as an increase to additpaidtin capital. EITF No. 06-11 is to be
applied prospectively for tax benefits on divideddslared in our fiscal year beginning July 1, 200& do not expect the adoption of EITF 06-
11 to have a material impact on our consolidatedrfcial statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement No, 158 Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Fingl Liabilities,” (“SFAS 159”)
which allows entities to choose to measure margniiial instruments and certain other items atvalne. The provisions of SFAS 159 are
effective for our fiscal year beginning July 1, 830@nd interim periods within the fiscal year. Wernbt expect the adoption of SFAS 159 to
have a material impact on our consolidated findrate@ements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement NG.Fibr Value Measuremen{§SFAS 157”). SFAS 157 provides guidance for udiaig
value to measure assets and liabilities. SFAS pplies whenever other accounting standards redoirpermit) assets or liabilities to be
measured at fair value but does not expand thefusér value in any new circumstances. Under SHAS, fair value refers to the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to tearzsliability between participants in the marketvhich the reporting entity transacts. In this
standard, the FASB clarifies the principle that failue should be based on the assumptions maakétipants would use when pricing the
asset or liability. The provisions of SFAS 157 affective for our fiscal year beginning July 1, 30@nd interim
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periods within the fiscal year. We do not expeetdldoption of SFAS 157 to have a material impaatunconsolidated financial statements.

On July 13, 2006, FIN 48 was issued. FIN 48 clasifihe accounting for uncertainty in income taxesgnized in a company’s financial
statements in accordance with SFAS 109. FIN 48 @lsscribes a recognition threshold and measureattiiiute for the financial statement
recognition and measurement of tax position takeexpected to be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 plewides guidance on de-recognition,
classification, interest and penalties, accounitingterim periods, disclosure, and transition. TT@mpany adopted FIN 48 on July 1, 2007.
Refer to Note 11 for a discussion regarding theatfbf adopting FIN 48.

2. ACQUISITION OF BATTLE MOUNTAIN GOLD EXPLORATION

On July 30, 2007, we entered into an Amended arstiaiRel Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Mergereament”) with Battle Mountain
Gold Exploration Corp. (“Battle Mountain”) and Rd&attle Mountain, Inc. (“Merger Sub”), a newly-foed and wholly-owned subsidiary of
Royal Gold, pursuant to which the Merger Sub wasgex into Battle Mountain with Battle Mountain siving as a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Royal Gold.

On October 24, 2007, we completed the merger patdoahe Merger Agreement and acquired 100% ofdtged and outstanding capital
stock of Battle Mountain in a transaction wherety Merger Sub was merged with and into Battle Maumfior aggregate consideration
consisting of 1.14 million shares of our commorcktand approximately $3.4 million in cash. As pzrthe acquisition of Battle Mountain, we
acquired thirteen royalty interests in various stagf production, development or exploration.

Immediately prior to the merger, Royal Gold ownegraximately 18% of Battle Mountain’s outstandirgramon stock and accounted for this
ownership under the equity method, which resultetthé Company recognizing a loss from equity inwestt of approximately $0.5 million for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.

Subject to settlement of the Battle Mountain litiga discussed below, additional mergensideration of up to an aggregate of 37,418 sha
Royal Gold common stock and approximately $0.1iamilin cash may be paid to former Battle Mountdatkholders. On September 13, 2(

an action was filed against Battle Mountain anddtsner Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, M&lcher, by James E. McKay, a former
officer and director of Battle Mountain, in the sad Judicial Court of the State of Nevada. Theoacseeks to enforce alleged rights to certain
shares of Battle Mountain common stock and optiormurchase shares of Battle Mountain common gbockuant to a stock option agreement
and a stock option plan, and unspecified damageglR5old may pay the additional consideration dbsd above to Battle Mountain
stockholders depending upon the cost of settlifgliigation.

The acquisition of Battle Mountain has been acoedifitr as an asset acquisition using the purchaslead of accounting, whereby assets
acquired and liabilities assumed were recordetieit fair market values as of the date of acquisitiThe purchase price was calculated using
the fair market value of the Royal Gold common skassued, as of the date we completed the tramsaptus cash and direct acquisition ct
paid by Royal Gold.

We have allocated the purchase price of approximn&g5.8 million to the fair market values of th&sats acquired and liabilities assumed,
including $85.5 million to royalty interests in neiral properties, $2.2 million to current assets8$8illion to intangible assets (included within
Other assetsn the consolidated balance sheet$3.8 million to deferred tax assets, $6.5 milliora gold loan payable,
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$24.5 million to deferred tax liabilities resultifigm the acquisition and $0.5 million of otherdikties. The amounts allocated to the acquired
royalty interests in mineral properties and relateterred taxes are preliminary and are subjechémge upon completion of final valuations.
The operating impact of the assets acquired frottleBslountain have been reflected in the resultRoyal Gold from October 24, 2007.

The intangible asset included as part of the pwelmice is associated with non-compete agreemeétitshe two former employees of Battle
Mountain. For fiscal year 2008, the total amorimatexpense associated with the intangible assetawproximately $1.3 million. The
remaining carrying value associated with the intialegasset is approximately $4.5 million, which Mi& amortized over our next two and a
fiscal years.

The gold loan payable assumed as part of the d@tignisf Battle Mountain was paid in full during Member 2007. ThBlote Receivable —
Battle Mountain Gold Exploratioas shown on the Company’s consolidated balanceshs®f June 30, 2007, was assumed during the
acquisition and was included in the purchase gac®attle Mountain.

3. ROYALTY ACQUISITIONS
Marigold and El Chanate

On February 20, 2008, we acquired three royaltim® fAngloGold Ashanti (U.S.A.) Exploration Inc. (yloGold’), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of AngloGold Ashanti North America Infor $13.75 million. The first royalty is a 2.0%tremelter return (“NSR”) royalty on the
Marigold mine, located on the Battle Mountain-Ewrétend in Nevada, and operated by Goldcorp, I'@&olficorp”). The second royalty is a
2.0-4.0% sliding-scale NSR royalty on the EI Chamatne, located in Sonora, Mexico and operated dyjit@l Gold, Inc. (“Capital Gold")The
sliding-scale NSR royalty is capped once paymehépproximately $17.0 million have been receivele Third royalty is a 10.0% net profits
interest (“NPI") royalty, also on the El Chanatenmi The 10.0% NPI royalty at El Chanate is cappekl @ million.

The sliding-scale NSR royalty at El Chanate paye rate of 2.0% when the average gold price isvb&B00 per ounce, 3.0% when the gold
price is between $300 and $350 per ounce, and wkéf the gold price is above $350 per ounce. THeHahate mine commenced production
in mid-2007. Including royalty payments made to Apld, there have been cumulative payments madbeosliding-scale NSR royalty of
$1.1 million, resulting in $15.9 million remainingder the $17.0 million cap as of June 30, 20080Abased on information from Capital
Gold, the Company has accrued approximately $0ll&min royalty revenue for the NPI royalty. ThéPNroyalty is payable in February 20t

The 2.0% NSR royalty interest on the Marigold mio@ers the majority of six sections of land, comitag a number of open-pits, but does not
cover the current mining in the Basalt/Antler arkpproximately 38% of the current Marigold reseraes covered by this royalty. Based on
our own estimates, we expect to begin receivingltgypayments from the 2.0% NSR royalty on the Mald mine in calendar 2011, when
mine operations are expected to move into areasredwby our royalty interest.

The AngloGold transaction has been accounted far@mschase of assets. The total purchase prig&@3¥5 million, less royalty amounts
received for production prior to the purchase @ét®0.15 million, plus direct transaction costss lh@en allocated to the three acquired roye
according to their relative fair values, as sepacatmponents dRoyalty Interests in Mineral Properti@n our consolidated
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balance sheets. Accordingly, $7.5 million has badtotated to the sliding-scale NSR royalty at EeGate, $0.8 million has been allocated to
the NPI royalty at EI Chanate, and $5.3 million baen allocated to the Marigold royalty.

Pascua-Lama

On March 9, 2007, Royal Gold’s wholly-owned subaigli Royal Gold Chile Limitada, a Chilean limitedtility company (“RGCL"),acquirec
an NSR sliding-scale royalty on gold which is dedvrom certain mineral concessions at the Paseamaalproject located in Chile for

$20.5 million. Barrick Gold Corporation (“Barrickwns the Pascua-Lama project and is ready forteai®n, pending resolution of tax and
permitting issues. The acquisition also include®N&fR royalty on copper from reserves located irleCéold after January 1, 2017.

The NSR sliding-scale royalty ranges from 0.16%emwthe average quarterly gold price is $325 peceuwn less, to 1.08%, when the average
quarterly gold price is $800 per ounce or more. abguisition also includes a 0.216% fixed-rate @ppyalty that applies to 100% of the
Pascua-Lama copper reserves in Chile but doesketeffect until after January 1, 2017.

The Pascua-Lama royalty acquisition was accourtedd an asset purchase. As such, the $20.5 milliochase price, plus approximately
$0.4 million of direct acquisition costs, is receddas a component Bioyalty interests in mineral propertiesthe consolidated balance sheets.
We have allocated $20.5 million as a developmegestoyalty interest and approximately $0.4 milla@nan exploration stage royalty interest.

Pefiasquito

On January 23, 2007, we acquired a 2.0% NSR roy#tkyest on the Pefiasquito project located irBtia¢e of Zacatecas, Mexico, from
Kennecott Exploration Company, a Delaware corpomatand Minera Kennecott S.A. de C.V., a compaggiiporated under the laws of
Mexico for $80.0 million in cash and 577,434 sharesur common stock. We also obtained the riglgtdguire any or all of a group of NSR
royalties ranging from 1.0% to 2.0% on various ott@ncessions in the same region. On April 27, 20@7notified Kennecott Exploration
Company of our intention to acquire the royaltiescertain of these concessions. We completed a@uisition of these royalties for nominal
consideration during our fiscal 2008.

The Pefiasquito project is currently under develayprhg a subsidiary of Goldcorp Inc. (“Goldcorp”)dhis composed of two main deposits
called Pefiasco and Chile Colorado, which host lailger, gold, zinc and lead reserves. The depositsist of oxide and sulfide portions. In
May 2008, Pefiasquito poured the first gold fromdkiele circuit. Goldcorp expects production at Pefigto from the first sulfide circuit by
late calendar 2009 and expects the second sulficigitdo be operational near the end of calenddi02

The Pefiasquito royalty acquisition was accounteadd$an asset purchase. As such, the total purghiaseof $99.1 million, which consisted of
$80.0 million in cash, 577,434 shares of our comistogk (valued at $18.5 million) and approximatkly6 million of transaction costs, is
recorded as a componentRdyalty interests in mineral propertieas a development stage royalty, in our cons@itidfillance sheets.

Gold Hill

On December 8, 2006, Royal Gold paid $3.3 milliofNevada Star Resource Corp. in exchange for an $li8iRg-scale royalty and certain
unpatented mining claims on the Gold Hill depoBite NSR
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sliding-scale royalty on the Gold Hill deposit wilay 2.0% when the price of gold is above $3500p@ice and 1.0% when the price of gold
falls to $350 per ounce or below. The royalty soadubject to a minimum royalty payment of $0.1lioml per year. The Gold Hill deposit,
located just north of the Round Mountain gold mimé&lye County, Nevada, is controlled by Round M@imiGold Corporation, a joint venture
between subsidiaries of Kinross Gold Corporatidfir{ffoss”), the operator, and Barrick. Productiontibe Gold Hill deposit is expected to
commence in calendar 2011.

The Gold Hill transaction was accounted for assseapurchase. As such, the $3.3 million acqursitiost is recorded as a component of
Royalty interests in mineral properti, as a development stage royalty, on the conselitda&lance sheets.

Taparko Project Royalties

On March 1, 2006, Royal Gold entered into an Amenaied Restated Funding Agreement (“Funding Agre¢fheiith Societe des Mines de
Taparko, also known as Somita SA (“Somita”), a ®#med subsidiary of High River Gold Mines Ltd. (‘¢hi River”), to acquire two initial
production payments equivalent to gross smeltermgt' GSR”) royalties and two subsequent royaltigiasts on the Taparko-Bouroum Project
(“Taparko project”) in Burkina Faso, West Africahd Taparko project is operated by Somita. RoyalGdlnding of the project totaled

$35 million and was used by High River for the depenent and construction of the Taparko projech€action of the Taparko project was
completed during mid-calendar 2007, with productommencing during our first quarter of fiscal 2008

As a result of our funding, we obtained the follogimineral interests, all related to the Taparlajgmt:

1. TB-GSR1— A production payment equivalent to a 15.0% GSR ltgyan all gold produced from the Taparko projdd-GSR1
remains in force until cumulative production of 8820 ounces of gold is achieved, or until cumukatpayments of $35 million have
been made to us, whichever is earl

2. TB-GSR2— A production payment equivalent to a GSR sli-scale royalty on all gold produced from the Tapgvkaject. The TI-
GSR2 royalty ranges from 0.0% to 10.0%, dependimthe price of gold. The TB-GSR2 royalty remaingifect until the termination
of TB-GSR1,;

3. TB-GSR3— A perpetual 2.0% GSR royalty on all gold producexhf the Taparko project area (as defined in thedfgnAgreement
This royalty will commence upon termination of fiB-GSR1 and T-GSR2 royalties; an

4.  TB-MR1 — A 0.75% milling fee royalty, on abld processed through the Taparko project pranogg$acilities that is mined from any
area outside of the Taparko project area (as dfiméhe Funding Agreement). TB-MR1 royalty is sdijto a cap of 1.1 million tons
per year (_e.g, if in a given year, the Taparko project procegdacility processes 800,000 tons of ore fromThparko project area
and 500,000 tons of ore from areas outside therkKagaoject area, the 800,000 tons from the Taparkgect area would be subject
TB-GSR1, TE-GSR2, or TI-GSR3 and the T-MR1 would only apply to 300,000 tons of o

The Taparko transaction has been accounted fopaschase of assets. Accordingly, the four comptmefithe transaction noted above have
been recorded at their allocated relative fair galas components Rioyalty Interests in Mineral Properties our consolidated balance sheets.

In order to secure our investment during the pebietiveen funding by Royal Gold and project complefias defined in the Funding
Agreement), High River has pledged its 90% inteiresie equity of Somita. Royal Gold will maintdta security interest, in the form of the
Somita shares, through the construction period.SEueirity interest will be released upon the projeeeting Project Completion,

67




Table of Contents

ROYAL GOLD, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except share data, per ounce and ppound amounts)

as defined in the Funding Agreememer the terms of the Funding Agreement, the Tappr&ct has not achieved Project Completion as of
June 30, 2008.

In addition to the 90% interest in Somita, Royaldzalso obtained as collateral a pledge of sharésmequity investments held by High

River. The equity value underlying the pledge @&fsth shares is valued at approximately $63.2 mii®of June 30, 2008, and includes
12,015,000 common shares in the capital stock lefnfge Mines, Inc. and 1,790,941 common sharekércapital stock of Intrepid Minerals
Corporation. The purpose of this collateral is @imain a construction reserve that can be useehtedy any construction defects noted du
the construction contract warranty period. Thidatetal can only be used to remedy identified cmesion defects and cannot be used to repay
any of Royal Gold’s investment. This security iegrwill be released by Royal Gold at the end efdbnstruction contract warranty period

Robinson and Mulatos Royalties

On December 28, 2005, Royal Gold paid $25 millioiKennecott Minerals (“Kennecottify exchange for two existing royalty interests higjt
Kennecott, including a 3.0% NSR royalty on the Raebih mine, located in eastern Nevada, and a ststiage NSR royalty on the Mulatos
mine, located in Sonora, Mexico.

The Robinson mine is an open-pit copper mine wghifcant gold and molybdenum credits. The mine baen owned and operated by a
subsidiary of Quadra since 2004. Royal Gold begariving revenue from the Robinson royalty during fourth quarter of fiscal year 2006
after a $20.0 million reclamation trust account vidly funded by Quadra.

The Mulatos project, owned and operated by a sigrgiof Alamos Gold, Inc. (“Alamos”), is an opentgieap leach gold mine. Commercial
production was achieved effective April 1, 2006eTulatos mine sliding-scale royalty, capped at tition ounces of gold production,
ranges from 0.30% for gold prices below $300 petcewp to 1.50% for gold prices above $400 per eunc

The Kennecott transaction has been accounted f@paschase of assets. As such, the $25 millionisitipn cost, and approximately $267,(

of our direct legal and other acquisition costsjehlaeen allocated to the two acquired royaltiesating to their relative fair values, as separate
components oRoyalty Interests in Mineral Properties our consolidated balance sheets. Accordingly,8ifnillion has been allocated to the
Robinson royalty and $7.4 million has been allodatethe Mulatos royalty.

Taranis Exploration Alliance

On November 4, 2005, Royal Gold entered into twpl&pation and Earn-In Agreements (the “Agreementgth Taranis Resources Inc.
(“Taranis”) with respect to its exploration programFinland. As part of the first Agreement, then@many will obtain a 2.0% NSR royalty and
future earn-in rights on any new property acqulvgd aranis in Finland as a result of its regiongdleration program, in exchange for a

$0.3 million investment in 937,500 shares of Tasaoommon stock and 468,750 warrants. On Augus2@Q@6, we acquired, under a private
placement, an additional 100,000 shares of Taranisimon stock and warrants exercisable to purctyage 50,000 Taranis common shares at
$0.49.

As part of the Agreements, we funded $0.5 millioT &ranis for exploration work on the Kettukuusikkoperty in Lapland, Finland, in
exchange for a 2.0% NSR royalty on the propertyofA3une 30, 2006, we funded the entire $0.5 nniliommitment. We also had an optior
fund up to an additional $0.6 million. If we furtgetentire additional amount, we will earn a 51%t®enture interest in the

68




Table of Contents

ROYAL GOLD, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except share data, per ounce and ppound amounts)

Kettukuusikko project, and we will release our 2%Rroyalty. The Company elected to exercise thimomuring our fiscal year 2007. In the
event that Royal Gold does not fully fund the $®iflion to earn the joint venture interest, we wibuétain our 2.0% NSR royalty. As of

June 30, 2008, we have funded approximately $0lltombf the additional $0.6 million option. Amounfunded to Taranis as part of the
$0.5 million and $0.6 million Kettukuusikko expltian commitments have been expensed as a compohErploration and business
developmengxpense on our consolidated statements of opesatioth comprehensive income.

Taranis is publicly traded and therefore we hawemted our investment in Taranis common stock aadtamts a#\vailable for sale securities
which are included as a componentather assetsn our consolidated balance sheets at their relddiv values. See Note 5 for further detalil
on our investment in common stock and warrantsasfiiis.

4. ROYALTY INTERESTS IN MINERAL PROPERTIES
The following summarizes the Company’s royalty ietgs in mineral properties as of June 30, 2008Jané 30, 2007.

Accumulate:
As of June 30, 2008 (Amounts in thousani Cost Depletion Net
Production stage royalty interes
Cortez Pipeline Mining Comple $ 10,63( $ (8,90 $ 1,72¢
Robinsor 17,82t (4,279 13,55¢
Taparkao 33,57( (4,514 29,05¢
Leeville 17,49¢ (5,567) 11,92¢
Goldstrike—SJ Claims 20,78t¢ (8,647 12,147
Other 40,78: (11,599 29,18«
141,09( (43,497 97,59¢
Development stage royalty interes
Pefasquito (sulfide circui 95,14¢ — —
Dolores 40,98¢ — —
Pascu-Lama 20,44¢ — —
Other 18,11(
174,69: — 174,69:
Exploration stage royalty interes 28,65 (27 28,38:
Total royalty interests in mineral propert $344,43: $ (43,76)) $300,67(

69




Table of Contents

ROYAL GOLD, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except share data, per ounce and ppound amounts)

Accumulate:
As of June 30, 2007 (Amounts in thousar Cost Depletion Net
Production stage royalty interes
Cortez Pipeline Mining Comple $ 10,63( $ (8,42 $ 2,20¢
Robinsor 17,82¢ (2,059 15,77:
Leeville 16,86: (3,249 13,61«
Goldstrike—SJ Claims 20,78¢ (7,159 13,62¢
Other 17,09: (5,709 11,38¢
83,19¢ (26,58)) 56,61’
Development stage royalty interes
Pefasquito (sulfide circui 99,17- — 99,17
Taparko 34,24¢ 34,24¢
Pascu-Lama 20,44¢ — 20,44t
Other 3,34( — 3,34(
157,20 — 157,20
Exploration stage royalty interes 2,29¢ (271) 2,02t
Total royalty interests in mineral propert $242,69° $ (26,859 $215,83¢

Discussed below is each of the Company’s signifipaaduction stage royalty interests:

Cortez Pipeline Mining Complex

We own two GSR sliding-scale royalties (GSR1 ragdiom 0.40% to 5.0% and GSR2 ranging from 0.72%.086), a 0.71% fixed gross
smelter return royalty (GSR3), and a 1.25% netevasiurn (“NVR”) royalty (NVR1) over the Cortez Rime Mining Complex (“Cortez”)
which includes the Pipeline, South Pipeline, Gagh @mssroads gold deposits. Cortez is owned byidiabies of Barrick and is located in
Lander County, Nevada. The Company owns 31.6%e1t85% NVR (or 0.39%) while our consolidated mityointerest owns the remaining
portion of the 1.25% NVR.

Robinson Mine

We own a 3.0% NSR royalty on the Robinson mineated in White Pine County, Nevada. The Robinsorerisran open-pit copper mine with
significant gold production. The mine is owned apearated by a subsidiary of Quadra.

Taparko Mine

We own a production payment equivalent to a 15.08RGIB-GSR1) royalty on all gold produced from ffregarko project, located in
Burkina Faso and operated by Somita, a subsidiadigh River. TB-GSR1 will remain ifierce until cumulative production of 804,420 oun
of gold is achieved or until cumulative payment$85 million have been made to Royal Gold, whiclhésearlier. We also hold a production
payment equivalent to a GSR sliding-scale royal§-GSR2 ranging from 0% to 10%) on all gold prodiliéem the Taparko project. TB-
GSR2 is effective concurrently with TB-GSR1, andl vémain in-force from completion of the fundingramitment until the termination of
TB-GSR1.
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TB-GSR1 and TB-GSR2 were classified as developrstagie royalty interests as of June 30, 2007. Dwindirst fiscal quarter of 2008, High
River commenced production at the Taparko mine ofdiagly, we reclassified our cost basis in TB-GSRt TB-GSR2 from development
stage royalty interests. As such, we began depl¢hia associated cost basis using the units ofustaxh method during our first fiscal quarter
of 2008.

As of June 30, 2008, we have recognized royaltgmee associated with the TB-GSR1 royalty totaliag/ $nillion, which is attributable to
cumulative production of 36,078 ounces of gold.

Leeville

We own a 1.8% carried working interest, equal 108% NSR royalty, which covers the majority of theeville Mining Complex (collectively
Leeville South and Leeville North), in Eureka Coyrilevada. The Leeville Mining Complex is operabgda subsidiary of Newmont Mining
Corporation (“Newmont”). During our fiscal year Zdnost of our royalty revenue was derived fromuike North, an underground mining
operation, as production from Leeville South cedsddte calendar 2007.

A portion (non-reserve) of our investment in LelevMorth is classified as an exploration stage Itgyiaterest, which is not subject to
amortization. During our third fiscal quarter of08) Newmont informed us that additional proven prabable reserves were developed at
Leeville North. As such, we reclassified approxietatt0.6 million of our cost basis in the Leevillerth exploration stage royalty interest to
the Leeville North production stage royalty intérés the event that future proven and probableme=s associated with our royalty interest are
developed at Leeville North, additional cost bagisur royalty interest will be reclassified asevdlopment stage or a production stage royalty
interest in future periods, as appropriate.

Goldstrike-SJ Claims

We own a 0.9% NSR on the SJ Claims that cover tigpoof the Betze-Post mine, in Eureka County, Mievdetze-Post is an open-pit mine
operated by a subsidiary of Barrick at its Goldstmproperty.

5. AVAILABLE FOR SALE SECURITIES

As of June 30, 2008 and 2007, we held 1.3 millioarss of Revett Minerals, Inc. (“Revett”) commoocst The market value for our
investment in the shares of Revett was $0.7 millind $1.5 million as of June 30, 2008 and 200 heesvely. Our cost basis in the Revett
shares is $1.0 million.

As of June 30, 2008 and 2007, we held 1,037,500L80¢D00 shares of common stock and stock optiespectively, in Taranis. The market
value for our investment in Taranis’ common stog&rrants and stock options was $0.6 and $0.5 mili® of June 30, 2008 and 2007,
respectively. The warrants in Taranis expired dyodar fiscal year 2008. Our cost basis in the Tiaraommon stock, warrants and stock
options is $0.3 million.

Our investments in available for sale securitiesiacluded as a component®@fher asseten our consolidated balance sheets.

6. CREDIT FACILITY

The Company and a wholly-owned subsidiary curreinély an $80 million credit facility with HSBC BakkSA, National Association (“HSBC
Bank”), which bears interest at LIBOR plus 1.5% amdudes
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both affirmative and negative covenants, as defisedong as any portion of the facility is outstang. On January 23, 2008, the Company
entered into an amendment of its credit facilityhwiiSBC Bank, which extended the maturity datenefdredit facility two years from
December 31, 2010 to December 31, 2012. The amentdais® updated the assumptions used in the ctitmulaf the borrowing base, which
included an increase in the metal price assummigold and added a metal price assumption foesilv

As part of the credit facility, the Company and thieolly-owned subsidiary granted HSBC Bank securitgrests in the following: the
Company’s GSR1, GSR3, and NVRL1 royalties at thaezpthe Companyg SJ Claims, Leeville Mining Complex, Bald Mountaind Robinsc
royalties; and the Company’s debt reserve accaminterest bearing cash account which is includigisin Cash and equivalentsn the
consolidated balance sheets) at HSBC Bank. Thaliaitailability under the borrowing base was thk $80 million under the credit facility;
however, the borrowing base calculation is recaled as of April 15 and October 15 each year. Akiok 30, 2008, the Compagyjorrowing
capacity under the credit facility was $70.8 mitlio

The Company drew $0 and $60 million under the néngl credit facility during its fiscal years 2008ck2007, respectively. The $60 million
advanced under the credit facility during our fisgzar 2007 was used to complete the closing oP#gasquito and Pascua-Lama royalty
acquisitions, as discussed in Note 3. The compaitygpproximately $0.8 million in interest assoethtvith the outstanding credit facility
during fiscal year 2007. As of June 30, 2008 anai72the Company had no amounts outstanding undearédit facility.

7. NOTE PAYABLE

On March 1, 2007, RGCL, a wholly-owned subsidiainroyal Gold, entered into a $15.75 million termarofacility bearing interest at LIBOR
plus 0.25% pursuant to a Term Loan Agreement betiR€eCL and HSBC Bank. Pursuant to the terms offiven Loan Agreement, Royal
Gold must maintain a restricted interest-bearirqysties account (the “Collateral Account”) on dsjt@at HSBC Securities (USA) Inc. with a
balance equal to or in excess of the outstandinguats on the $15.75 million term loan. In connattiath the Term Loan Agreement, Royal
Gold entered into a Guarantee (the “Guarantee”Hetife of the Term Loan, for the benefit of HSB@nk to guaranty RGCL's obligations
under the Term Loan Agreement and a security ageaegranting HSBC Bank a security interest in tislaeral Account to secure RGCL's
obligations under the Term Loan Agreement andbtggations under the Guarantee. The loan will matur March 1, 2012,

The $15.75 million balance in the Collateral Accbas of June 30, 2008, is recordedRastricted cash — compensating balaooghe
Company’s consolidated balance sheets. RGCL’s $Ifhillion principal obligation under the Term LoAgreement is recorded &bte
payableon the Company’s consolidated balance sheets.

8. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

In November 2004, the Company adopted the Omnilomg/{Term Incentive Plan (“2004 Plan”). The 2004rRleplaces the ComparsyEquity
Incentive Plan. Under the 2004 Plan, 900,000 sh&r€@mmon stock are available for future granteffers, directors, key employees and
other persons. The Plan provides for the grantawksoptions, unrestricted stock, restricted stattkidend equivalent rights, stock appreciation
rights, and cash awards. Any of these awards maynded not, be made as

72




Table of Contents

ROYAL GOLD, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except share data, per ounce and ppound amounts)

performance incentives. Stock options granted utiteR004 Plan may be non-qualified stock optianseentive stock options.

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2008, 2002666, we recorded total non-cash stock compensatipanse related to our equity
compensation plans of $2.9 million, $2.7 milliordeB2.8 million, respectively. Non-cash stock congagion is allocated among cost of
operations, general and administrative, and exptorand business development in our consolidaiements of operations and
comprehensive income as summarized below:

For The Fiscal Years Ended June

(Amounts in thousand: 2008 2007 2006
Non-cash stock compensation allocati
Cost of operation $ 35€ $ 401 $ 381
General and administratiy 1,50¢ 1,51( 1,46¢
Exploration and business developm 1,00/ 752 932
Total nor-cash compensation exper $ 2,86¢ $ 2,668 $ 2,77¢

The total income tax benefit associated with nashcatock compensation expense was approximatedyriillion for the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2008, 2007, and 2006.

As of June 30, 2008, there are 70,567 shares ofmmonstock reserved for future issuance under 004 Z0an.

Stock Options

Stock option awards are granted with an exercige gqual to the closing market price of the Conyfmastock at the date of grant. Stock
option awards granted to officers, key employeasather persons vest based on one to three yeamntifiuous service. Stock option awards
granted to directors vest immediately with respe&0% of the shares granted and after one yearradpect to the remaining 50% granted.
Stock option awards have 10 year contractual terms.

To determine nomash stock compensation expense for stock opti@ndsythe fair value of each stock option awamktimated on the date
grant using the Black-Scholes-Merton (“Black-Sclkbjeption pricing model for all periods present&tie Black-Scholes model requires key
assumptions in order to determine fair value. TH@seassumptions during our fiscal year 2008, 280 2006 grants are noted in the
following table:

2008 2007 2006
Weighted average expected volatil 47.&% 52.%% 61.2%
Weighted average expected option term in 'y 5.C 5.1 5.4

Weighted average dividend yie 0.91% 0.92% 1.0(%
Weighted average risk free interest 3.£% 4.6% 4.5%

The Company’s expected volatility is based on tiseohical volatility of the Company’s stock overrtlexpected option term. The Company’s
expected option term is determined by historic&reise patterns along with other known employeeoonpany information at the time of
grant. The risk free interest rate
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is based on the zero-coupon U.S. Treasury borfteatrhe of grant with a term approximate to theested option term.

On November 7, 2007, 110,500 stock options undeR@94 Plan were granted to officers and certaipleyaes under the 2004 Plan. These
options have an exercise price of $29.75, which tha<losing market price for our common stocktmndate of grant.

A summary of stock option activity under our equitympensation plans for the fiscal year ended 30n2008, is presented below.

Weighte«-
Average
Weightec- Remaining
Average Contractue Aggregat:
Exercise Term Intrinsic
Stock Options Shares Price (Years) Value
Outstanding at July 1, 20( 579,21 $ 17.57
Granted 110,50( 29.7¢
Exercisec (201,750 7.1%
Forfeited and Expire (1,250 29.2(
Outstanding at June 30, 20 586,71: $ 21.6f 6.7 $ 5,697
Exercisable at June 30, 20 436,94" $ 19.1: 4.4 $ 5,347

The weighted-average grant date fair value of ogtigranted during the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006, was $12.82, $13nd%52.04, respectively. The total intrinsic vabi®ptions exercised during the fiscal ye
ended June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006, were $2.5mifk0.8 million, and $5.6 million, respectively.

A summary of the status of the Company’s non-vestedk options for the fiscal year ended June 8082is presented below:

Weightec-Average

Shares Grant Date Fair Valt
Non-vested at July 1, 20C 138,43 $ 13.0C
Grantec 110,50( $ 12.8:2
Vested (99,51 $ 12.4¢
Forfeited (1,250 $ 13.9¢
Non-vested at June 30, 20 148,16° $ 13.2:

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2008, 2002666, we recorded non-cash stock compensation sgmessociated with stock options of
$1.3 million, $1.2 million and $1.1 million, respely. As of June 30, 2008, there was approxinya$dl.1 million of total unrecognized non-
cash stock compensation expense related to noeevegick options granted under our equity comp@rsptans, which is expected to be
recognized over a weighted-average period of 2atsyé he total fair value of shares vested duttegfiscal years ended June 30, 2008, 2007
and 2006 was $1.3 million, $1.1 million and $0.3lion, respectively.
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Other Stockbased Compensation

On November 7, 2007, officers and certain employese granted 48,000 shares of restricted comnumk $hat can be earned only if either
one of two defined multi-year performance goalsét within five years of the date of grant (“Perfiance Shares”). If the performance goals
are not earned by the end of this five year petiogl Performance Shares will be forfeited. Vestihgerformance Shares is subject to certain
performance measures being met and can be basedinterim earn out of 25%, 50%, 75% or 100%. Tékned performance goals are tie
two different performance measures: (1) growthregfcash flow per share on a trailing twelve mdoatbis; and (2) growth of royalty ounces in
reserve on an annual basis.

A summary of the status of the Company’s non-veBdormance Shares for the fiscal year ended 3002008, is presented below:

Weightec-Average

Shares Grant Date Fair Valt
Non-vested at July 1, 20( 27,00( $ 28.7¢
Grantec 48,00( $ 29.7¢
Vested (9,000 $ 28.7¢
Forfeited — $ —
Non-vested at June 30, 20 66,00( $ 29.4¢

We measure the fair value of the Performance Stasasd upon the market price of our common stocK g date of grant. In accordance
with SFAS 123(R), the measurement date for theoPegnce Shares will be determined at such timetitiegperformance goals are attained or
that it is probable they will be attained. At sutche that it is probable that a performance cooditvill be achieved, compensation expense
be measured by the number of shares that will attfy be earned based on the grant date market @ficur common stock. Interim
recognition of compensation expense will be madriah time as management can reasonably estingtrithber of shares that will be ear
As of June 30, 2008, our estimates indicated thatgrobable that 59% of our non-vested Perforrae8itares will be earned by December 31,
2008. For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2008, 268 2006, we recorded non-cash stock compensatimense associated with our
Performance Shares of approximately $0.5 millidn1$nillion and $1.2 million, respectively. As afrie 30, 2008, total unrecognized rmast
stock compensation expense related to our Perfaren8hares is approximately $0.2 million, whichxpected to be recognized over the next
two fiscal quarters, the period over which it isipable that the performance goals will be attained.

As defined in the 2004 Plan, officers, non-exeaitiirectors and certain employees may be granteestof restricted stock that vest on
continued service alone (“Restricted Stock”). Orvdloaber 7, 2007, officers and certain employees wgeanted 72,500 shares of Restricted
Stock. Restricted Stock awards granted to offiegid certain employees vest over three years bewjrafter a three-year holding period from
the date of grant with one-third of the sharesimgsn years four, five and six, respectively. Also November 7, 2007, our non-executive
directors were granted 15,000 shares of Restri8teck. The non-executive directors’ shares of Restt Stock vest as to 50% immediately
and 50% one year after the date of grant.

Shares of Restricted Stock represent issued astaoding shares of common stock, with dividendastthg rights. We measure the fair value
of the Restricted Stock based upon the market pficeir common stock as of the date of grant. Retstt Stock is amortized over the
applicable vesting period
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using the straight-line method. Unvested shard®estricted Stock are subject to forfeiture upomteation of employment with the Company.

A summary of the status of the Company’s non-veRtestricted Stock for fiscal year ended June 30828 presented below:

Weightec-Average

Shares Grant Date Fair Valt
Non-vested at July 1, 20C 117,00( $ 24.7:
Grantec 87,50( $ 29.7¢
Vested (20,629 $ 29.5¢
Forfeited (625) $ 29.2(
Non-vested at June 30, 20 193,25( $ 26.7:

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2008, 2002866, we recorded natash stock compensation expense associated wiRetbteicted Stoc
of approximately $1.1 million, $0.4 million, and #0million, respectively. As of June 30, 2008, tatarecognized non-cash stock
compensation expense related to Restricted Stoslapproximately $3.8 million, which is expected#recognized over the remaining
weighted average vesting period of 2.4 years.

9. STOCKHOLDERS'’ EQUITY

Preferred Stock

We have 10,000,000 authorized and unissued sha#e8lopar value Preferred Stock as of June 308 20@ 2007.

Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock

On November 9, 2007, the Company completed aninffef 1.15 million shares of 7.25% mandatory catilsée preferred stock (“Mandatory
Preferred Stock”) at a price to the public of $D@0per share, less underwriter discounts and o#hated expenses, resulting in net proceeds of
$111.1 million. Dividends on the Mandatory Prefdr&ock were payable on a cumulative basis wheandsf declared by our board of
directors at an annual rate of 7.25% per sharéetiduidation preference of $100 per share. Dinittewere payable, at the Company’s
discretion, in cash, common stock or a combinatie@neof, on February 15, May 15, August 15 and Ndwer 15 of each year to and including
November 15, 2010, commencing on February 15, 2008January 10, 2008, the Comp’s board of directors declared the regular quayterl
dividend for the first dividend period of $1.9338rshare of the Mandatory Preferred Stock. Theddivil was payable on February 15, 200
preferred shareholders of record at the close sihless on February 1, 2008. The preferred dividess paid in cash.

Under the original terms of the Preferred Stoclewifig, each share of the Mandatory Preferred Staskto automatically convert on
November 15, 2010, into between 2.8335 and 3.486&s of our common stock, subject to-dilution adjustments. At any time prior to
November 15, 2010, holders may have elected toarveach share of the Mandatory Preferred Stockshares of our common stock at
minimum conversion rate of 2.8335 shares of comstook per share of the Mandatory Preferred Stadijest to antidilution adjustments. A
any time prior to May 15, 2008, we may have haauatoption, caused the conversion of all, butless than all, of the Mandatory Preferred
Stock into shares of our common stock at the prowé conversion rate described within the Mandafreferred Stock offering. However,
could not elect to exercise our provisional coniagrsight if, on or prior to
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May 15, 2008, we completed a material transactiwolving the acquisition of assets or a businesk wipurchase price of $100 million or
more.

On January 25, 2008, the Company announced thgéitised its provisional conversion right foraflthe issued and outstanding shares of its
Mandatory Preferred Stock. As part of the provialawonversion right, each share of the MandatoefdPred Stock was converted into shares
of our common stock on March 10, 2008 (the “Conieer®ate”), based on the average closing pricecpermon share on the Nasdaqg Global
Select Market (“Nasdaq”) over a 20 consecutiveitrgdiay period, which ended on March 5, 2008, asided in the Certificate of
Designations of the Mandatory Preferred Stock. 8Verage closing price over the 20 consecutiventaday period was $29.78 and each
outstanding share of Mandatory Preferred Stockaudsmatically converted into 3.4589 shares of comstock on the Conversion Date. The
Company issued 3,977,683 shares of its common sfeak conversion of the Mandatory Preferred Stotkhe Conversion Date.

In connection with the conversion, all accrued angaid dividends on the Mandatory Preferred Stqriouhe Conversion Date were payable
at $0.5035 per share of Mandatory Preferred Stadkweere paid in cash to holders of record on thev@rsion Date. Trading of the Mandatory
Preferred Stock on the NASDAQ was suspended atltise of business on March 5, 2008, and the Mang&eferred Stock was de-listed on
March 24, 2008. The Company applied a contingenefieial conversion feature model to account fer pinovisional conversion of the
Mandatory Preferred Stock during its third fiscahger of 2008, which resulted in the Company recgg a deemed dividend of $2.0 million
for the three and nine months ended March 31, ZDB8e were no tax consequences to the Companyagurersion of the Mandatory
Preferred Stock.

Treasury Stock

On January 25, 2008, the Company announced thaoétsl of directors authorized the repurchase dbu§80.0 million of its common stock
the open market through March 31, 2008. The tinaind number of shares repurchased through March(8B, depended on market
conditions and other corporate considerations.fAdarch 31, 2008, the Company repurchased 196,886mwon shares, at an average price of
$28.00 per common share for a total cost of apprately $5.5 million. The common share repurchase®iunded through cash and cash
equivalents. The total cost to reacquire the 19B&@8nmon shares was includedTlireasury Stockn the Company’s consolidated balance
sheets as of March 31, 2008. The repurchase progmarsuant to the January 25, 2008, announcemeai¢deon March 31, 2008.

On April 2, 2008, the Company retired the 196,986 mon shares repurchased, pursuant to the Janbia?P@8, repurchase announcement.
The 196,986 common shares retired have been rettortee Company’s authorized but unissued amolucommon stock. Also, on June 20,
2008, the Company retired the remaining 229,224nsomshares included in treasury stock. The 229¢224mon shares retired have been
returned to the Company’s authorized but unissueauat of common stock. As of June 30, 2008, the @y has zero common shares
included in treasury stock.

Stockholders’ Rights Plan

On September 10, 2007, the Company amended ardee#is Rights Agreement, dated September 10, 887Existing Agreement”)
pursuant to the First Amended and Restated Rigbteénent, dated September 10, 2007 (the “Amendeedeftent”). The Amended
Agreement extends the Final Expiration Date fromt&mber 10, 2007 to September 10, 2017. The AmeAdesement was approved by the
Company’s board of directors (the “Board”).
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The Amended Agreement, like the Existing Agreemisniptended to deter coercive or abusive tendier®tnd market accumulations. The
Amended Agreement is designed to encourage anracqoinegotiate with the Board and to enhancaé3theed’s ability to act in the best
interests of all the Company’s shareholders.

Under the Amended Agreement, each shareholdeedEtdmpany holds one preferred stock purchase (@gtRight”) for each share of
Company common stock held. The Rights generallpivecexercisable only in the event that an acquijpsrgy accumulates 15 percent or
more of the Company’s outstanding shares of comstmek. If this were to occur, subject to certaigeptions, each Right (except for the
Rights held by the acquiring party) would allowliislders to purchase one one-thousandth of a niesadyed share of Series A junior
participating preferred stock of Royal Gold or @empany’s common stock with a value equal to tvieeexercise price of the Right, initially
set at $175 under the terms and conditions sét fiorthe Amended Agreement.

Common Stock Issuances
Fiscal 2008
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, optioqmirchase 101,750 shares were exercised, reguitpproceeds of $0.7 million.

On March 10, 2008, we issued 3,977,683 sharesraf@mumon stock as part of the conversion of our déanry Preferred Stock. Please refe
“Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock” above fartlfier information regarding the Mandatory Prefér&tock.

On October 24, 2007, we issued 1,144,025 sharesrafommon stock to Battle Mountain shareholdengeasof the Company’s acquisition of
100% of the issued and outstanding shares of Btilentain. Refer to Note 2 for further discussiegarding the acquisition of Battle
Mountain.

On September 4, 2007, we issued 216,642 sharag abmamon stock to IAMGOLD Corporation (“IAMGOLD’§nd Repadre International
Corporation (“Repadre”) in connection with our aisition from IAMGOLD and Repadre of all of theirsised and outstanding shares of Battle
Mountain common stock. We had the option to acqesshares of Battle Mountain common stock froi@OLD and Repadre pursuant to
an option and support agreement we entered into MM GOLD in connection with the merger with Battiéountain.

Fiscal 2007
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, optiomqmirchase 46,467 shares were exercised, reguitiproceeds of $0.6 million.

As discussed in Note 3, on January 24, 2007, weeess77,434 shares of our common stock as pahed?Pé&fiasquito royalty acquisition.

In April 2007, we sold 4,400,064 shares of our camnmstock, at a price of $29.25 per share, resuitirgoceeds of approximately

$121.9 million, which is net of the underwriter'scbunt of approximately $6.3 million and transawttosts of approximately $650,000. A
portion of the net proceeds in this equity offerimgre used to pay a previously outstanding balander our revolving credit facility with
HSBC Bank, as discussed in Note 6, while the remginet proceeds were used to fund the acquisitiwhfinancing of additional royalty
interests and for general corporate purposes.
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Fiscal 2006

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, optiomqmirchase 276,777 shares were exercised, reguitproceeds of approximately
$3.9 million.

In September 2005, we sold 2,227,912 shares od@mamon stock in an underwritten public offeringaadrice of $26.00 per share, resulting in
proceeds of approximately $54.7 million, which & of the underwriter’s discount of $2.9 milliondaimansaction costs of approximately

$0.3 million. The net proceeds in this equity afigrwere used to fund the acquisition and finan@hgdditional royalty interests and for
general corporate purposes.

10. EARNINGS PER SHARE (“EPS”) COMPUTATION

For The Year Ended June 30, 2(

Income Shares Per-Shart
(Numerator (Denominator’ Amount
Net income $ 26,10¢
Preferred stock dividenc (2,8072)
Preferred stock deemed dividend upon convet (1,98¢)
Net income available to common stockholders foid@arnings per sha $ 21,32 31,054,72 $ 0.6¢€
Effect of dilutive securitie — 335,56¢
Diluted EPS $ 21,32( 31,390,29 $ 0.6¢

Options to purchase 1,600 shares of common stbekparchase price of $32.40 per share, were oulistg at June 30, 2008, but were not
included in the computation of diluted EPS becdbseexercise price of these options was greaterttimaverage market price of the common
shares for the period.

For The Year Ended June 30, 2(

Income Shares Per-Shart
(Numerator (Denominator’ Amount
Basic EPS
Income available to common stockhold $ 19,72( 24,827,31 $ 0.7¢
Effect of dilutive securitie 247,76
Diluted EPS $ 19,72( 25,075,08 $ 0.7¢

Options to purchase 1,600 shares of common stbekparchase price of $32.40 per share, were oualistg at June 30, 2007, but were not
included in the computation of diluted EPS becdbseexercise price of these options was greaterttimaverage market price of the common
shares for the period.
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For The Year Ended June 30, 2(

Income Shares Per-Shart
(Numerator (Denominator’ Amount
Basic EPS
Income available to common stockhold $ 11,35( 22,863,78 $ 0.5C
Effect of dilutive securitie 270,25(
Diluted EPS $ 11,35( 23,134,03. $ 0.4¢

As of June 30, 2006, all outstanding options weobuided in the computation of diluted EPS becaliseekercise price of all the options was
less than the average market price of our commarestfor the period.

11. INCOME TAXES

2008 2007 2006
Current federal tax expen $12,81: $10,31( $ 5,97«
Deferred tax benef (32 (813 (8739
Increase in deferred tax asset valuation allow: 147 52 —

$12,92¢ $ 9,54¢ $ 5,101

The provision for income taxes for the fiscal yeamged June 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006, differs fremamount of income tax determined by
applying the applicable United States statutorgfatincome tax rate to pre-tax income (net of mitgdgnterest in income of consolidated
subsidiary and loss from equity investment) frornerapions as a result of the following differences:

2008 2007 2006
Total expense computed by applying federal r $13,66: $10,24¢ $ 5,75¢
State income taxes, net of federal ber 137 84 19z
Adjustments of valuation allowan: 147 52 —
Excess depletio (1,45¢€) (95€) (922)
Other 43€ 12¢ 73

$12,92¢ $ 9,54¢ $ 5,107
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The tax effects of temporary differences and camyérds, which give rise to our deferred tax asarttliabilities at June 30, 2008 and 2007,
are as follows:

2008 2007
Deferred tax asset

Non-cash stoc-based compensatic $ 1,59t $ 927
Net operating losse 1,451 —
Other 381 20€
Total deferred tax asse 3,42 1,13:
Valuation allowanct (199 (52
Net deferred tax asse 3,22¢ 1,081
Deferred tax liabilities

Mineral property basi (28,119 (6,536
Other (1,100 (302)
Total deferred tax liabilitie (29,219 (6,83%)
Total net deferred taxe $(25,989) $ (5,75))

As of June 30, 2008 and 2007, our valuation allmgamas associated with foreign net operating las/forwards attributed to RGCL. The
operating loss associated with RGCL is approxinygk&l2 million. There is an unlimited carryback aradryforward period to use such losses.

The Company adopted the provisions of FIN 48 og 1uR007, with no impact on its financial statetsers a result of the acquisition of
Battle Mountain on October 24, 2007, the Compagmed a liability for unrecognized tax benefitsaapproximately $0.4 million. The
liability for unrecognized tax benefits is refledteithin Other long-term liabilitieson the Company’s consolidated balance sheets.

The material income tax returns the Company fitestibe U.S. federal income tax return, which httwe@e year statute of limitations, and the
Colorado state income tax return, which has a year statute of limitations. The U.S. federal retfar tax years ended on or after June 30,
2004, and the Colorado state return for tax yeade@ on or after June 30, 2003, are subject to iedion by the relevant taxing authority.

Interest and penalties associated with the lighiitit unrecognized tax benefits is approximately $80 at June 30, 2008, and is included in
Other long-term liabilitieson the Company’s consolidated balance sheets.
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12. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
The Company’s supplemental cash flow informationtiie fiscal years ending June 30, 2008, 2007 836 & as follows:

Cash paid during the period fc 2008 2007 2006
Interest $ — $ 801 $ —
Income taxes, net of refun $ 13,29: $ 10,29: $ 4,611

Non-cash investing and financing activitit
Dividends declare $ 11,57 $ 6,28¢ $ 5,05¢
Conversion of preferred stock to common st $ 116,94¢ — —
Battle Mountain acquisition (with common sto« $ 35,83 $ — $ —
Acquisition of royalty interest in mineral propeityith common stock $ — $ 18,49t $ —

13. MAJOR CUSTOMERS

In each of fiscal years 2008, 2007 and 2006, weived approximately $30.8 million, $28.2 millionca$23.1 million, respectively, of our
royalty revenue from the same operator, Barrick,rtmt from the same mine.

14. SIMPLIFIED EMPLOYEE PENSION (“SEP”) PLAN

We maintain a Simplified Employee Pension Plan P3Ban”) in which all employees are eligible totfapate. We contribute a minimum of
3% of an employee’s compensation to an accountsér the benefit of the employee. If an emplogheoses to make additional
contributions to the SEP Plan through salary wittings, we will match such contributions to a masimof 7% of the employee’s salary. We
contributed $0.2 million, $0.1 million and $0.2 hah in fiscal years 2008, 2007 and 2006, respebtiv

15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Casmalia

On March 24, 2000, the United States Environmeptatection Agency (“EPA”) notified Royal Gold an@ 8ther entities that they were
considered potentially responsible parties (“PRRster the Comprehensive Environmental Responsap€nsation, and Liability Act of
1980, as amended (“Superfund”), at the Casmali@less Hazardous Waste Disposal Site (the “SiteQdnta Barbara County, California.
EPA'’s allegation that Royal Gold was a PRP was basdhendisposal of allegedly hazardous petroleumaragibn wastes at the Site by Ro
Gold’s predecessor, Royal Resources, Inc., durd@pland 1984.

After extensive negotiations, on September 23, 28@¥al Gold, along with 35 members of the PRP griauigeted by EPA, entered into a
Partial Consent Decree with the United States oEAca intending to settle their liability for thenlled States of America’s past and future
cleanup costs incurred at the Site. Based on the minwolaime of allegedly hazardous waste that RoyabRe®s, Inc. disposed of at the S
our share of the $25.3 million settlement amourg $@.1 million, which we deposited into
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the escrow account that the PRP group set up ébmpilrpose in January 2002. The funds were pdidetd&nited States of America on May 9,
2003. The United States of America may only puiRagal Gold and the other PRPs for additional cleprcosts if the United States of
America’s total cleanup costs at the Site significantly exceed the etqubcost of approximately $272 million. We beliexg potential liability
with the United States of America to be a remotesfimlity.

At present, Royal Gold is considering entering iatbe minimis settlement with the State of CalifariThe date for accepting a settlement was
extended indefinitely by the State of Californiangdimg preparation of settlement documentation leyState. Such settlement will result in a
final conclusion regarding the Company’s respotigittio address the matter.

Contractual Obligations

Our long-term contractual obligations as of JungZB08, are as follows:

Payments Due by Peric

Less thar More thar
Contractual Obligation Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
Note payable®) $17,73: $ 52¢ $17,20: $ — $ —
Operating lease® 904 18¢ 631 87 —
Long-term retirement obligatio 94 26 53 15 —
Total $18,73( $ 741 $17,88: $ 10z $ —

@®  Amounts represent principal ($15.75 million) antireated interest payments ($2.0 million) assumiagearly extinguishment. See N¢
7 for further detail

(@ We lease office space under a lease agreementh wkjires October 31, 201

Employment Agreements

We have one-year employment agreements with soroarasfficers which, under certain circumstanceguire total minimum future base
compensation, at June 30, 2008, of approximatel§ #illion. The terms of each of these agreememtsraatically extend annually, for one
additional year, unless terminated by Royal Goltherofficer, according to the terms of the agresise

16. RELATED PARTY

Crescent Valley Partners, L.P. (“CVP") was formedadimited partnership in April 1992. It owns 23% net value royalty on production of
minerals from a portion of Cortez. Denver Miningiéace Company, our wholly-owned subsidiary, isgéeeral partner and holds a 2.0%
interest in CVP. In addition, Royal Gold holds a628 limited partner interest in the partnershipjlevbur Executive Chairman, the Chairman
of our Audit Committee and one other member oflmaard of directors hold an aggregate 35.56% limgtdner interest. The general partner
performs administrative services for CVP in reagivand processing the royalty payments received free operator including the
disbursement of royalty payments and record keefonin-kind distributions to the limited partnerscluding our directors and Executive
Chairman.
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CVP receives its royalty from the Cortez Joint \(gatin-kind. The Company, as well as certain olineited partners, sell their pro-rata shares
of such gold immediately and receive distributionsash, while CVP holds gold for certain otheritad partners. Such gold inventories, wt
totaled 27,552 ounces of gold as of June 30, 28@8held by a third party refinery in Utah for tiecount of the limited partners of CVP. The
inventories are carried at historical cost andcéassified asnventory — restrictedn the consolidated balance sheets. The carryilug v the
gold in inventory was approximately $11.2 milliomda$10.6 million as of June 30, 2008 and 2007 ,getsyely, while the fair value of such
ounces was approximately $25.6 million and $17 Bionias of June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectivegnaof the gold currently held in
inventory as of June 30, 2008 and 2007, is atteithtid Royal Gold, as the gold allocated to RoyddGstypically sold within five days of
receipt.

17. STAFF ACCOUNTING BULLETIN NO. 108

In September 2006, the SEC issued SAB 108. The @oynelected early application of SAB 108 duringliisd quarter of fiscal year 2007,
with effect from July 1, 2006. Prior to SAB 108eth have been two widely-recognized methods fontijyang the effects of financial
statement misstatements: the “roll-over” method thed‘iron curtain” method. The roll-over methoaéses primarily on the impact of a
misstatement on the income statement — includiegelersing effect of prior year misstatementbut-its use can lead to the accumulatio
misstatements in the balance sheet. The iron-cumtaithod, on the other hand, focuses primarilyheneffect of correcting the period-end
balance sheet with less emphasis on the reverffimgi®of prior year misstatements on the incoragestent. Prior to our application of the
guidance in SAB 108, we used the roll-over mettardjfiantifying financial statement misstatements.

SAB 108 permits existing public companies to itiyiapply its provisions by either (i) restatinggrfinancial statements as if the “dual
approach” had always been applied, or (ii) recaydire cumulative effect of initially applying thddal approach” as adjustments to the
carrying value of assets and liabilities with afsefting adjustment to the opening balance of methiearnings. The Company has elected to
record the effects of applying SAB 108 as an adjesit to the carrying value of assets and liabdjttreowever, due to the nature of such
adjustments (described below), no offsetting adjestt was necessary to the Company’s beginningeojéfar retained earnings.

Using its pre-SAB 108 methodology for assessingstatements, the Company has determined that teeteff such error on any previously
issued financial statement was not material.

Consolidation of CVP

CVP was formed as a limited partnership in Aprill@02. It owns a 1.25% net value royalty on proiduncof minerals from a portion of Corte
Denver Mining Finance Company, our whobtiy¢ned subsidiary, is the general partner and ho@% interest in the partnership. In addition
hold a 29.6% limited partner interest in the parshg, while our Executive Chairman, the Chairméonw Audit Committee and two other
members of our board of directors hold an aggre4ai@9% limited partner interest.

Historically, the Company recorded its proportiomaérest (31.6%) in CVP’s assets, liabilities,eeues and expenses pursuant to Emerging
Issues Task Force 00-hvestor Balance Sheet and Income Statement uhddtduity Method for Investments in Certain Parsiéps and
Other Ventures.

In connection with the preparation of its finangtdtements for the quarter ended March 31, 26@7Company determined that due to the
legal structure of CVP and certain related factGP should have
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been fully consolidated, effective December 31,@ursuant to the guidance of FASB Interpretabion 46 Consolidation of Variable

Interest Entities(as revised, “FIN 46R"), rather than consolidatedds on the Compars/proportional interest in CVP. On a fully consatiek
basis, all of the assets, liabilities, revenueseaqenses of CVP would have been reflected in tirafgainy’s consolidated financial statements,
including a minority interest equivalent to the assets of CVP representing the ownership shamyafty interests in mineral properties and
inventory held for others. Fully consolidating CMBuld not have changed the Company’s proportiosldéee of earnings from CVP, nor
would it have changed the Company’s consolidatedilegs or shareholders’ equity for any previousqus.

As indicated above, the Company determined thagtfeet of proportionately, rather than fully, colidating CVP was not material to any
previously issued financial statements based oiCtrapany’s pre-SAB 108 methodology. However, thealative effect of correcting the
error in the quarter ended March 31, 2007, wouldhbéerial to that quarter as well as to the estahaésults of operations for fiscal 2007. As
such, the Company has elected to apply the trangitiovisions of SAB 108 by adjusting the openiagying value of the following assets and
liabilities for fiscal 2007:

June 30
2006 Adjusted
Reportec SAB 108 July 1, 200¢
Balance Adjustment Balance
Royalty interests in mineral properties, $ 84,59( $ 97 $ 84,68’
Inventory— restricted $ — $ 9,37« $ 9,374
Total asset $172,26( $ 9,471 $ 181,73:
Total liabilities $ 10,60( $ — $ 10,60(
Minority interest in subsidiar $ = $ 9471 $ 9,471
Total stockholder equity $161,66( $ — $ 161,66(
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $172,26( $ 9,471 $ 181,73:

As indicated above, the adoption of SAB 108 hadmmact on the Company’s retained earnings. Accglgimo adjustment was necessary to
record the cumulative effect on the opening balarigetained earnings at July 1, 2006.

The Company does not believe, based on its pre-B¥Bmethodology, that the effect of proportionatefgher than fully, consolidating CVP
was material in any of the periods since DecemefB03, the effective date of FIN 46R to the Conypdn reaching that determination, the
Company considered the following incremental adpestts to our reported annual financial statemdaitgiscal year 2006.

Fiscal Yeal
Ended June 3(
2006
Royalty revenut $ 1,507
Cost of operation $ 59
Depreciation, depletion and amortizati $ 21
Income before income taxes and minority inte $ 1,42
Minority interest in income of consolidated subariks $ (1,427)
Net income $ —
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18. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On July 30, 2008, we entered into a definitive agrent to acquire a portfolio of royalties from Bekrin exchange for net cash consideration
of $150 million and a restructuring of certain Rb@ald royalty positions at Cortez, which is opedby subsidiaries of Barrick. The Barrick
royalty portfolio consists of royalties on 77 projes, including eight producing royalties, 2 dephent stage royalties and 67 exploration
stage projects. The restructuring of certain Combgalty positions includes the reduction of theR2Ssliding-scale royalty rate ranging from
0.72%-9.0%, to match the current GSRL1 sliding-soajalty rate ranging from 0.40%-5.0%. In additiare will also eliminate our interest in
the 0.71% GSR3 and the NVR1 (non-consolidated nitinonerest portion) royalties on the mining claiithat comprise the undeveloped
Crossroads deposit at Cortez. The GSR3 and NVRAltiey which cover areas outside of the Crossrdagssit will not be affected by this
transaction. The purchase price for the acquisitidinbe paid from cash on hand at closing. Theuésitjon is subject to customary closing
conditions and is expected to close on Octobef@82The Company is currently evaluating the actingrireatment for this transaction.

19. QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED)

Basic Diluted

Royalty Operating Earnings Earnings
Revenue! Income Net Incom: Per Shar Per Shart

Fiscal Year 2008 Quarter Ende
September 3 $12,817 $ 7,364 $ b5,76: $ 0.2 $ 0.2
December 3: 15,39¢ 7,041 5,06¢ 0.1: 0.1z
March 31 19,51¢ 9,741 7,42( 0.1z 0.12
June 3( 21,66¢ 11,771 7,861 0.2 0.2¢
$69,39: $35,92: $ 26,10¢ $ 0.6¢ $ 0.6¢

Fiscal Year 2007 Quarter Ende
September 3 $ 9,92¢ $ 6,63« $ 4,96( $ 0.21 $ 0.21
December 3: 12,85t 7,83¢ 5,63¢ 0.2¢ 0.24
March 31 11,20¢ 5,691 3,43¢ 0.1¢ 0.14
June 3( 14,36 8,34¢ 5,68¢ 0.2C 0.2C
$48,35] $28,50¢ $ 19,72( $ 0.7¢ $ 0.7¢

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUTANT S ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, thenewo changes in or disagreements with our IndbgperRegistered Public Accounting Fi
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, over accounting arahfiial disclosure.
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ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Conclusions Regarding Disclosure Controls and Prodeires

Our President and Chief Executive Officer and CRiefincial Officer and Treasurer evaluated theotiffeness of the Company’s disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a}1fder the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 nasnaled, as of June 30, 2008. Our
President and Chief Executive Officer and our CRiefincial Officer and Treasurer, based on thealuation of our disclosure controls and
procedures concluded that as of June 30, 2008]isciosure controls and procedures were effectiyerdvide reasonable assurance that
information we are required to disclose in reptrtg we file or submit under the Exchange Act orded, processed, summarized and
reported within the time period specified in theCSiles and forms, and that such information isieadated and communicated to our
management, including our President and Chief Bikex®fficer and Chief Financial Officer and Treasu as appropriate, to allow timely
decisions regarding their disclosure.

Management’'s Report on Internal Control over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@gorting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Adi9&4, as amended. Our internal control over fir@meiporting is designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilitynafiicial reporting and the preparation of finanstatements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting iplies

Management assessed the effectiveness of our ahteontrol over financial reporting as of June 3008. In making this assessment,
management used the criteria set forth by the Cdtmendof Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadwam@gsion (COSO) itnternal
Control-Integrated FrameworkBased on our assessment and those criteria, mareag concluded that, as of June 30, 2008, oumialte
control over financial reporting is effective.

Our management, including our President and Chiettive Officer and Chief Financial Officer ande@surer, does not expect that our
disclosure controls and procedures or our intezoatrols will prevent all error and all fraud. Artool system, no matter how well conceived
and operated, can provide only reasonable, nofalesassurance that the objectives of the cosyrsiem are met. Further, the design of a
control system must reflect the fact that thereraseurce constraints and the benefits of contmist be considered relative to their costs.
Because of the inherent limitations in all consgétems, no evaluation of controls can provide laibs@ssurance that all control issues and
instances of fraud, if any, within the Company hbeen detected.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, the Company’s independgistered public accounting firm audited thmaficial statements included in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K, has also audited mamegé's assessment of the effectiveness of the Coygpaternal control over financial
reporting as of June 30, 2008, as stated in tlegiont, which is included herein.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindgrirm

PricewaterhouseCoopers’ report on the Companyésrial control over financial reporting is containeithin Item 8 of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K and is incorporated by reference herein.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There was no change in our internal control ovearicial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) emtthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended) during our fourth fiscal quarter thatnaserially affected, or is reasonably likely to evélly affect, our internal control over
financial reporting.
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.

PART llI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE RE GISTRANT

The information required by this item appears urilersection headings “Proposal 1 — Election o€l Directors”, “Directors and
Officers” and “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownershipg®rting Compliance” included in the Company’s Br&tatement for its 2008 Annual
Stockholders Meeting to be filed with the SEC with20 days after June 30, 2008, and is incorpotagedference in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

The Company’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethitgnithe meaning of Item 406 of Regulation S-K pidal by the SEC under the
Exchange Act that applies to our principal exeautifficer and principal financial officer is avdila on the Company’s website at
www.royalgold.com and in print without change ty atockholder who requests a copy. Requests faesghould be directed to Royal Gold,
Inc., Attention Karen Gross, 1660 Wynkoop StreeiteS1000, Denver, Colorado, 80202. The Comparsnits to satisfy the disclosure
requirements of Item 5.05 of Form 8-K regarding anmyendment to, or a waiver from, a provision of @fmnpany’s Code of Business Conduct
and Ethics by posting such information on the Comyfsawebsite.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item appears untlersection heading “Executive Compensation” idetliin the Companyg’Proxy Stateme!
for its 2008 Annual Stockholders Meeting to bedilgith the SEC within 120 days after June 30, 2@B8I is incorporated by reference in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item appears untlersub-section heading “Equity Compensation Riformation” and section heading
“Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Ownersldanagement” included in the Company’s Proxy Stetet for its 2008 Annual
Stockholders Meeting to be filed with the SEC with20 days after June 30, 2008, and is incorpofagaéference in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item appears urilersub-section heading “Certain RelationshipsReldted Transactions” and
“Independence of Directors” in the Company’s Pr&tgtement for its 2008 Annual Stockholders Meetinge filed with the SEC within
120 days after June 30, 2008, and is incorporataefierence in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item appears uridersub-section heading “Independent RegisterdticPAccountants” and the section
heading “Proposal 3 — Ratification of Appointmeftrmdependent Registered Public Accountants” inetlth the Companyg’Proxy Stateme
for its 2008 Annual Stockholders Meeting to bedilgith the SEC within 120 days after June 30, 2@B8I is incorporated by reference in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) Financial Statements

The Consolidated Financial Statements, togethér tlig report thereon of PricewaterhouseCoopersdatBd August 19, 2008, are includec
part of Item 8, Financial Statements and Suppleargri?ata, commencing on page 53 above.

Index to Financial Statements

Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfimgm 54
Consolidated Balance She: 55
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Compsalemcome 56
Consolidated Statements of Stockhol’ Equity 57
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flc 58
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme 59

(b) Exhibits
Reference is made to the Exhibit Index beginningage 91 hereof.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 156f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the ttegig has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized.

ROYAL GOLD, INC.

Date: August 19, 200° By: /s/ Tony Jense
Tony Jenser
President and Chief Executive Offic

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed bbélpthe following persons on behalf of 1
Registrant and in the capacities and on the datbsated.

Date: August 19, 2008 By: /s/ Tony Jense
Tony Jenser
President and Chief Executive Offic

Date: August 19, 2007 By: /s/ Stefan L. Weng:
Stefan L. Wengel
Chief Financial Officer

Date: August 19, 2007 By: /s/ Stanley Dempst
Stanley Dempse)
Executive Chairmar

Date: August 19, 2007 By: /s/ S. Oden Howell, J
S. Oden Howell, Jr
Director

Date: August 19, 2007 By: /s/ John W. Gotl
John W. Goth
Director

Date: August 19, 2007 By: /s/ Merritt E. Marcus
Merritt E. Marcus
Director

Date: August 19, 2007 By: /s/ M. Craig Haast
M. Craig Haase
Director

Date: August 19, 2007 By: /s/ James W. Stucke
James W. Stuckel
Director

Date: August 19, 2007 By: /s/ Donald J. Wortl
Donald J. Worth
Director

Date: August 19, 2007 By: /s/ William M. Haye:
William M. Hayes
Director
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Exhibit Index
Exhibit
Number Description
2.2 Amended and Restated Agreement and Plan of Medlgegd July 30, 2007, among Battle Mountain Goldl&wegtion Corp., Roya

3.1

3.2

3.3

4.1

Gold, Inc. and Royal Battle Mountain, Inc. (filed Bxhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Current Report om8-K on August 2, 2007 and
incorporated herein by referenc

Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amenfii(as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Bemn February 8, 2008 and
incorporated herein by referenc

Amended and Restated Bylaws, as amended (filekiiE3.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report onrRdr0-Q on May 1, 2008
and incorporated herein by referen

Amended and Restated Certificate of Designatior3envfes A Junior Participating Preferred Stock of& Gold, Inc. (filed as
Exhibit 3.1 to the Compar's Current Report on Forn-K on September 10, 2007 and incorporated hereiefgyence

First Amended and Restated Rights Agreement dated September 10, 2007 between Royal Gold, Ind.Gomputershare Trust
Company, N.A. (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the CompaniRegistration Statement on Form 8-A/A on SeptertbeP007 and
incorporated herein by referenc
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Exhibit
Number Description
10.1** Equity Incentive Plan (filed as part of the Comparproxy statement for its 1996 Annual Meeting td&kholders on November 25,
1996 and incorporated herein by referer
10.Z Exploration and Development Option Agreement betwkacer Dome United States, Inc. and Royal Gaid, dated effective
July 1, 1998 (filed as Exhibit 10(v) to the Compannual Report on Form 10-K on September 28, 1898 incorporated herein
by reference
10.c Royalty Agreement between Royal Gold, Inc. andGbetez Joint Venture dated April 1, 1999 (filedpast of Item 5 of the
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K on April 12, 1999 and incorporated herein by refee)
10.4 Firm offer to purchase royalty interest“ldaho Grou” between Royal Gold, Inc. and Idaho Group dated 28Jy1999 (filed a
Attachment A to the Compa’s Current Report on Forn-K on September 2, 1999 and incorporated hereiretgrence
10.2  Amendment to Equity Incentive Plan (filed as Appendto the Compan’s proxy statement on October 15, 1999 and incotpd
herein by reference
10.€ Assignment and Assumption Agreement, dated DecetiZ0d02 (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Comp’s Current Report on Forn-
K on December 23, 2002 and incorporated hereirefgrence’
10.7 Production Payment Agreement between Genesis hiadcRayal Gold, Inc. dated October 13, 2004 (filsdEahibit 10.1(a) to th
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K on October 18, 2004 and incorporated herein Breace)
10.¢ Royalty Deed between Genesis Inc. and Royal Gold,dated October 13, 2004 (filed as Exhibit 10.1¢lithe Company’s Current
Report on Form-K on October 18, 2004 and incorporated herein bgreace)
10.€ Agreement between Genesis Inc. and Royal Gold daied October 13, 2004 (filed as Exhibit 10.1¢cfhte Company’s Current
Report on Form-K on October 18, 2004 and incorporated herein bgreace)
10.1¢**  Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement (filedEaghibit 10.01 to the Company’s Current Report omfr8-K on February 25,
2005 and incorporated herein by referer
10.17* Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement (filesl Exhibit 10.02 to the Company’s Current ReporForm 8K on February 2!

2005 and incorporated herein by referer
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10.12x*  Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (filed as Exhili§i.03 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8ak-ebruary 25, 2005
and incorporated herein by referen

10.12*  Form of Performance Share Agreement. (filed aslixhD.6 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on FGGnQ on May 9, 2006
and incorporated herein by referen

10.12*  Agreement dated February 18, 2005, by and betwegalRSold, Inc. and Stefan Wenger (filed as Exhil@it05 to the Company’s
Current Report on Forr-K on February 25, 2005 and incorporated hereireligrence’

10.1%*  Royal Gold, Inc. 2004 Omnibus Long-Term IncentiVerH(filed as Exhibit 99.2 to the Company’s CurrBetport on Form & on
September 21, 2005 and incorporated herein byaede)

10.1¢~*  Form of Employment Contract (filed as Exhibit 9%03he Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K on Seyter 22, 2005,
together with the Schedule of Executive OfficergtiBa thereto (filed as Exhibit 99.1 to the ComparGurrent Report on Form 8-
K on September 4, 2007), and incorporated hereirefgrence

10.17 Royalty Assignment and Agreement, effective as e€&nber 26, 2002, between High Desert Mineral Ressulnc. and Hig
Desert Gold Corporation (filed as Exhibit 99.4e Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K on SepterdBe2005 and
incorporated herein by referenc

10.1¢ Royalty Assignment, Confirmation, Amendment, andgt®&ement of Royalty, and Agreement, dated as oENiber 30, 1995,
among Barrick Bullfrog Inc., Barrick Goldstrike Més Inc. and Royal Hal Co. (filed as Exhibit 99.5hHe Company’s Current
Report on Form-K on September 22, 2005 and incorporated hereieteyence

10.1¢ Amendment to Royalty Assignment, Confirmation, Amerent, and Restatement of Royalty, and Agreeméettive as of
October 1, 2004, among Barrick Bullfrog Inc., BekriGoldstrike Mines Inc. and Royal Hal Co. (filesl Bxhibit 99.6 to the
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K on September 22, 2005 and incorporated hereneteyence

10.2( Proceeds Agreement with HSBC Bank USA (filed asiBixi0.3 to the Company’s Current Report on ForiK 8n December 2(
2005 and incorporated herein by referer

10.21 Purchase Agreement, between Kennecott Minerals @ognand Royal Gold, Inc., dated December 22, 2[5! @s Exhibit 10.1

to the Compar’s Current Report on Forn-K on December 29, 2005 and incorporated hereirefgrence
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10.2: Amended and Restated Funding Agreement datedReshofiary 22, 2006, between Société des Mines darkapalso known as
Somita, SA, and Royal Gold, Inc. (filed as Exhibix 1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-KWawch 7, 2006 and
incorporated herein by referenc

10.2: Conveyance of Tail Royalty and Grant of Milling Fésted as of February 22, 2006, between Sociét®ldes de Taparko, also
known as Somita, SA, and Royal Gold, Inc. (filedeadibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report onnF8-K on March 7, 2006
and incorporated herein by referen

10.2¢ Conveyance of Production Payment dated as of FgbR2a 2006, between Société des Mines de Tapafko known as Somita, S
and Royal Gold, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to fiempany’s Current Report on Form 8-K on March Q&8and incorporated herein
by reference

10.2t Guaranty and Agreement in Support of Somita Fundiggeement dated as of February 22, 2006, from HRigler Gold Mine Ltd. tc
and for the benefit of Royal Gold Inc. (filed ashibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report onrkd0-Q on May 9, 2006 and
incorporated herein by referenc

10.2¢ Pledge Agreement dated as of February 22, 200&/geet High River Gold Mines (International) Ltd. gHiRiver Gold Mines (We:
Africa) Ltd. and Royal Gold, Inc. (filed as Exhildi0.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on FornQLOn May 9, 2006 and
incorporated herein by referenc

10.27 Guarantee Agreement dated as of February 22, 208igh River Gold Mines Ltd. in favor of Royal Ghlinc. (filed as
Exhibit 10.3 to the Compa’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q on May 9, 2006 and incorporated herein by refes§

10.2¢ Pledge of Securities dated as of February 22, 2006ligh River Gold Mines Ltd. in favor of Royal @lo Inc. (filed as Exhibit 10.4
to the Compar’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q on May 9, 2006 and incorporated herein by refesk

94




Table of Contents

Exhibit
Number Description

10.2¢ Contribution Agreement in Support of Somita Fundikgreement dated as of February 22, 2006, from HRiyter Gold Mine Ltd.
to and for the benefit of Royal Gold Inc. (filed Bshibit 10.5 to the Company’s Quarterly Reportrarm 10-Q on May 9, 2006
and incorporated herein by referen

10.3C*  Form of Indemnification Agreement with DirectorsdaDfficers (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Compangsrrent Report on Form 8-
K on November 13, 2006, together with the Schedtil@ertain Officers Parties thereto (filed as Exh@9.2 to the Company’s
Current Report on Formr-K on September 4, 2007), and incorporated hereiretgrence

10.31 Purchase and Sale Agreement for Pefiasquito and Réyalties among Minera Kennecott S.A. DE C.V.nKecott Exploratiol
Company and Royal Gold, Inc., dated December 286 Zfiled as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quasté&tkeport on Form 10-Q
on February 9, 2007 and incorporated herein byeafs)

10.32 Shares for Debt Agreement between Kennecott Exjibor&ompany and Royal Gold, Inc., dated DecemBe2006 (filed as
Exhibit 10.3 to the Compa’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q on February 9, 2007 and incorporated herein feyeace)

10.3¢ Contract for Assignment of Rights Granted, by MaKennecott, S.A. de C.V. Represented in this Apexd by Mr. Dave F.
Simpson, and Minera Pefasquito, S.A. de C.V., Ramted in this Agreement by Attorney, Jose Marila® Tamayo (filed as
Exhibit 10.4 to the Compa’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q on February 9, 2007 and incorporated herein feyeace)

10.3¢ Second Amended and Restated Loan Agreement amoyaj Bold, Inc., High Desert Mineral Resources, bwed HSBC Banl
USA, National Association, dated January 5, 200&dfas Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Quarterly &¢pn Form 10-Q on
February 9, 2007 and incorporated herein by retes¥

10.3¢ Supplemental Mortgage, Deed of Trust, Security Agrent, Pledge and Financing Statement betweenbigkrt Mineral
Resources, Inc. and HSBC USA Bank, National Assimciadated January 5, 2007 (filed as Exhibit 10.6he Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form -Q on February 9, 2007 and incorporated herein feyeace)

10.3¢ Amended and Restated Mortgage, Deed of Trust, 8gAgreement, Pledge and Financing Statement teiviRoyal Gold an
HSBC USA Bank, National Association, dated Janigr2007 (filed as Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s @eidy Report on
Form 1(-Q on February 9, 2007 and incorporated herein t®reace)

10.3% Second Amended and Restated Promissory Note betR@gal Gold, High Desert Mineral Resources, Ind Bi$BC USA Bank,

National Association, dated January 5, 2007 (fdedExhibit 10.8 to the Compeé’s Quarterly Report on Form 1Q-on February ¢
2007 and incorporated herein by referer
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10.3¢ Assignment of Rights Agreement among Mario Ivanrtdedez Alvarez, Royal Gold Chile Limitada and Rdgald Inc., dated
January 16, 2007 (filed as Exhibit 10.9 to the Camyps Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q on Februarg(f7 and incorporated
herein by reference
10.3¢ Term Loan Agreement between Royal Gold Chile Licdtand HSBC Bank USA, National Association, dadfaMarch 1, 20C
(filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Compe's Quarterly Report on Form -Q on May 4, 2007 and incorporated herein by refegg
10.4C Guaranty between Royal Gold, Inc. and HSBC Bank US#tional Association, dated as of March 1, 200&d as Exhibit 10.:
to the Compar’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q on May 4, 2007 and incorporated herein by refesg
10.41 First Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Agegement by and among Royal Gold, Inc., High Belgéneral
Resources, Inc. and HSBC Bank USA, National Assmciadated as of January 23, 2008 (filed as ExHiBil to the Company’s
Current Report on Formr-K on January 29, 200!
10.42* Letter of Intent between Royal Gold, Inc. and MinErojects Pty Ltd dated April 3, 20!
10.4% Extension letter dated June 30, 2008, of the leftémtent between Royal Gold, Inc. and MinEx PotgePty Ltd. (filed as Exhib
10.42 herewith
10.44* Royalty Purchase and Sale Agreement between Rayld| @ic. and Barrick Gold Corporation dated July 2008
10.4% Extension letter dated August 14, 2008, of thestatf Intent between Royal Gold, Inc. and MinExjBcts Pty Ltd. (filed a
Exhibit 10.42 herewith
21.1 Royal Gold and Its Subsidiari
23.1* Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing
317 Certification of President and Chief Executive ©éfi required by Section 302 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 200z
31z Certification of Chief Financial Officer required I$ection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002
32.1* Written Statement of the President and Chief Exeeudfficer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 200z
32.2 Written Statement of the Chief Financial Officergwant to Section 906 of the Sarbe-Oxley Act of 200z

* Filed herewith
*x Identifies each management contract or compensplgmor arrangemer
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1660 Wynkoop Street, Suite 1000
Denver, Colorado 80202-1132
Phone: (303) 573-1660

Fax: (303) 595-9385

Email: info@royalgold.com
www.royalgold.com

//@ ROYALGOLD,INC

April 3, 2008

Mr. Mike Scott, President
MinEx Projects (PTY) Limited
Dunkeld Court

16 North Road

Dunkeld West

Johannesburg

2196

Republic of South Africa

Dear Mr. Scott:

Royal Gold, Inc. (“Royal Gold”) sincerely appre@atthe invitation from MinEx Projects (PTY) Limit¢tMinEx”) to submit an offer to
purchase the Messina and Dwaalkop royalty interastslefined in the Royalty Background documentiptesly provided by MinEx. Royal
Gold is pleased to submit the following offer foin#x’s consideration.

I. THE OFFER

Royal Gold offers to purchase all of MinEx'’s rigtitle and interest in and to the following two ety interests at Lonmin’s Limpopo Mine
(collectively, the “Royalties”):

a. The 0.704% gross receipts royalty on the Messiasel@rea“Messina Royalt”); and
b. The 1.5% gross receipts royalty on the Dwaalkopdesrea“ Dwaalkop Royalt”).

Royal Gold understands from information providedWipEx that the entire Dwaalkop Royalty is subjexa right of first refusal in favor of
Lonmin, as well as to the right to “buy down” tteyalty from 1.5% to 1.0% upon payment to MinEx &f$125,000. Royal Gold further
understands that the royalties apply to 100% of$ieelter Revenue derived from production in the $itesand Dwaalkop areas.

This offer is extended based upon MIinEx’s represé@n to Royal Gold, made by MinEx upon its exemutdf this interim agreement, that
MinEx and its affiliates are not parties to or athise bound by any letter agreement, letter ofrifjteontract, agreement or other understan:
whether written or oral, for the purchase and eéthe Royalties. If this representation is notuaate, then this offer shall be deemed
immediately revoked and shall have no further faceffect.
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II. THE PURCHASE PRICE

At Closing, as defined below, MinEx shall assigrRimyal Gold, and Royal Gold shall purchase from Biinthe Messina Royalty for
US$6,039,500 in cash, and the Dwaalkop Royaltyf8$13,210,500 in cash, in each case exclusive uthSafrican value added tax, if
applicable. This consideration assumes Royal Gaflective ownership of the Royalties commencedamuary 1, 2008, and the purchase
price for the Messina Royalty of US$6,039,500 shalleduced by the aggregate of any royalty paysmeceived by MinEx after February 1,
2008. If Lonmin exercises its right of first reflisa acquire the entire Dwaalkop Royalty, then Rdyald shall not acquire the Dwaalkop
Royalty and shall not owe MinEx any consideratiomaspect thereof.

[ll. CONDITIONS PRECEDENT

The obligation of Royal Gold to complete the tranigan contemplated by this letter is subject toftiiowing conditions precedent:

a.

The negotiation and execution of a mutually acdgptaurchase and sale agreement which shall sujeessel replace this interi
agreement, and which shall contain representativaganties, covenants, indemnifications and otiiens and conditions common to
similar agreements, including mutually acceptalsi@gnment and conveyance documentation. Said agreéeshall contain provisions
permitting that agreement to remain valid and exg@able until a mutually agreed deadline for cloghggtransactions contemplated
herein, subject to certain rights of each partietminate said agreeme

MinEx shall have delivered certified copadsesolutions of its board of directors, or otdecumentation evidencing corporate
authority, approving and authorizing the assignneéthe Royalties

Royal Gold shall have received the approval oBitgrd of Directors for the acquisition of the Rdigs;

The parties shall have received all thirctypand governmental consents or approvals, withwaterial conditions or restrictions and in
form and substance satisfactory to Royal Gold gatgasonably; and with respect to Royal Gold’s pase of the Dwaalkop Royalty,
Lonmin shall not have exercised its right of firstusal to acquire the Dwaalkop Royal

There shall not have occurred a material adveraaggwith respect to the royalty agreements, ooflegations or prospects
Messina or Dwaalkop prior to Closin

Royal Gold’s review of and satisfaction wittmong other matters (i) the ownership, termscamdlitions, validity and good standing
of the Royalties and the lands, mineral and mimiggts which are subject thereto, and (ii) the adey, validity and enforceability of
the agreements creating and documenting the Rega#ind (iii) the payment history and supportingusioentation for the Messina
Royalty;
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g. Royal Gold’s satisfaction with a due diligertechnical review of, among other matters, thedite Mine and future expansion plans
for the Messina and Dwaalkop lease areas, as w@ltaduction profiles associated with the Royaléied smelting and refining terms;
and

h.  MinEXx’'s express representation and warranty to Royal Gald(i) MinEx and its affiliates are not bound dnyy letter agreement, let
of intent, contract, agreement or other understapdihether written or oral, for the purchase aald sf the Royalties, and (ii) neither
Royal Gold’s extension of this offer, nor its actzwe by MinEx, nor the completion of the transatdicontemplated herein conflicts
with or constitutes a breach of any other letteeament, letter of intent, contract, agreementloerounderstanding, whether written
oral, to which MinEx or its affiliates are bour

IV. CLOSING

The Closing shall be held on a date, time and iocahutually agreed upon by Royal Gold and MinEry& Gold and MinEx shall use their
commercially reasonable efforts to hold the Closingr before May 30, 2008.

V. EXPENSES

Each of Royal Gold and MinEx shall bear its ownts@sd expenses associated with this transactioluding the fees and expenses of cou
or other representatives.

VI. CONFIDENTIALITY

The terms and conditions of this interim agreemand, all subsequent negotiations related to theséetion contemplated hereunder, shall
remain strictly confidential and shall not be dised by one party to any third party without thiempwritten consent of the other party. Should
either party be obligated to make any disclosuttetims of stock exchange rules, listing requirement statutory obligations, the other party
shall have the right to reasonable review and adrieethe content prior to release of any statemjenuich consent not to be unreasonably
withheld or delayed.

VII. SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES

Following approval of this offer by the appropriatgthority within MinEx and receipt by Royal Golflan executed copy of this interim
agreement, Royal Gold will immediately prepare echase and sale agreement for the parties to reafiecommence its due diligence
program. Royal Gold and MinEx will use best reasd@&fforts to conclude negotiation of the defirétpurchase and sale agreement on or
before April 25, 2008. MinEx shall give notice tohmin of its intent to transfer the Dwaalkop Royalb later than April 25, 2008, unless
MinEx and Royal Gold mutually agree in writing tdader date.

Royal Gold will use best reasonable efforts to cletepits due diligence program by May 52008, subject to the availability of its personne
and its technical and legal advisors, and to fudfilsuspensive conditions by May 80 2008. Royal Gold will seek




Mr. Mike Scott
April 3, 2008
Page 4

Board of Director approval for the transaction pptiy following satisfactory completion of its dudigence program. In preparation of this
work, we would appreciate it if MinEx would forwatd Royal Gold copies of all guiding agreements doduments that govern the Royalties
that have not already been provided.

VIIl. NON-SOLICITATION

Commencing upon MinEx’s execution of this interigreement and continuing until Closing or terminataf the definitive purchase and sale
agreement in accordance with its terms, MinEx shatll(a) solicit, initiate or encourage submissiéproposals or offers from any third person
or entity relating to any purchase, sale or transfehe Royalties with the exception of offerigetFirst Right of Refusal on Dwaalkop for a
period of 30 days to Lonmin, or (b) enter into ontinue negotiations or discussions with any tipiedson or entity with respect to the purch
sale or transfer of the Royalties with the exceptboffering the First Right of Refusal on Dwagtkfor a period of 30 days to Lonmin. MinEx
agrees to promptly notify Royal Gold if any suclposal or offer, or if any inquiry from or contagith any third person with respect theretc
made.

IX. GENERAL

This interim agreement and the definitive purchese sale agreement to be negotiated shall be gaddmnthe laws of the Republic of South
Africa.

Neither party may assign its rights or delegatelitses or obligations hereunder without the pwioitten consent of the other par

No modification or amendment to this interim agreetrshall be valid unless made in writing and apedoby both parties

X. ACCEPTANCE OF THE OFFER

MinEx may accept this offer at any time prior t® éxpiry by delivering a duly executed copy of thigrim agreement by facsimile or
electronic mail, with an original to be couriered t

Royal Gold, Inc.

1660 Wynkoop St.

Suite 1000

Denver, CO 80202

Attention: William Heissenbuttel

Facsimile: (303) 595-9385
e-mail: bheissenbuttel@royalgold.com

This offer shall expire at 5:00 p.m., Denver, Calitw time, on Thursday, April 3, 2008, unless ex¢ehor withdrawn in writing by Royal Gold
prior to its acceptance.
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This interim agreement, including without limitatidinEx’ non-solicitation obligations set forth Bection VIII, shall expire on June 30, 2008
unless (a) MinEx and Royal Gold have entered ingodefinitive purchase and sale agreement contéeapiia Section llla., in which case the
terms and conditions of such definitive agreeméeatiggovern and control, (b) MinEx and Royal Gogitee in writing to extend the duration of
this interim agreement, or (c) any third party owvgrnmental consent or approval that has been séegiés pending on such date, including
consent or approval of, or notice from, Lonmin.

Finally, | would emphasize that the purchase piticels are not subject to any financing contingeheai® Royal Gold has sufficient cash on the
balance sheet.

I look forward to working diligently with MinEx t@romptly consummate a successful transaction ftr parties.

Sincerely,

Tony Jensen
President and Chief Executive Officer

AGREED AND ACCEPTED ON BEHALF OF MINEX PROJECTS (PYLIMITED, BY THE FOLLOWING AUTHORIZED INDIVIDUAL

/sl Mike Scott

By:  Mike Scott
Title: Presiden
Entity: MinEx Projects
Date: 03/04/200¢




1660 Wynkoop Street, Suite 1000
Denver, Colorado 80202-1132
Phone: (303) 575-6506

Fax: (303) 595-9385

Email: bkirchhoff@royalgold.com
www.royalgold.com

//@ ROYALGOLD,INC

VIA FACSIMILE TRANSMISSION
(011) 880 0486

30 June 2008

Mr. Mike Scott

President

MinEx Projects (Proprietary) Limited
Dunkeld Court

16 North Road

Dunkeld West

Johannesburg

2196

Republic of South Africa

Re: Extension of Letter of Intent: Royal Gold, Inc: Royal Golc¢’) and MinEx Projects (Proprietary) Limited“ MinEx”)

Dear Mr. Scott:

Exhibit 10.4:

1. On 3 April 2008 Royal Gold and MinEx entered intetier of intent “the Letter of Inter”) in terms of which Royal Gold offered
purchase all of MinEx’s right, title and interestdnd to the following two royalty interests at lhoin Platinum Limited’s (“Lonmin”)

Limpopo Mine (collectively, th¢ Royaltie!"):
1.1 the 0.704% gross receipts royalty on the Messiasel@rea; ar

1.2 the 1.5% gross receipts royalty on the Dwaalkopdesrea

2. Interms of Section X (ACCEPTANCE OF THE OFBERthe Letter of Intent, the Letter of Intentcinding without limitation MinEx’s
non-solicitation obligations set forth in SectioHIMNON-SOLICITATION), shall expire on 30 June 28@Qinlessinter alia, MinEx and

Royal Gold agree in writing to extend the duratidrthe Letter of Intent
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3.  Royal Gold and MinEx now wish to amend the Letteintéent by extending the expiry date of the Leti€intent to 15 August 200:

4.  Save for the extension specifically contaiirethis letter, the provisions of the Letter ofdnt shall remain unamended and of full force
and effect

5.  This letter may be signed in any number of couratesp all of which taken together shall constitoe and the same instrument. £
party may enter into this letter by signing anylsaounterpart

6. Please confirm your agreement with the contentsdfdyy countersigning this letter in the space fhed below.

Sincerely,
ROYAL GOLD, INC.

FLCM‘%&

Bruce C. Kirchhoff
Vice President and General Coun

AGREED AND ACCEPTED ON BEHALF OF MINEX PROJECTS (PRRIETARY) LIMITED, BY THE FOLLOWING AUTHORIZED
INDIVIDUAL

/s/ Mike Scoti

By:  Mike Scott
Title: Presiden
Entity: MinEx Projects
Date: 30 June 200

cc: S. Gumede, Webber Went:
B. Heissenbuttel, Royal Gold, Inc.
T. Thompson, Royal Gold, In
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THIS ROYALTY PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT is dated as of the 30th day of July , 2008.

BETWEEN:

BARRICK GOLD CORPORATION,
a corporation existing under the laws of the Proginf Ontario,

(hereinafter referred to asBarrick "),
-and -

ROYAL GOLD, INC.,
a corporation existing under the laws of the Stdteelaware,

(hereinafter referred to asPurchaser”).

WHEREAS Purchaser has submitted a binding offer to Bamiackcquire the portfolio of Purchased Royaltiesdefined below) of
Barrick and its Affiliates in respect of which Bigk sought acquisition proposals;

WHEREAS in consideration of payment of the Purchase Pasealéfined below) for such Purchased Royaltiesjd&aand its
Affiliates, as applicable, have agreed to selligmsand transfer the Purchased Royalties to Puectasand subject to the terms and conditions
set forth herein;

AND WHEREAS in consideration of payment of the Consideratiaed>(as defined below) for the Consideration Ragalfas defined
below), Purchaser and its Affiliates, as applicahbeve agreed to sell, assign and transfer thei@enagion Royalties to Barrick on and subject
to the terms and conditions set forth herein;

NOW THEREFORE, THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSES THAT in consideration of the respective covenants, ageegs,
representations, warranties and indemnities coadiiim this Agreement and for other good and vakiabhsideration (the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged byhearty), the parties covenant and agree as follows

ARTICLE 1
INTERPRETATION

1.1 Definitions

For the purposes of this Agreement, utke context otherwise requires, the followingnishall have the respective meanings set out
below and grammatical variations of such termslsteale corresponding meanings:




“ Affiliate " with respect to a Person means another Persochvidhicontrolled by, controls or is under commontoml with the first
mentioned Person, anctbntrol ” for this purpose means the ownership of or cdrdrairection over, directly or indirectly, morkean 50%
of the voting power attached to the outstandingngosecurities of the relevant Person or of sugfitivoting securities of such Person that
the holder has the right to control the electioajgpointment of a majority of the directors or Pessacting in a substantially similar
capacity (if applicable) of such Person, and fopaftposes of this Agreement, Crescent Valley RastrL.P., a Colorado limited partnerst
shall be deemed an Affiliate of Purchaser regasdtésvhether or not it would otherwise be deemedfitiate under this definition;

“ Agreement” means this Agreement, including its recitals &uthedules, as amended and supplemented;

“ Allan Mine Borax Royalty ” means the Purchased Royalty owned by HMCOC ipeetsof the Allan Mine US Borax property located in
Saskatchewan, Canada;

“ Allan Mine Potash Royalty” means the Purchased Royalty owned by HMCOC ipeetsof the Allan Mine Potash Corp. property lodate
in Saskatchewan, Canada;

“ Australian Royalties” means the Purchased Royalties relating to a prppemcated in the Commonwealth of Australia;

“ Australian Royalty Assignment Agreement’ means an agreement substantially in the fornhefroyalty deed of assignment and
assumption agreement set out in Schedule H heaater(ded as necessary to reflect the terms of gauticable Purchased Royalty)
applicable to each Purchased Royalty relatingpgoogerty located in Australia;

“ Australian Transferable Royalties” has the meaning given to it in Section 7.5(d}})(
“ Barrick " means Barrick Gold Corporation;
“ Barrick Retained Liabilities " has the meaning given to it in Section 8.1(b)(i);

“ Books and Records means all material agreements, files, ledgersamrespondence, reports, texts, notes, engineesmgronmental
and feasibility studies, specifications, memorairgices, receipts, accounts, payment recordsplifmine production plans, budgets,
reserve and resource statements, periodic productzorts and all other material records and doatsnegf any nature or kind whatsoever,
including, without limitation, those recorded, &dy maintained, operated, held or otherwise whmilgartly dependent on discs, tapes and
other means of storage including, without limitatiany electronic, magnetic, mechanical, photographoptical process, whether
computerized or not (and all software, passwordisather information and means of or for accesstiogr
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“ Business Day means any day other than a Saturday, Sundayyostatutory holiday in the Province of Ontario, @da, any federal
statutory holiday in Canada, any federal statubaryday in the United States or any federal statutmliday in Australia;

“ Buy-Back Notice” has the meaning given to it in Section 9.5(b);
“ Buy Down Right” has the meaning given to it in Section 2.5(b);

“ Canadian Royalty Assignment Agreement means an agreement substantially in the fornihefrbyalty deed and assignment agreement
set out in Schedule E hereto (amended as necdssafject the terms of each applicable Purchassgiy) applicable to each Purchased
Royalty relating to a property located in Canada;

“ Charter Documents” means articles, articles of incorporation, notiderticles, memoranda, constitutions, by-lawsuy similar
constating document of a corporation or other |eggity;

“ Chilean Royalty Assignment Agreement means an agreement substantially in the fornhefroyalty sale and transfer and assumption
agreements set out in Schedule G hereto applitalgach Purchased Royalty relating to a propedsted in Chile;

“ Claim " has the meaning given to it in Section 9.7,

“ Closing” has the meaning given to it in Section 7.1;

“ Closing Date” has the meaning given to it in Section 7.1,

“ Competition Act ” means theCompetition Ac{Canada), R.S.C. 1985, c. C-34;
“ Consideration Price” has the meaning given to it in Section 2.2;

“ Consideration Royalties” means the right, title and interest of Purchasemd to (i) the various royalty interests (ortgms thereof)
owned by Purchaser over certain properties of Blagét out in Schedule C hereto and conferred &ythnsideration Royalty Agreements
and (ii) the Consideration Royalty Agreements;

“ Consideration Royalty Agreements’ means those agreements set out in Schedule @ftbeg have created the Consideration Royalties;

“ Contracts ” means all contracts, agreements, instrumentseieandentures, engagements, transactions anditmemts, whether written
or oral;

“ Corporations Act ” means the respective federal, provincial or stateunder which a respective corporation is inocogped or other legal
entity is organized, as amended or supplemented;




“ Data Room” means the secure electronic data website estathlishBarrick on IntraLinks referred to as Projedthéland made accessil
to Purchaser and its designated representativasdafter May 23, 2008;

“ Direct Claim ” has the meaning given to it in Section 9.7;

“ Effective Time” means 12:01 a.m. on the Closing Date;

“ Encumbrance” means, whether or not registered or registrablecorded or recordable, and regardless of hoatedeor arising (but
excluding any Third Party Purchase Rights or BuywbDdights):

(@)

(b)

©

(d)

(e)

any mortgage, assignment of receivabla, Bacumbrance, adverse claim, charge, executitengdéfect, exception, right of pre-
emption, right of first refusal, privilege, secyrihterest, hypothec or pledge, whether fixed oafiing, against assets or property
(whether real, personal, mixed, tangible or inthtei conditional sales contract, title retentigmesement, and a subordination to any
right or claim of others in respect there

a claim, interest or estate against or in assepsaperty (whether real, personal, mixed, tangdslentangible), granted to or reserve(
taken by any Perso

an option or other right to acquire, or to acqaing interest in, any assets or property (whethedr personal, mixed, tangible
intangible);

any other encumbrance of whatsoever natndekind against assets or property (whether peasonal, mixed, tangible or intangible);
and

any Contract to create, or right capable of becgamy of the foregoing

“ Environmental Laws ” means all Laws relating to the environment andherprotection thereof, including without limitati with respect
to the following substances and/or the transpanettiereof:

@)
(b)

©

(d)

any substance the presence of which requires iegpmvestigation, removal and remediation under baws;

any substance that is defined as a poliutamtaminant, dangerous substance, toxic substéiazardous or toxic chemical, hazardous
waste, residual hazardous materials or hazarddastasmce under any Law

any substance that is toxic, explosive, corrodteenmable, ignitable, infectious, carcinogenic treywise hazardous and is regula
by or forms the basis of liability under any La\

any substance the presence of which omjepty causes or threatens to cause a nuisancethp@noperty or to adjacent properties or
poses or threatens to pose a hazard to the heatfaiy of Persons on or about a prope
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()

®
(9)

any substance that contains gasoline, diesel fusher petroleum hydrocarbons, including crudeaoil fractions thereof, natural g
synthetic gas and any mixtures there

any substance that contains asbestos and/or as-containing materials; ¢

any substance that contains pcbs, orcontaining materials or fluid:

“ FIRB Condition " means

(@)

(b)

©

Purchaser has received a written noticeutite Foreign Acquisitions Act, by or on behaltloé Treasurer of the Commonwealth of
Australia, stating or to the effect that the Commealth Government does not object to the acquisiticthe Australian Royalties by
Purchaser, either unconditionally or on terms #ratacceptable to Purchaser

the Treasurer of the Commonwealth of Alistdiaecomes precluded from making an order in igheto the acquisition of the
Australian Royalties by Purchaser under the Forgigguisitions Act; ol

if an interim order is made under the Foreign Asdigins Act in respect of the acquisition of thestalian Royalties by Purchaser,
subsequent period for making a final order prohibithe acquisition of the Australian RoyaltiesPyrchaser elapses without a final
order being made

“ FIRB Notice " has the meaning given to it in Section 5.10;

“ FIRB Transfer Date ” means the Closing Date if there is no Unsatisfil@BFCondition, or the date on which the deliveniequired unde
Section 7.5(d) are made,;

“ Foreign Acquisitions Act” means thd-oreign Acquisitions and Takeovers Act 19Z) of the Commonwealth of Australia;

“ Golden Bear Royalty” means the Purchased Royalty owned by HMCOC ipaetsof the Golden Bear Royalty property locateBiitish
Columbia, Canada;

“ Governmental Authority " means any federal, provincial, state, municipalnty or regional government or governmental gulatory
authority, domestic or foreign, including any picl subdivision of any of the foregoing, any multtional organization or body comprised
of one of the foregoing, any agency, departmemyrmgssion, board, bureau, court, tribunal or othgharity thereof, or any quasi-
governmental or private body exercising any exeeytiegislative, judicial, administrative, poliaegulatory or taxing authority or power of
any nature;

“ GSR2 Royalty” means the sliding scale (0.72% to 9.00%) grossltemreturns royalty created in the ConsideraRaiyalty Agreements
identified in Part | of Schedule C applicable te tBAS Claims (as such term is defined in the Camaiibn Royalty Agreements identified
in Part | of Schedule C);




“ GSR3 Royalty” means the 1.50% gross smelter returns royaltgteckin the Consideration Royalty Agreements idieatin Part 11 of
Schedule C applicable to the mining claims andrdtiras identified in the Consideration Royalty Agments identified in Part Il of
Schedule C;

“ Guinean Royalty Assignment Agreement means an agreement substantially in the fornhefroyalty deed and assignment agreement
set out in Schedule | hereto (amended as necessegflect the terms of each applicable PurchassgRy) applicable to each Purchased
Royalty relating to a property located in Guinea;

“HMCOC " means Homestake Mining Company of Californiajradirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Barrick;
“ Indemnified Party " has the meaning given to it in Section 9.7;

“ Indemnifying Party ” has the meaning given to it in Section 9.7;

“ Independent Action” has the meaning given to it in Section 5.5(c);

“ Investment Canada Act” means thdnvestment Canada A@€anada), R.S.C. 1985, c. 28s{Supp);

“ Law " means any law, statute, regulation, by-law, ordeling, decision, arbitration award, judgmentcid®, declaration, injunction, order
in council, ordinance, treaty, proclamation, corti@m rule or requirement of, and the terms of Beymit issued by, any Governmental
Authority;

“ Liabilities ” means all debts, liabilities and obligations afyaature or kind whatsoever, whether due or tobexdue, accrued or
unaccrued, absolute, contingent, unliquidatedquidiated, or otherwise, including for greater dattaand without limitation those arising
under Environmental Laws;

“ Losses’, in respect of any matter, means all claims, deasaProceedings, losses, damages, liabilitieg;idpe€ies, costs and expenses
(including all out-of-pocket legal and other prafiemal fees and disbursements, interest, penaltidsamounts incurred in defending any
claim or paid in settlement) arising directly odirectly as a consequence of such matter;

“ Mexican Royalty Assignment Agreement means an agreement substantially in the fornhefrbyalty deed and assignment agreement
set out in Schedule J hereto (amended as necdssafiect the terms of each applicable Purchasstiy) applicable to each Purchased
Royalty relating to a property located in Mexico;

“ Mineral Properties ", in respect of any royalty, means all of the maleights, mineral claims, mineral tenements, minlieases, Permits
and concessions and other mineral properties pect®f which such royalty is payable or to whitpertains;
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“ NVR1 Royalty " means that portion of the net value royalty cotiepaying at the rate of 1.25% created in the Siaeration Royalty
Agreements identified in Part Il of Schedule C lgggble to the mining claims and other lands idédiin the Consideration Royalty
Agreements identified in Part Il of Schedule C;

“ Operator " means the respective current owner of or holdeéh® mining rights to the Mineral Property to wia royalty is related;

“ Permits " means all permits, licences, certificates, redisting, consents, authorizations, approvals, pgéte waivers, exemptions, ord
certificates, rulings, agreements and other coimmes$rom, of or with any Governmental Authority;

“ Person” means an individual, legal personal represergatiorporation, body corporate, firm, partnerstripst, trustee, syndicate, joint
venture, unincorporated organization or Governnigkughority;

“ Proceeding” means any action, claim, demand, lawsuit, assessmarbitration, judgment, award, decree, ordguniction, prosecution
and investigation, or other similar proceeding;

“ Purchase Price” has the meaning given to it in Section 2.2;

“ Purchase Price Allocation” means, for each Purchased Royalty, the amouttteoPurchase Price allocated to each such Purchased
Royalty, as agreed upon by Purchaser and Barridlsahout in Schedule D hereto;

“ Purchased Royalty Agreement$ means those agreements set out in Schedule Bohtb have created the Purchased Royalties;

“ Purchased Royalties’ means all of the right, title and interest of Bek (or its Affiliates) in and to (i) the variousyalty interests (or
portions thereof) owned by Barrick (or its Affiled) set out in Schedule A hereto and conferrediéyurchased Royalty Agreements and
(i) the Purchased Royalty Agreements;

“ Purchaser” means Royal Gold, Inc.;
“ Purchaser Retained Liabilities” has the meaning given to it in Section 8.1(&)(ii)

“ Royalty Assignment Agreement$ means, collectively, the Canadian Royalty AssigmtnAgreement, the United States Royalty
Assignment Agreement, the Chilean Royalty Assignmgreement, the Australian Royalty Assignment Agnent, the Guinean Royalty
Assignment Agreement and the Mexican Royalty Assigmnt Agreement, together with such amendmentstthaeethe parties thereto may
determine to be necessary or appropriate, actagpreably;

“ Section 116 Amount’ has the meaning given to it in Section 2.6(b);
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“ Split Contracts " means the Contracts indicated in Schedule B beestch of which provides for a Purchased Royaity@ntains other
ongoing rights, obligations and/or Liabilities ohBick or its Affiliates that are not related t&archased Royalty, of which only the portions
of each such Contract relating to the Purchase@Boghall be considered to be a “Purchased Royaitgement”;

“ Tax Act " means théncome Tax AcfCanada);

“ Third Party ” has the meaning given to it in Section 9.7;

“ Third Party Claim " has the meaning given to it in Section 9.7;

“ Third Party Consent ” has the meaning given to it in Section 5.3(a);

“ Third Party Purchase Rights” means any and all rights of first offer, pre-emetrights, rights of first refusal or other rightspurchase
any of the Purchased Royalties or a portion thendo€h may be exercisable by an Operator or angrd#erson pursuant to or in accorde
with the terms of the Purchased Royalty Agreemappicable to the Purchased Royalties in connedtitimthe transactions contemplated
by this Agreement, which definition for greaterte@mty excludes any Buy Down Rights with respecany Purchased Royalties;

“ TPPR Expired Royalties” means all TPPR Royalties in respect of whichThed Party Purchase Rights have been waived, thpse
otherwise terminated before the Closing Date;

“ TPPR Outstanding Royalties” means all TPPR Royalties other than the TPPRfégpRoyalties and the TPPR Sold Royalties;
“ TPPR Payment Amount” for a TPPR Royalty has the meaning given to iBaction 5.5(c)(ii) or Section 5.5(d)(ii), as applvle;
“ TPPR Royalties” means the Purchased Royalties that are subjéttitd Party Purchase Rights, as set out in Scleefiilereto;

“ TPPR Sold Royalties’ means all TPPR Royalties in respect of whichpbethe Closing Date, the Third Party Purchase Righve been
exercised and the TPPR Royalty transferred tord trarty in accordance with such Third Party PusehRights;

“ Transaction ” has the meaning given to it in Section 2.1;

“ Transferable Royalties” means the Purchased Royalties, other than th&RT®Rstanding Royalties and TPPR Sold Royalties;

“ United States Royalty Assignment Agreemeritmeans an agreement substantially in the fornhefrbyalty deed and assignment
agreement set out in Schedule F hereto (amendeecassary to reflect the terms of each applicable
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Purchased Royalty) applicable to each Purchasedlfaglating to a property located in the Unitedt8s; and
“ Unsatisfied FIRB Condition ” means that the FIRB Condition has not been satigr fulfilled at or prior to Closing.

1.2 Gender, Number and Other Terms

In this Agreement, unless the contexentlise requires, words importing the singular nundsgy shall include the plural andce
versa, words importing gender shall include all genderd words importing persons shall include individueorporations, partnerships,
associations, trusts, unincorporated organizatiGaesernmental Authorities and other legal or bussnentities of any kind whatsoever, “or” is
not exclusive and the word “including” means “irgilog without limitation” and the word “include” mes “include without limitation”.

1.3 Sections and Headings

The division of this Agreement into Atéis and Sections and the insertion of headingsagatile of contents are for convenience of
reference only and shall not affect the interpretedf this Agreement. Unless otherwise indicatad) reference in this Agreement to an
Article, Section or other subdivision or to a Sahledrefers to the specified Article, Section oresteubdivision of, or Schedule to, this
Agreement.

1.4 Statutes

Unless otherwise stated, any referen@ediatute includes and is a reference to suchtstanhd to the regulations made pursuant to it,
with all amendments and supplements thereto afatée from time to time, and to any statute or tagjons that may be passed which
supplement or supersede such statute or such tiemsla

1.5 Contra Preferentum

The parties waive the application of amg of law which otherwise would be applicableeonnection with the construction of this
Agreement that ambiguous or conflicting terms avgsions should be construed against the party @harhose counsel) prepared the
executed agreement or any earlier draft of the same

1.6 Currency

Except where otherwise expressly providdldnonetary amounts in this Agreement are statetishall be paid in United States
currency.

1.7 Applicable Law and Attornment

This Agreement shall be construed, imeggal and enforced in accordance with, and theemdisie rights and obligations of the parties
shall be governed by, the laws of the Province wifa@o and the federal laws of Canada applical®ecih and all disputes and
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claims, whether for damages, specific performaimjenction, declaration or otherwise, both at lavd an equity, arising out of, or in any way
connected with, this Agreement will be referredhe courts of the Province of Ontario and eaclhefgarties hereby irrevocably and
unconditionally attorns to the exclusive jurisdictiof the courts of the Province of Ontario anctallirts competent to hear appeals therefrom.
For greater certainty, each Royalty Assignment Agrent shall be construed, interpreted and enfdrcadcordance with, and the respective
rights and obligations of the parties (or theirikdfes) named in such Royalty Assignment Agreensdiail be governed by, the laws of the
jurisdiction designated in such Royalty Assignmi&gteement or, if no such jurisdiction is designatie laws of the jurisdiction in which tl
applicable Purchased Royalty is located.
1.8 Schedules

The following Schedules are attached to and forrimsagral part of this Agreement:

Schedule B — Purchased Royalty Agreements

Schedule C — Consideration Royalties and Consider&oyalty Agreements

Schedule D — Purchase Price Allocation

Schedule E — Canadian Royalty Assignment Agreement

Schedule F — United States Royalty Assignment Agesd

Schedule G — Chilean Royalty Assignment Agreement

Schedule H — Australian Royalty Assignment Agreeimen

Schedule | — Guinean Royalty Assignment Agreement

Schedule J — Mexican Royalty Assignment Agreement

Schedule K — Information Pertaining to Consideraftoyalties

Schedule L — Permitted Encumbrances — Purchasedltitsy

Schedule M — Permitted Encumbrances — ConsiderRiyalties

Schedule N — Information Pertaining to PurchasegbaRies

Schedule O — Third Party Purchase Right Notices

Schedule P — Escrow Agreement

Schedule Q — Information Provided

Schedule R — Intentionally Omitted
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Schedule S — Documents to Transfer ConsideratiomiRes
Schedule T — GSR2 Amended Sliding Scale Royalty
Schedule U — Third Party Consents

1.9 References to Whole Agreement

Unless otherwise stated, the words “méréhereof”, “hereto”, “hereby” and “hereunder” dmther words of similar import refer to this
Agreement as a whole and not to any particularchkatiSection or other subdivision of, or Schedalehis Agreement.

1.10 Knowledge

(a) If a party had actual knowledge priortte &xecution of this Agreement that any represiemtaind warranty of the other party contained
in this Agreement was not true and correct or efakistence of any other fact, the party with sucbr knowledge may not assert such breach
of a representation or warranty or such otherdaa basis not to consummate the transactionsmplateed by this Agreement.

(b) If a party had actual knowledge priortie Closing Date that any representation and wariairthe other party contained in this
Agreement was not true and correct or of the excsteof any other fact, the party with such prioowtedge may not assert such breach of a
representation or warranty or such other factlaasés of an indemnity claim pursuant to Sectiorfed.ar 9.3(a).

(c) All references to the knowledge of Barrinkhis Agreement mean, as applicable, (i) theadtnowledge of Ted Grandy, after due
enquiry, with respect to the Purchased Royaltieatkd in Canada, the United States and Mexicah@actual knowledge of Katrina White,
after due enquiry, with respect to the PurchaseghRies located in Australia and Guinea, or (iiigtactual knowledge of Laura Emery, after
due enquiry, with respect to the Purchased Rogdltieated in Chile.

(d) All references to the knowledge of Pureras this Agreement mean the actual knowledgeaohef Tony Jensen and Bruce Kirchhoff,
in each case after due enquiry.

ARTICLE 2
PURCHASE AND SALE OF PURCHASED ROYALTIES

2.1 Purchase and Sale

Effective as of and from the EffectivaniB, (a) Purchaser agrees to sell, assignh and ¢ransfto cause its applicable Affiliate to sell,
assign and transfer, to Barrick, and Barrick agtegairchase from Purchaser and its Affiliatesa@slicable, the Consideration Royalties, and
(b) Barrick agrees to sell, assign and transfetp @ause its applicable Affiliate to sell, assad transfer, to Purchaser, and Purchaser agr
purchase from Barrick and its Affiliates, as applite, the Purchased Royalties, in each case indareee with and subject to the terms and
conditions set forth in this Agreement, includingcBon 2.3 (the Transaction”).
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2.2 Consideration Price and Purchase Price

The purchase price for the Consideraflogalties (the ‘Consideration Price”) shall be $31,500,000 in cash, and the purchaise for
the Purchased Royalties (th@tirchase Price”) shall be $181,500,000 in cash.

2.3 Further Details of Purchases and Sales

(a) At the Effective Time, Purchaser (or itilfate, as applicable) will transfer to Barrickr(its designated Affiliate, as applicable), inleac
case free and clear of any Encumbrances othettiioge Encumbrances set forth on Schedule M heratate not required to be discharged
prior to the Closing Date as indicated on Schetle

(i) the Consideration Royalty described in the firdtom under the headir“Part I- GSR2 Royalt” of Schedule C
(i) the Consideration Royalty described in the firduom under the headir*Part 11I- GSR3 Royalt” of Schedule C; an
(iii) the Consideration Royalty described in the firduom under the headir*Part [l - NVR1 Royalty’ of Schedule C
to be effected by the execution and delivery ofdbeuments set forth in Schedule S.
(b) At the Effective Time, Barrick (or its Alifite, as applicable) will transfer to Purchasari{s designated Affiliate, as applicable):

(i) the Transferable Royalties free and clear of anguBtbrances other than those Encumbrances setdioi@thedule L heret
subject to Section 5.

(i) the TPPR Payment Amount for each TPPR Sold Roy

(iii) the right to receive the TPPR Outstandidgyalties if the applicable Third Party Purchasghi®s are waived, lapse or are otherwise
terminated free and clear of any Encumbrances ttiaerthose Encumbrances set forth on Scheduledtdjeanc

(iv) the right to receive the TPPR Payment Amount fahéBPPR Outstanding Royalty that is transferrea tioird party pursuant to tt
applicable Third Party Purchase Rigt

with the transfers and payments described in papdugr (i) and (iv) above to be made in accordamitie Section 7.5.
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2.4 Payment

(a) The Consideration Price shall be satidfiggpayment by Barrick (or its Affiliate) of the plicable portion of the Consideration Price
indicated on Schedule C hereto to the applicabheleeidentified on Schedule C, which amount shalpkid in cash by certified cheque or
money order or wire transfer, in accordance withittstructions of Purchaser, on the Closing Dabe gfeater certainty, the aggregate amount
paid by Barrick and/or its Affiliates pursuant tog Section 2.4(a) shall equal the ConsideratiocePr

(b) The Purchase Price shall be satisfieddyynent by Purchaser (or its Affiliate) of the applle portion of the Purchase Price indicated
on Schedule D hereto to the applicable vendor ifletiton Schedule A, which amount shall be paidash by certified cheque or money order
or wire transfer, in accordance with the instrugsi@f Barrick, on the Closing Date. For greatetaipty, the aggregate amount paid by
Purchaser and/or its Affiliates pursuant to thist®a 2.4(b) shall equal the Purchase Price.

2.5 Purchase Price and Consideration Price Allocain

(a) The parties hereto acknowledge and atpaefar purposes of this Agreement, the Purchaise Ridlocation for the Purchased Royalties
shall be as set out in Schedule D hereto and thehase price allocation for the Consideration Rigslishall be as set out in Schedule C he

(b) The parties acknowledge that certain Paseld Royalties are subject to buy down or othétsi¢each a Buy Down Right”) that allow
Persons to purchase all or a portion of certairciaged Royalties for specified prices, and thdgmhave taken such rights into consideration
in calculating the Purchase Price Allocation far Burchased Royalties. To the extent that any BayrDRight is exercised on or after the date
hereof, (i) any Purchased Royalty, or portion tb&ras applicable, that is transferred or to bedferred to a Person pursuant to such Buy
Down Right will not be transferred to Purchaseit®Affiliates and will cease to be considered acRased Royalty, and (ii) the gross proceeds
received by Barrick or its Affiliate from such exése will be paid to Purchaser (without interestCkosing (if received by Barrick or its
Affiliate prior to the Closing Date) or promptlytaf receipt (if received by Barrick or its Affiliaton or after the Closing). The parties agree tha
there will be no reduction in the Purchase Prica essult of any exercise of a Buy Down Right amddll purposes (including for purposes of
Section 5.5(d)) the amount allocated to the apple®urchased Royalty in Schedule D hereto shakteced by the amount of the gross
proceeds received by Barrick or its Affiliate frany exercise of a Buy Down Right.

2.6 Allan Mine and Golden Bear Royalties

(a) Subject to Section 2.6(b), Barrick intetmsause HMCOC to transfer, prior to the Closiragd) each of the Allan Mine Potash Royalty,
the Allan Mine Borax Royalty and the Golden Beay&ty to one or more Affiliates of Barrick thatrissident in Canada for purposes of the
Tax Act and will be so resident in Canada at thedfive Time. Barrick shall cause HMCOC and itsikdfe(s) to set the price(s) for the
transfer(s) of such Purchased Royalties, be
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it by sale, contribution or otherwise, at an amahat is equal to the allocation of the PurchaseeRo such Purchased Royalties as set forth in
Schedule D hereto and to report such transfer@hyoGovernmental Authority, if required, that @nsistent with such price(s).

(b) In the event that such transfers haveoootirred prior to the Closing Date, Barrick shalise HMCOC to apply for a certificate purst
to section 116 of the Tax Act in respect of the sdleach of the Allan Mine Potash Royalty, theaAlMine Borax Royalty and the Golden E
Royalty. If a certificate issued by the MinisterMétional Revenue (Canada) pursuant to subsecli6(b12) of the Tax Act in respect of the
sale by HMCOC to Purchaser of the Allan Mine Potaslalty, the Allan Mine Borax Royalty and the GefdBear Royalty specifying a
certificate amount which is not less than the aggie amount of the Purchase Price allocated to Bunthased Royalties in Schedule D hereto
(the “Section 116 Amount’) is not delivered to Purchaser on or prior to @lesing Date, Purchaser shall be entitled to vattitirom the
Purchase Price at Closing the amount that it wbaldequired to remit pursuant to subsection 115¢.the Tax Act in connection with such
purchase and shall deposit such amount with a ryigreeable escrow agent to be held by such esagent pursuant to an escrow
agreement entered into among Barrick, HMCOC, Pwehand the escrow agent substantially in the fafrthe escrow agreement attached as
Schedule P hereto.

ARTICLE 3
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF PURCHASER

3.1 General Representations and Warranties of Puraser

Purchaser represents and warrants tadRas follows and acknowledges that Barrick igireg on the following representations and
warranties in connection with the consummatiorheftransactions contemplated by this Agreement:

(a) Status: Purchaser (and each of its Affiliates) is a dalyorporated (or organized) and validly existingpmration (or other entity
under the Corporations Act, has never been disdalvdiquidated, and has full power and authomtyatquire the Purchased Royalties
and to enter into, and perform all its obligatiamsler, this Agreemer

(b) Due Authorization : The execution and delivery of this Agreement athdlocuments, instruments and agreements reqtorbe
executed and delivered by Purchaser (or any dffftsates) pursuant to this Agreement, and thesiammation of the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement, have been prisutdh execution and delivery duly authorized byhattessary corporate action on
the part of Purchaser (and such Affiliate

(c) Non-Contravention : Neither the execution and delivery of this Agresmnor the completion and performance of the &etisns
contemplated hereunder will (i) violate, resultibreach of or default under, or conflict with, &jy of the provisions of the Charter
Documents of Purchaser (or any of its Affiliatgs),
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(@)

(e)

any indenture, Contract, agreement or instrumenthich Purchaser (or any of its Affiliates) is atyeor by which Purchaser (or any
its Affiliates) is bound, including the ConsidematiRoyalty Agreements or (z) any Law, or (ii) gieeany other Person, after the giv
of notice or otherwise, any right of terminatioancellation or acceleration in or with respectriy andenture, Contract, agreement or
instrument to which Purchaser (or any of its Affiés) is a party or is subject, or from which itides benefit, including the
Consideration Royalty Agreemen

Enforceability : This Agreement has been, and each documentymstit and agreement to be delivered on Closinghiolv
Purchaser (or any of its Affiliates) is a partylvaih Closing be, duly executed and delivered bycRaser (and such Affiliates) and this
Agreement constitutes, and each such Closing docyimstrument and agreement to which Purchasear(prof its Affiliates) is a
party will on Closing constitute, a legal, validdalninding obligation of Purchaser (and such Affés) enforceable against Purchaser
(or such Affiliates, as applicable) in accordandthits terms, except as may be limited by bankeypinsolvency, liquidation,
reorganization, reconstruction and other similard@f general application affecting the enforcagbdf remedies and rights of
creditors and except that equitable remedies ssigpecific performance and injunction are in theeition of a cour

Financing : Purchase's available cash resources are sufficient for Ragehto pay the Purchase Pri

3.2 Representations and Warranties of Purchaser P&iining to the Consideration Royalties

Purchaser represents and warrants tadRas follows and acknowledges that Barrick igireg on the following representations and

warranties in connection with the consummatiorheftransactions contemplated by this Agreement:

@)

(b)

No Encumbrances: The Consideration Royalties are free and clealldncumbrances other than those Encumbrancdgrteon
Schedule M hereto and, as of the Closing Date, Suxtsideration Royalties shall be transferred toiBla(or its Affiliate) free and
clear of all Encumbrances other than those Encunclesaset forth on Schedule M hereto that are mptinred to be discharged prior to
the Closing Date as indicated on Schedule

No Adverse Implications: Except as disclosed on Schedule K hereto, neitigeexecution and delivery of this Agreement her t
completion and performance of the transactionseroptated by this Agreement wi

(i) give any Person, other than Barrick orAfiliates, the right to terminate, cancel or amety contractual or other right of
Purchaser or it

15




(©

(d)

()

Affiliates where such termination, cancellationaonendment would have a material adverse effechgrCansideration Royalt

(i) result in the creation of any Encumbranceany Consideration Royalty or in a breach of detault under any Contract or other
agreement relating to any Consideration Royaltgl(iding the Consideration Royalty Agreements) ahiz crystallization of ar
floating charge on, or the acceleration of anytsgir obligations in respect of, any ConsideraRmyalty; or

(iii) give rise to any right of first offer, g-emptive right, right of first refusal or other rigio purchase any of the Considerat
Royalties or a portion therec

Adverse Proceedings There are no current, pending or, to the Purateakaowledge, threatened Proceedings by or agBusthaser
or any Affiliate of Purchaser relating to any Catesation Royalty or Consideration Royalty Agreeméiat Purchaser’s knowledge,
there is no basis for any other Proceeding whighyisued, would have a significant likelihood afving a material adverse effect on
any Consideration Royalt

Approvals : There is no consent, approval, authorizatioreasd, waiver or other action of, or any registrataeclaration, filing or
notice with or to, any Governmental Authority, Ogier or other Person that is required for the etiecwor delivery by Purchaser of
this Agreement, or the completion or performancébychaser of the transfer of the ConsiderationaRi@g, or the validity or
enforceability of this Agreement against Purchastirer than such consents, approvals, authorizgtieteases, waivers, actions,
registrations, declarations, filings or noticesresy be required pursuant to the Foreign Acquisitidnt or as set forth on Schedule

Material Contracts : Schedule C contains a complete and accuratedistid description of all Consideration Royalty égments an
any other Contracts by which Purchaser (or itsliafis) is bound or under which Purchaser (or fffiates) is entitled to any benefits
pertaining to the Consideration Royalties and atraed complete copies of such Consideration Rpysireements and other
Contracts have been provided to Barrick by Purah&sene of the Consideration Royalty Agreementstber Contracts listed on
Schedule C has been altered, modified, supplementathended (except as disclosed in Schedule €h &ahe Consideration
Royalty Agreements and other Contracts listed dre8ale C is in full force and effect. With respexeach of the Consideration
Royalty Agreements or other Contracts listed oneSlake C (i) there are no existing material defathliéseunder by Purchaser (or its
Affiliates) or, to Purchas’s knowledge, the counterparty(ies) thereto, andqiPurchas¢s knowledge, no event has occur
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(f)

()

(h)

@)

0

(k)

o

which (with notice, lapse of time or both) wouldnstitute a material breach or default thereundearbyparty

No Adverse Knowledge: Except as disclosed in this Agreement or in Saleel hereto, to Purchaser’s knowledge, there is no
information or fact relating to any Consideratiooy®lty, any Consideration Royalty Agreement, therterparty to any Consideration
Royalty Agreement, or the transactions contemplbtethis Agreement which might reasonably be exgtd materially and
adversely affect any Consideration Roya

Litigation : There is no action, suit, prosecution or othsnilsir proceeding of a material nature at law oedpuiity or before or by any
Governmental Authority of which process initiatitige same has been served on Purchaser (or itsafd§) or, to the knowledge of
Purchaser, threatened against Purchaser (or itisafd$) that affects any interest of PurchaseitéoAffiliates) in the Consideration
Royalties.

Information and Data : Purchaser has provided Barrick with copies ofevant Contracts, amendments, notices, correspme
notes, written information, data and other documénits possession or control relating to the @Gieraition Royalties, other than
notices, correspondence, notes, written informatiata and other documents provided to PurchasBahyck, its Affiliates or their
predecessors in intere

Disclosure of Books and RecordsPurchaser has all right, title and authority taltise all information provided by Purchase
Barrick in respect of the Consideration Royaltied genures relating to the Consideration Royaltreduding the Books and Records
relating thereto

Compliance with Laws: Purchaser (or its Affiliates) has not receivazhirany Governmental Authority or any third partyitten
notice of any pending or threatened investigatioarmjuiry by any Governmental Authority relatingaioy actual or alleged violation
of any Law, including any Environmental Law, intiwrespect to, or affecting any of the ConsideraRwyalties or the lands subject
thereto.

Affiliates : Each of the entities listed on Schedule C astider of a Consideration Royalty is an AffiliateRurchaser and Denv
Mining Finance Company is an Affiliate of Purchas

Crescent Valley and NVR1 Royalty:

(i) Without limiting the generality of Sectidhl(b), the execution and delivery of all of thedments required to be executed and
delivered by Crescent Valley Partners, L.P. oraifnys partners set forth in Schedule S heretotloermvise required pursuant to
this Agreement in connection with the transfer torigk (or its Affiliate) of the Consideration Rdtias specified in Section 2.3
(a)(ii)and the
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

consummation of the transfer to Barrick (or itsilidfe) of the Consideration Royalties specifiedSiaction 2.3(a)(iii) have bet
duly authorized by all necessary action on the pi@rescent Valley Partners, L.P. and its partr

Without limiting the generality of Section 3.2(d)ere is no consent, approval, authorization, sgleaaiver or other action of,
any declaration or notice to, Crescent Valley RagnL.P. or any of its partners that is requirettie completion or performar
by Purchaser (and its Affiliates) of the transteBarrick (or its Affiliate) of the ConsideratioroRalties specified in Section 2.3
(a)(iii), or the validity or enforceability again€trescent Valley Partners, L.P. and its partneth@focuments set forth in
Schedule S hereto to which they are a party omaike required pursuant to this Agreement in cotioaavith the transfer to
Barrick (or its Affiliate) of the Consideration Ralies specified in Section 2.3(a)(iii), other thaurch consents, approvals,
authorizations, releases, waivers, actions, registrs, declarations, filings or notices as ardaih on Schedule k

Purchaser and its Affiliates have all of the regdipower and authority to execute and deliver eithe documents set forth
Schedule S hereto or otherwise required pursuahigdAgreement in connection with the transfeBgorick (or its Affiliate) of
the Consideration Royalties specified in Secti@{&)(iii), and to authorize and take all such othetions, including actions on
behalf of Crescent Valley Partners, L.P. and it$ngas, as are necessary or desirable to tratefaConsideration Royalties
specified in Section 2.3(a)(iii) to Barrick (or idfiliates).

Without limiting the generality of Sectidh1(d), each of the documents set forth in Sche8uhereto or otherwise required
pursuant to this Agreement in connection with tia@sfer to Barrick (or its Affiliate) of the Congichtion Royalties specified in
Section 2.3(a)(iii) that is to be executed andvietd by Crescent Valley Partners, L.P. will onstig be duly executed and
delivered by Crescent Valley Partners, L.P. andsttute a legal, valid and binding obligation ofe€cent Valley Partners, L.P.,
enforceable against Crescent Valley Partners,ih.Bccordance with its terms, except as may bedidrby bankruptcy,
insolvency, liquidation, reorganization, reconstimt and other similar laws of general applicatéfecting the enforceability of
remedies and rights of creditors and except thaita&lgje remedies such as specific performance @goddtion are in the
discretion of a cour
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3.3 Disclaimer of Purchaser and Due Diligence

(a) Purchaser hereby expressly disclaims epgesentation or warranty with respect to the vatuerchantability or fithess for any purpose
of, or title to or Encumbrances on, the Mineralgenties relating to any Consideration Royalty; élistence or presence of any mineral
substance or ore; the feasibility or profitabilitiyany mining operation or production on or witlspect to the Mineral Properties relating to any
Consideration Royalty; the value of the ConsideratRoyalties; the right or ability of the Operattwsnine or produce minerals from the
Mineral Properties relating to any Consideratiory&ty; and the likelihood that minerals can or vl removed from the Mineral Properties
relating to any Consideration Royalty in commelgiableable quantities.

(b) Barrick acknowledges that it has had sygortunity as it requires to conduct due diligeimceespect of all matters pertaining to the
Consideration Royalties and the Consideration Rgysjreements, and any Liabilities, Permits and t€awts relating thereto, including
conducting searches of the public records reldtiegeto, and in respect of the Mineral Propertiagting to the Consideration Royalties, and
that it is fully satisfied with the results. Bakiturther acknowledges that the Consideration R@®sbnd the Consideration Royalty
Agreements and Liabilities relating thereto aregedold, assigned and transferred to and assumBarbigk, as the case may be, without the
benefit of any representations or warranties framcRaser or any other Person except for the reptatéens and warranties contained in
Section 3.1 and Section 3.2 (including the cesdificdelivered pursuant to Section 6.1(d), and wnitlother representations or warranties,
whether express or implied, collateral, statutargtherwise.

ARTICLE 4
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF BARRICK

4.1 General Representations and Warranties of Barok

Barrick represents and warrants to Puehas follows and acknowledges that Purchasehyigg on the following representations and
warranties in connection with the consummatiorheftransactions contemplated by this Agreement:

(@) Status: Barrick (and each of its Affiliates) is a dulycmrporated (or organized) and validly existing avgtion (or other entity) und:
the Corporations Act, has never been dissolvetjoidated, and has full power and authority to aejthe Consideration Royalties
and to enter into, and perform all its obligatiamsler, this Agreemer

(b) Due Authorization : The execution and delivery of this Agreement athdlocuments, instruments and agreements reqtorbd
executed and delivered by Barrick (or any of it§ilistes) pursuant to this Agreement, and the camsation of the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement, have been prisuth execution and delivery duly authorized byhattessary corporate action on
the part of Barrick (and such Affiliates
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(c) Non-Contravention : Neither the execution and delivery of this Agresmnor the completion and performance of the &etsns
contemplated hereunder will (i) violate, resultibreach of or default under, or conflict with, &y of the provisions of the Charter
Documents of Barrick (or any of its Affiliates),)(sny indenture, Contract, agreement or instrurteenthich Barrick (or any of its
Affiliates) is a party or by which Barrick (or amy its Affiliates) is bound, including the PurchdsRoyalty Agreements, or (z) any
Law, or (ii) give to any other Person, after theirgg of notice or otherwise, any right of termimatj cancellation or acceleration in or
with respect to any indenture, Contract, agreeraemstrument to which Barrick (or any of its Aféites) is a party or is subject, or
from which it derives benefit, including the Purskd Royalty Agreements (subject to any Third PRrtschase Rights and Buy Down
Rights and provided all Third Party Consents ataiokd).

(d) Enforceability : This Agreement has been, and each documentyinstit and agreement to be delivered on ClosinghiohwBarrick
(or any of its Affiliates) is a party will on Clasj be, duly executed and delivered by Barrick (sunch Affiliates) and this Agreement
constitutes, and each such Closing document, mstnti and agreement to which Barrick (or any oAff#liates) is a party will on
Closing constitute, a legal, valid and binding ghtion of Barrick (and such Affiliates) enforceablgainst Barrick (or such Affiliates,
as applicable) in accordance with its terms, exasphay be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, laation, reorganization,
reconstruction and other similar laws of generalligaption affecting the enforceability of remedaewd rights of creditors and except
that equitable remedies such as specific performand injunction are in the discretion of a ca

4.2 Representations and Warranties of Barrick Pertaing to the Purchased Royalties

Barrick represents and warrants to Puehas follows and acknowledges that Purchasehyigg on the following representations and
warranties in connection with the consummatiorheftransactions contemplated by this Agreement:

(&) No Encumbrances: The Purchased Royalties are free and clear &radumbrances other than those Encumbrances #ebit
Schedule L hereto. As of the Closing or such ldege of transfer with respect to any TransferaldgaRy that is subject to Section 5.4
and is subsequently transferred in accordanceSethion 7.5, the Transferable Royalties shall @esfierred to Purchaser free and
clear of all Encumbrances other than those Encuntlesaset forth on Schedule L hereto. As of the dayeTPPR Outstanding Roya
is transferred in accordance with Section 7.5, AER Royalty shall be transferred to Purchaserdnekclear of all Encumbrances
other than those Encumbrances set forth on Schédudeeto.
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(b)

(©)

(d)

()

No Adverse Implications: Except as disclosed in Schedule N hereto, neftteeexecution and delivery of this Agreement he
completion and performance of the transactionseroptated by this Agreement wi

(i) give any Person, other than Purchasersohftiliates, the right to terminate, cancel or amdeny contractual or other right of
Barrick or its Affiliates where such terminatiomncellation or amendment would have a material i@gveffect on any
Purchased Royalty

(i) resultin the creation of any Encumbranceany Purchased Royalty or in a breach of or audefinder any Contract or other
agreement relating to any Purchased Royalty (imctuthe Purchased Royalty Agreements) or in thetatljzation of any
floating charge on, or the acceleration of anytdgir obligations in respect of, any Purchased Ryyar

(iif) give rise to any right of first offer, p-emptive right, right of first refusal or other rigio purchase any of the Purchased Roye
or a portion thereo

in each case except for the Third Party Purchaght&disclosed in Schedule A hereto and provide@ratd Party Consents are
obtained

Adverse Proceedings There are no current, pending or, to Barrick’ewfedge, threatened Proceedings by or againstdgaoriany
Affiliate of Barrick relating to any Purchased Rdyaor Purchased Royalty Agreement. To Barrick’®Witedge, there is no basis for
any other Proceeding which, if pursued, would hagggnificant likelihood of having a material adseeffect on any Purchased
Royalty.

Approvals : There is no consent, approval, authorizatioreasd, waiver or other action of, or any registrgtaeclaration, filing o
notice with or to, any Governmental Authority, Ogtexr or other Person that is required for the etiecwor delivery by Barrick of this
Agreement, or the completion or performance by iBiof the transfer of the Purchased Royaltiesamemplated herein, or the
validity or enforceability of this Agreement agaimsarrick, other than (i) such consents, approwashorizations, releases, waivers,
actions, registrations, declarations, filings ofices as may be required pursuant to the Foreigjuisiions Act or in connection with
Third Party Purchase Rights, (ii) any required @tiarty Consents and (iii) any notices to be sedetivered after the Closing Dal

Material Contracts : Schedule B contains a complete and accuratadisind description of all Purchased Royalty Agressand,
except as noted on Schedule B, correct and comgibgies of such Purchased Royalty Agreements hege provided to Purchas
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()

(9)

(h)

(i)

0
(k)

by Barrick. None of the Purchased Royalty Agreeméats been altered, modified, supplemented or amdefekcept as disclosed
Schedule B). Each of the Purchased Royalty Agre&iigiin full force and effect, except as discloge8chedule N. With respect to
each of the Purchased Royalty Agreements (i) taerano existing material defaults thereunder byiBlagor its Affiliates) or to
Barrick’s knowledge, the counterparty(ies) theratud (ii) to Barrick’s knowledge, no event has aced which (with notice, lapse of
time or both) would constitute a material breaclklefiault thereunder by any party, except as disdds Schedule N

No Adverse Knowledge: Except as disclosed in this Agreement or in Salee hereto, to Barri¢ s knowledge, there is r
information or fact relating to any Purchased Rtyany Purchased Royalty Agreement, the countgrparany Purchased Royalty
Agreement, or the transactions contemplated byAgreement which might reasonably be expected tieradly and adversely affect
any Purchased Royalt

Litigation : Except as disclosed in Schedule N hereto, tlsene iaction, suit, prosecution or other similargeeding of a materii
nature at law or in equity or before or by any Gameental Authority of which process initiating ti@me has been served on Barrick
(or its Affiliates) or, to Barrick’s knowledge, tsatened against Barrick (or its Affiliates) thafeafs any interest of Barrick (or its
Affiliates) in the Purchased Royaltie

Compliance with Laws: Except as disclosed in Schedule N hereto, Bafaclts Affiliates) has not received from any Gawaental
Authority or any third party written notice of apgnding or threatened investigation or enquiry oy @overnmental Authority
relating to any actual or alleged violation of draw, including any Environmental Law, in, with resp to, or affecting any of the
Purchased Royalties or the lands subject the

Data Room Disclosure:Barrick has all right, title and authority to digsk all information provided by Barrick to Purchaisethe Dat:
Room in respect of the Purchased Royalties, thelfased Royalty Agreements and tenures relatinget®tirchased Royalties and the
Purchased Royalty Agreemer

Affiliates : Each of the entities listed on Schedule A ashibider of a Purchased Royalty is an Affiliate ofriek.

Non-Residents of CanadaAs at the Closing Date, none of the vendors of@lfased Royalty that constitutes property (othanth
excluded property within the meaning of subseclibf(5) of the Tax Act) described in either subsecfil6(1) or (5.2) of the Tax Act
shall be a non-resident of Canada for purposeseoT aix Act, except for HMCOC in the event thattifaesfers contemplated under
Section 2.6(a) are not completed prior to the @lpfate, in which ever
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HMCOC shall be a nc-resident of Canada for purposes of the Tax Actthadgrovisions of Section 2.6(b) shall apy

() Competition Act : Assuming that the Closing Date is the date of Agreement, neither (i) the aggregate value ahallPurchased
Royalties nor (ii) the annual gross revenues frafassin or from Canada generated from the Purchaegélties exceeds Cdn
$50,000,000, as determined pursuant to subsectio¢2Lof the Competition Act, provided that, foethurposes of Section 6.2(a) of
this Agreement, the assumption that the Closing [Iathe date of this Agreement will not apy

(m) Investment Canada Act: The value of the Purchased Royalties, calculmtelde manner prescribed by the Investment Canada
less than Cdn $5,000,0C

4.3 Disclosure Qualification

On the date hereof and on the Closing Pedch of the representations and warrantiesioedtin Section 4.1 and Section 4.2 (including
the representations and warranties set forth ircéntficate delivered pursuant to Section 6.2l be deemed for all purposes to be qual
in its entirety by reference to the full contentdtee documents identified in Schedule Q heretm(fp any updating of such Schedule pursuant
to Section 7.3(e)). After the Closing Date, inchglior all purposes relating to any claim for indefication, each of the representations and
warranties contained in Section 4.1 and Sectior{idcuding the representations and warrantiescs#t in the certificate delivered pursuant to
Section 6.2(d)) shall be deemed for all purposésetqualified in its entirety by reference to th# €ontents of the documents identified in
Schedule Q hereto as updated pursuant to Sec8¢&).7/For greater certainty, to the extent thatiaagcuracy in any such representation or
warranty is patently evident or is disclosed, diseor indirectly, in the contents of the documeidtsntified in the applicable version of
Schedule Q, such representation and warranty witldemed to be qualified by such disclosure, aitHerdPurchaser nor any Affiliate thereof
shall be entitled to make any Claim for such inaacy in such representation or warranty. For grezgdainty, to the extent that a document is
referenced in a document identified in the applieatersion of Schedule Q but not actually listedhie applicable version of Schedule Q, the
representations and warranties will not be qualifig the full contents of such referenced docuntauttpnly by the contents of such referen
document that are patently evident or disclosagcty or indirectly, in a document identified imet applicable version of Schedule Q.

4.4 Disclaimer of Barrick and Due Diligence

(a) Barrick hereby expressly disclaims amyresentation or warranty with respect to the vatoerchantability or fithess for any purpose
or title to or Encumbrances on, the Mineral Prapsentelating to any Purchased Royalty; the exigtengresence of any mineral substance or
ore; the feasibility or profitability of any miningperation or production on or with respect toNieeral Properties relating to any Purchased
Royalty; the value of the Purchased Royaltiesritiet or ability of the Operators to mine or produninerals from the Mineral
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Properties relating to any Purchased Royalty; Aedikelihood that minerals can or will be remo¥ezin the Mineral Properties relating to any
Purchased Royalty in commercially saleable quastiti

(b) Purchaser acknowledges that it has hall gpportunity as it requires to conduct due diligeein respect of all matters pertaining to the
Purchased Royalties and the Purchased Royalty Agnets, and any Liabilities, Permits and Contraelating thereto, including conducting
searches of the public records relating theretd,imamespect of the Mineral Properties relatingh® Purchased Royalties, and that it is fully
satisfied with the results. Purchaser further askadges that the Purchased Royalties and the PegdHaoyalty Agreements and Liabilities
relating thereto are being sold, assigned andfeemesl to and assumed by Purchaser, as the casbenaythout the benefit of any
representations or warranties from Barrick or athepPerson except for the representations ancaw#es contained in Section 4.1 and
Section 4.2, as qualified by Section 4.3 (including representations and warranties set fortharcéntificate delivered pursuant to Section 6.2
(d)), and with no other representations or wareantivhether express or implied, collateral, stayubo otherwise.

ARTICLE 5
COVENANTS

5.1 Operations Until Closing by Barrick

Except as otherwise provided in this Agmnent (including Schedule N hereto) or as otheraggeed in writing by Barrick and Purcha:
Barrick shall (and shall cause its Affiliates tw),the extent applicable, (i) in the case of thariBferable Royalties, from the date hereof ung¢
Closing Date (or in the case of the TransferablgaRies for which a Third Party Consent is not ireed prior to the Closing Date, from the
date hereof until the date that the deliveries ireglby Section 7.5 are made or in the case oftigtralian Royalties, from the date hereof u
the later of the FIRB Transfer Date and the da& ttire deliveries required by Section 7.5 are mgdg)n the case of TPPR Outstanding
Royalties that are transferred to the Purchasem the date hereof until the date that the dekdgerequired by Section 7.5 are made, and (iii) in
the case of TPPR Royalties that are transferredthird party, from the date hereof until the datevhich Barrick or its Affiliate transfers the
applicable TPPR Royalty:

(a) take good care of such Purchased Royalties anémpeprotect and safeguard such Purchased Ry

(b) not allow any such Purchased Royalty to becomeestibp any Encumbrance on or after the date hethef than those Encumbran
set forth on Schedule L here

(c) not, except pursuant to Third Party PureHaights or Buy Down Rights, (i) sell, assign, kEd&ense, transfer or otherwise dispose of,
or agree to sell, assign, lease, license, transfetherwise dispose of, any such Purchased Rogaltprtion thereof, (ii) initiate,
solicit, knowingly encourage or knowingly facilie
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(including by way of furnishing n¢-public information or assistance) any inquirieshe making of any proposal or other action
constitutes, or may reasonably be expected totteaahy sale, assignment, lease, license, transfether disposition of any such
Purchased Royalty or portion thereof, or (iii) enteo discussions or negotiate with any Persdiuitherance of such inquiries or
otherwise with respect to any sale, assignmerggldecense, transfer or other disposition of amghsPurchased Royalty or portion
thereof; provided that Barrick shall be entitlecctuse HMCOC to transfer the Allan Mine Potash Rgythe Allan Mine Borax
Royalty and the Golden Bear Royalty to one or nfffdiates of Barrick resident in Canada for purpssof the Tax Act, and Barrick
shall be entitled to transfer, or cause the traraffeany other Purchased Royalty to Barrick oidfiliate of Barrick with the consent
of Purchaser, not to be unreasonably withheld tayeel;

(d) make all necessary tax, governmental and otheg§lnecessary in respect to such Purchased Rayialtetimely fashion; an
(e) not, without the prior written consent of Purchasenend or vary any such Purchased Royalty ex

(i) renewals or replacements of any of such Purchasgdlfies on terms and conditions that are no lagsurable to Barrick tha
those provided for under their respective Purch&ssdalty Agreements

(i) pursuant to any Permits required so am&ntain such Purchased Royalty or to consummatéaimsactions contemplated by
this Agreement

(iif) pursuant to and in accordance with any Third PRtschase Rights or Buy Down Rights;

(iv) as Barrick may determine to be necessary or apigtegn order to separate any Split Contract iroet@nce with Section 5.

5.2 Operations until Closing by Purchaser

Except as otherwise provided in this Agnent or as otherwise agreed to in writing by B&rand Purchaser, Purchaser shall (and shall
cause its Affiliates to), to the extent applicalitem the date hereof until the Closing Date:

(a) take good care of the Consideration Royalties andguve, protect and safeguard the Consideratigalfes;

(b) not allow any Consideration Royalty to beeosubject to any Encumbrance on or after theltzeof other than those Encumbrances
set forth on Schedule M here

(c) not (i) sell, assign, lease, license, transfertbevise dispose of, or agree to sell, assigneldasnse, transfer or otherwise dispos¢
any such Consideratic
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Royalty or portion thereof, (ii) initiate, solicknowingly encourage or knowingly facilitate (indiag by way of furnishing nc-public
information or assistance) any inquiries or the imglof any proposal or other action that const&ut® may reasonably be expected to
lead to, any sale, assignment, lease, licensesfaaar other disposition of any such ConsideraRayalty or portion thereof, or

(i) enter into discussions or negotiate with &wgrson in furtherance of such inquiries or otheawigth respect to any sale,
assignment, lease, license, transfer or other gigpo of any such Consideration Royalty or portibareof;

(d) make all necessary tax, governmental and otheg§lnecessary in respect to the Consideration Reyah a timely fashion; ar
(e) not, without the prior written consent of Barrigknmend or vary any Consideration Royalty exc

(i) renewals or replacements of any of such Consider&byalties on terms and conditions that are s® flavourable to Purchas
than those provided for under their respective @emation Royalty Agreements;

(i) pursuant to any Permits required so as to maistath Consideration Royalty or to consummate thes&retions contemplated
this Agreement

5.3 Third Party Consents; Split Contracts

(a) Within 20 days of the date of this Agreat@r such earlier time or times as may be reguingthe terms of the applicable Purchased
Royalty Agreements), Barrick shall give such nati¢ather than the FIRB Notice, which for greatetaiaty shall be the responsibility of
Purchaser) as may be required by the terms ofuhehBsed Royalty Agreements (including any Splintacts) to all Operators and other
Persons whose consent, approval, authorizatioeaselor waiver is required for the assignment ofiélds (or its Affiliate’s) interests in the
Purchased Royalty Agreements and the transfereoPtirchased Royalties to Purchaser. Subject t@o8extl4, Barrick shall use all reasone
efforts to obtain all consents, approvals, authadiins, releases and waivers of any Governmenttiokity, Operator or other Person (other
than such consents, approvals, authorizationsgaseteor waivers as may be required pursuant tedregn Acquisitions Act which, for greater
certainty, shall be the responsibility of Purchagtire “ Third Party Consents”) necessary for the assignment of Barrick’s (srAffiliate’s)
interests in the Purchased Royalty Agreements toh@ger and the transfer of the Purchased Roy#dtiesrchaser (other than, for greater
certainty, any consent, approval, authorizatiolease or waiver in respect of any Third Party PasehRights).

(b) Without limiting the generality of the fgoing, in the case of any Split Contract wherédiadTParty Consent is required for Barrick (or
its Affiliate) to assign the portions of the Sglibntract that relate to the Purchased Royalti€utehaser, Barrick shall use all reasonable
efforts to obtain all consents and agreements redud separate such Split Contract into two orexemparate agreements such that the onq
rights, obligations and Liabilities of Barrick and
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its Affiliates and the rights, obligations and Liigkes relating to the Purchased Royalties areawottained in the same agreement.

(c) Purchaser shall, at Barrick’s requestpperate with Barrick and use all reasonable effor@ssist Barrick in obtaining such Third Party
Consents and shall promptly give to Barrick sudbrimation and copies of such documents relatingurchaser which Barrick may reasone
request from time to time as is necessary and a@pgte in order to obtain any Third Party Conseffémred to above.

(d) In the case of any Split Contract whejaa(Third Party Consent is not required for Bari(okits Affiliate) to assign the portions of the
Split Contract that relate to the Purchased Raggltd Purchaser, or (ii) such Third Party Consastare required for Barrick (or its Affiliate)
assign the portions of the Split Contract thatteeta the Purchased Royalties to Purchaser havedi#ained, Barrick shall assign to Purchaser
only those portions of such Split Contract thattaonthe rights, obligations and Liabilities rekggito the Purchased Royalties, which portions
shall be treated as a Purchased Royalty Agreemmeinfer greater certainty, the remaining portiohsuch Split Contract, which contain the
ongoing rights, obligations and Liabilities of Biak and its Affiliates shall not be transferredRorchaser.

5.4 Consent Not Received By Closing

(a) Subject to Section 5.4(b), if a Third Rabnsent required to permit the transfer or agsignt to Purchaser of Barrick’s interest in any
Purchased Royalty Agreement or Purchased Royaitgtiseceived on or before the Closing or otheetfor transfer of such Purchased
Royalty to Purchaser pursuant to Section 7.5,rdnesfer or assignment of such Purchased Royaltgéxgent or Purchased Royalty in respect
of which the Third Party Consent has not been weckwill not be effective in each case until thelagable Third Party Consent has been
received and such Purchased Royalty AgreementrahBsed Royalty (including all rights in respectrdof) will be held by Barrick following
the Closing (in the case of Transferable Royaltieg)ther time for transfer of such Purchased Rgyairsuant to Section 7.5 (in the case of
TPPR Outstanding Royalties to be transferred tatrager) in trust for the benefit and exclusive afseurchaser until such time as such Third
Party Consent is received and the applicable PeethRoyalty and related Purchased Royalty Agreeiaéransferred to Purchaser in
accordance with Section 7.5(c). Barrick shall anigke use of such Purchased Royalty Agreement @hBsed Royalty held in trust for the
benefit and exclusive use of Purchaser in accoedaiith the directions of Purchaser that do not lkcinfvith the terms governing such
Purchased Royalty Agreement or Purchased Royaltghser will co-operate with such efforts and alseeasonable efforts to assist Barrick
in obtaining such Third Party Consents.

(b) In the case of any Split Contract whefiéhad Party Consent is required for Barrick (orAtfiliate) to assign the portions of the Split
Contract that relate to the Purchased Royalti€utghaser, unless the parties otherwise agreéahgfer or assignment of such Split Contract
will not be effective until the Split Contract hlasen separated as described in Section 5.3, ahdSgqlit Contract will be held by Barrick
following the Closing (in the case of TransferaBlgyalties) or other time for transfer of such Pas#d Royalty pursuant to Section 7.5 (in the
case of TPPR Outstanding Royalties to be transfeaa®urchaser) in trust for the
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benefit and use of Purchaser to the extent, andtorthe extent, that such Split Contract relatea Purchased Royalty, until such Split
Contract has been separated and the rights, dbligadnd Liabilities relating to a Purchased Ragyhtive been transferred to Purchaser as
described in Section 5.3(d). As it relates to mglobligations and Liabilities relating to a Purebd Royalty, Barrick shall only make use of ¢
Split Contract in accordance with the direction$afchaser that do not conflict with the terms goirgy such Split Contract. As it relates to
rights, obligations and Liabilities of Barrick dsiAffiliates that are not related to a PurchasegdRy, Barrick may make use of such Split
Contract in such manner as it sees fit.

5.5 Third Party Purchase Rights

(a) Purchaser shall give Barrick instructiarith respect to such notices as may be requirethéyerms of the Purchased Royalty
Agreements to be provided to any Person who ifithéer of a Third Party Purchase Right. Such imsitons shall (i) include the form of noti
to be used and delivery instructions and statb@aptirchase price the amount allocated to the BeechRoyalty as set forth on Schedule D
hereto, (ii) provide that such notices will be delied in respect of each applicable Purchased Boiyahccordance with the times therefor set
forth on Schedule O hereto, and (iii) be provide®arrick sufficiently in advance of the applicakitae set forth on Schedule O to allow
Barrick or its Affiliate to deliver the applicabtetice in accordance with the time therefor sethfon Schedule O, in each case unless the
parties otherwise mutually agree. If Purchaser goegide instructions in accordance with the secegrtence of this Section 5.5(a), then
Barrick or its Affiliates will comply with such inguctions or take an Independent Action, but in emgnt Barrick or its Affiliates will provide
the notices required by the terms of the applicBhlechased Royalty Agreements. If Purchaser doegrowide instructions in accordance with
the second sentence of this Section 5.5(a), thericRar its Affiliates shall deliver notices tol&ersons who are holders of Third Party
Purchase Rights in respect of any Purchased Rogaftyrsuant to any Purchased Royalty Agreememhinvihe times required by the
applicable Purchased Royalty Agreement, which eetghall state as the purchase price the amooct#gd to the Purchased Royalty as set
forth on Schedule D hereto, and such notices dgiyeBarrick or its Affiliates will be deemed to bertsistent with the instructions of Purchaser
and shall not be an Independent Action (provided, thor greater certainty, the provisions of théxton 5.5, including with respect to
requesting instructions and complying with instiaies or taking any Independent Action, shall agplany actions taken thereafter). Barrick
shall promptly provide to Purchaser copies of altten notices and responses received in respanige thotices given by Barrick (or its
Affiliates) pursuant to this Section 5.5(a).

(b) From time to time, as required or apprajgrin connection with Third Party Purchase Rigimsluding in connection with the potential
exercise of Third Party Purchase Rights, any despat challenges relating to the exercise or nameise of Third Party Purchase Rights or the
terms of the Third Party Purchase Rights and attleseent of any litigation or arbitration relatimg such disputes or challenges), following
receipt of a request therefor from Barrick, Purehahall provide to Barrick instructions in accorda with this Section 5.5(b) with respect to
the actions to be taken with respect thereto. tERaser fails to provide instructions in resporsa timely request therefor from Barrick, then
Barrick and its Affiliates shall be permitted eithie not take any action or to take such actiomag have been
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proposed in Barrick’s request, which action (ofuiig to act) will be deemed to be consistent whh instructions of Purchaser and shall not be
an Independent Action. Barrick (or its Affiliatesiay choose not to follow instructions given by Puager pursuant to this Section 5.5.

(c) If Barrick (or its Affiliates) takes antan or fails to take an action with respect to Térd Party Purchase Rights of a TPPR Royalty
where such action or failure to act is inconsisteith the instructions of Purchaser given in aceoick with this Section 5.5 (each an “
Independent Action”), then:

(i) as provided in Section 9.2(c), Purchi’s obligation to indemnify Barrick for Losses punstito Section 9.2(c) shall be limited
Losses suffered or incurred by Barrick or its Affies as a result of or arising directly or indilgout of or in connection with
actions taken or not taken by Barrick or its A#iles that were not Independent Actions (regardifesether such Losses are
suffered or incurred prior to or after the timettBarrick takes the Independent Action), and fomposes of greater certainty,
Purchaser shall not be obligated to indemnify B&rfor Losses suffered or incurred by Barrick srAffiliates as a result of or
arising directly or indirectly out of or in connemt with actions taken or not taken by Barrick tsrAffiliates that were
Independent Actions; ar

(i) the “TPPR Payment Amount” shall be the amiallocated to that TPPR Royalty in ScheduleeBslany amounts owing to
Barrick pursuant to Section 9.2(c) which have restrbpaid

(d) If Barrick (or its Affiliates) does notka any action (or fail to take any action) withpest to the Third Party Purchase Rights of a TPPR
Royalty that is an Independent Action, then:

(i) as provided in Section 9.2(c), Purchasatlshdemnify Barrick pursuant to Section 9.2(c) fmsses suffered or incurred by
Barrick or its Affiliates as a result of or arisidgectly or indirectly out of or in connection \wigictions taken or not taken by
Barrick or its Affiliates with respect to any ThiRhrty Purchase Rights (regardless of whether sasbes are suffered or
incurred prior to or after the time that the TPP&/&lty is transferred to Purchaser or its Affiliaieto a third party, as the case
may be); ant

(i) the “TPPR Payment Amount” shall be thegg@roceeds received by Barrick or its Affiliaterfr the transfer of such TPPR
Royalty, less any amounts owing to Barrick pursdargection 9.2(c) which have not been p

(e) Purchaser shall, at Barrick’s requestpperate with Barrick and use all reasonable effor@ssist Barrick to comply with the provisions
of this Section 5.5.

() The parties agree to cooperate in goath fai take such actions and execute such docuroeiristruments as may be necessary or
desirable in order to recommence the period of
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time in which a TPPR Royalty can be sold to Pureh#ghe period of time within which such sale ntsycompleted expires prior to the
Closing Date.

(9) All requests for instructions from Barrigkven to Purchaser pursuant to this Section 5.8t in writing and include a specific request
for instructions. All requests for instructions mbs made sufficiently in advance of the requirsgtriuctions to give Purchaser a reasonable
amount of time to provide instructions.

(h) All instructions to be given by Purchaparsuant to this Section 5.5 must be reasonabtnrimpliance with applicable Law, the
applicable Purchased Royalty Agreement(s) andAfieement, in writing and in sufficient detail taake clear to Barrick the actions required
to comply with such instructions. All such instriects must be received by Barrick from Purchasemmtty after a request therefor, and in any
event sufficiently in advance of the required attio give Barrick a reasonable amount of time tmgly with such instructions.

5.6 No Reduction in Purchase Price

The Purchase Price shall not be redusedrasult of the refusal of or failure to obtairy &hird Party Consents or the exercise of any
Third Party Purchase Rights. Purchaser acceptsntire risk that the Third Party Purchase Righty tmaexercised and any required Third
Party Consents may be refused or otherwise notreataand acknowledges and agrees that Purchadehatano Claim against Barrick as a
result thereof.

5.7 Notice to Operators

(a) Within 10 days after the Closing Date,dPaser shall give such notices to the applicabler&prs and other Persons as may be requirec
by the terms of the Purchased Royalty Agreemetdasimg to the Transferable Royalties, other thasséhheld in trust pursuant to Section 5.4
and any Australian Royalties not transferred onGlasing Date as a result of an Unsatisfied FIRBidition, of the transfer of such
Transferable Royalties to Purchaser, includingrirtgions to such Operators to make payment to Rseshof all amounts payable in respect of,
as applicable, production and/or operations autigerlying Mineral Properties occurring on or after Closing Date. This Section 5.7 shall
apply,mutatis mutandisto all TPPR Outstanding Royalties transferreBtochaser, all Purchased Royalties held in trustyaunt to
Section 5.4 that are transferred to Purchaser lhAdistralian Royalties transferred to Purchaseaspant to Section 7.5(d).

(b) After the Closing Date, Barrick shall lesponsible for giving such notices to the applieaDperators and other Persons as Barrick may
determine appropriate and as may be required btethes of the Consideration Royalty Agreementstiredeto the Consideration Royalties of
the transfer of the Consideration Royalties to B&rfor its Affiliate), including instructions tough Operators to make payment to Barrick (or
its Affiliate) of all amounts payable in respect aé applicable, production and/or operationsautiderlying Mineral Properties occurring on
or after the Closing Date.
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5.8 Barrick Covenants

(a) Barrick hereby covenants and agrees that o and following the Closing Date it shall pnptly forward to Purchaser or otherwise
notify Purchaser of any notices it or its Affiligteeceive on or after the date hereof in respetit@Purchased Royalties or the Purchased
Royalty Agreements relating thereto (excluding,dozater certainty, such notices that are deliveredspect of any TPPR Royalty that is
transferred to a third party after the date of snahsfer).

(b) Barrick covenants and agrees that fromadtet the Closing Date (or other date of transfiéghall, or its Affiliate(s) shall (in which ca
Barrick shall cause its Affiliate(s) to), as theseanay be, execute such assignment or other agnezared applications as may be reasonably
required to (i) permit the Consideration Royaltebe transferred to Barrick (or its Affiliate),@Barrick’s (or its Affiliate’s) interest in the
Consideration Royalties to be registered by Barfigkits Affiliate) to the greatest extent possibleder Law, and (ii) permit the Purchased
Royalties (other than the TPPR Royalties that atdransferred to Purchaser) to be transferreditotaser (or its Affiliate), and Purchaser’s
(or its Affiliate’s) interest in the Purchased Rtiies (other than the TPPR Royalties that are raotsferred to Purchaser) to be registered by
Purchaser (or its Affiliate) to the greatest extgogsible under Law.

(c) Barrick agrees that it shall provide Pasdr and its designated representatives with ataélse Data Room and all Books and Records
contained in the Data Room from the date heredbupe Closing Date and that on the Closing Datasgpromptly as possible thereafter, it
shall deliver to Purchaser either physical or etegt copies (or originals to the extent they aréhie possession or control of Barrick and
reasonably available) of all Books and Recordstifled on Schedule Q (as updated pursuant to Segti®(e)) relating to the Transferable
Royalties, in each case subject to any confidetytiabligations then applicable to Barrick or arfyite Affiliates to any third party as disclosed
on Schedule N. Barrick further agrees that it stieliver to Purchaser either physical or electraoigies (or originals to the extent they are in
the possession or control of Barrick and reasonadylable) of all Books and Records identifiedSzhedule Q (as updated pursuant to
Section 7.3(e)) relating to the TPPR OutstandingdR@s subsequently transferred to Purchaserdaordance with Section 7.5(a), the
Purchased Royalties that are subject to Sectiosuthdequently transferred to Purchaser in accoedaith Section 7.5(c) and the Australian
Royalties subsequently transferred to Purchasacéordance with Section 7.5(d) on the applicabte dach TPPR Outstanding Royalties,
Purchased Royalties or Australian Royalties, asicgigle, are transferred to Purchaser or as prgngstipossible thereafter, subject to any
confidentiality obligations then applicable to Bekror any of its Affiliates to any third party déclosed on Schedule N.

(d) Barrick hereby covenants and agrees that o and after the Closing Date it shall, subjecany confidentiality obligations then
applicable to Barrick or any of its Affiliates tmgthird party as disclosed on Schedule N, use cervially reasonable efforts to provide to
Purchaser such information as Purchaser may relalsormuest in order for Purchaser to prepare guctiorma and historical financial
statements as may be required by applicable USitates securities laws and Barrick shall ensurestinzh information provided to Purchase
assembled in good faith based on Barrick’s intereebrds;
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provided, however, Purchaser shall have sole resipitity for preparing any such pro forma and higtal financial statements and for the
contents thereof, including those portions basgdcdy or indirectly, in whole or in part, uponfermation provided by Barrick, and Purchaser
shall indemnify and hold Barrick and its Affiliatbarmless from and against any Losses sufferedcariied, arising directly or indirectly from
or in connection with such pro forma and historfoancial statements.

(e) To the extent that Purchaser identifies () the mining registry in a particular jurisdan does not correctly reflect that the payor of a
Purchased Royalty (other than a TPPR Royalty thainsferred to a third party) is the registereldiér of all claims, concessions or tenements
to which the Purchased Royalty applies, or tha(ileed of assumption assuming the Purchased titsysihould have been executed by the
payor of a Purchased Royalty and registered anchaa$urchaser may request, and Barrick maysidigicretion, provide, assistance in
connection with the procurement of such deeds sifraption and updating the records at such minigsiry in accordance with applicable
law; provided that Barrick shall have no liabilfgr any actions taken or not taken by Barrick parguo this Section 5.8(e), for any failure to
procure a deed of assumption or to update anydeairany mining registry or for any failure toiaswith any such procurement or updating.

5.9 Purchaser Covenants

(a) Purchaser covenants and agrees that fnonaféer the Closing Date (or other date of transfeshall, or its Affiliate(s) shall (in which
case Purchaser shall cause its Affiliate(s) tojhascase may be, execute such assignment, teromratother agreements and applications as
may be reasonably required to (i) permit the PuseteRoyalties (other than TPPR Royalties that atéransferred to Purchaser) to be
transferred to Purchaser (or its Affiliate), anddhiaser’s (or its Affiliate’s) interest in the Phesed Royalties (other than the TPPR Royalties
that are not transferred to Purchaser) to be exgidtby Purchaser (or its Affiliate) to the gretitedent possible under Law, and (ii) permit the
Consideration Royalties to be transferred to Barfar its Affiliate), and Barrick’s (or its Affilite’s) interest in the Consideration Royalties to
be registered by Barrick (or its Affiliate) to tgeeatest extent possible under Law.

(b) Purchaser covenants and agrees that ujpsinG all information provided by Purchaser to figde in respect of the Consideration
Royalties and tenures relating to the Considerd®oyalties, including the Books and Records regatirereto shall become the property of
Barrick.

(c) Purchaser covenants and agrees thattpreomd following the Closing Date it shall promptbrward to Barrick any notices it or its
Affiliates receive on or after the date hereofespect of the Consideration Royalties or the Camaittbn Royalty Agreements relating thereto
(other than notices provided to Purchaser by Bawoidts Affiliates).

5.10 FIRB Notice

Purchaser shall, within ten Business Dfter the date hereof, deliver to the TreasurehefCommonwealth of Australia a written not
(“ FIRB Notice ") in the prescribed
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form and in accordance with section 26A of the Epré\cquisitions Act, and otherwise in accordartoe provisions of the Foreign
Acquisitions Act, in respect of the purchase arid efithe Australian Royalties in accordance witld gubject to the terms and conditions of
this Agreement. Purchaser shall further requesterFIRB Notice that the Treasurer provide writkeknowledgement of the receipt of such
FIRB Notice and, upon receipt by Purchaser of sackmowledgement, if any, promptly provide a copyhaf same to Barrick. Barrick shall co-
operate with Purchaser in connection with the piaan of the FIRB Notice, including promptly prolimg to Purchaser such information and
copies of such documents relating to Barrick wiiciichaser may reasonably request from time to d&isnere necessary and appropriate in
order to prepare such FIRB Notice. Following delyef the FIRB Notice, Purchaser shall keep Bargpprised of all actions taken or to be
taken and communications and correspondence betugrehaser and the Treasurer with respect thenetpvide Barrick with copies of ai
documentation provided to, or received from, theaburer of the Commonwealth of Australia and préynpovide to Barrick with any
correspondence from, or on behalf of, the Treasafrtte Commonwealth of Australia evidencing thés$action or fulfilment of the FIRB
Condition.

5.11 Mutual Covenants

Except as otherwise provided in this Agmnent or as otherwise agreed upon in writing byptiréies, each party shall from the date of
Agreement up to the Closing Date use all reasoreffidets to ensure that the representations andawties of such party in this Agreement are
true and correct as of the Closing Date and treattivenants and conditions to be fulfilled by esath party pursuant to this Agreement are
fulfilled on or prior to the Closing Date, and dhalomptly inform the other party of any state a€fs that will or is reasonably likely to resul
any representation or warranty of such party beimgue or incorrect or in any covenant or conditi@ing unfulfilled at Closing.

5.12 Performance by Affiliates

To the extent any action or thing, or doegument, instrument or other agreement to beuwtedr delivered, or any other payment,
obligation or covenant to be fulfilled, observedperformed by either party pursuant to this Agreenoe any other document, instrument or
agreement contemplated hereunder, required to ounsite the transactions contemplated hereunder wegldre an Affiliate of such party to
do such action or thing, or execute and delivehslacument, instrument or other agreement, onffulfbserve or perform such other payment,
obligation or covenant, each of the parties covemnand agrees to cause its Affiliate(s), as appl&ao do all such actions or things, execute
and deliver all such documents, instruments andratgreements and to fulfill, observe and perfolirauech payments, obligations and
covenants.

5.13 Books and Records

(a) Purchaser agrees that, to the greatesttepossible, it shall provide Barrick and its desited representatives with access to any Books
and Records and other information relating to tbesideration Royalties that Barrick may reasonabfyuest from time to time from the date
hereof up to the Closing Date and that at the @tpgishall deliver to Barrick all
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such Books and Records and other information rejath the Consideration Royalties (other than maticorrespondence, notes, written
information, data and other documents provideduielraser by Barrick, its Affiliates or their pre@ssors in interest).

(b) From the date hereof until the date thatd months after the Closing Date, Barrick shadivige (i) to Purchaser certain additional Bo
and Records relating to the Purchased Royaltiegifael by Barrick and (ii) to Purchaser and itsid@ated representatives reasonable access
that Purchaser may reasonably request from tinieneoto any Books and Records relating to the Pasell Royalties in the possession or
control of Barrick (other than TPPR Royalties theg not transferred to Purchaser), and (after tbsii@ Date) Barrick shall provide to
Purchaser copies (or originals to the extent theyirathe possession or control of Barrick and eaably available) of such Books and Records
physically identified by Purchaser or its desigdatepresentatives during any access visit, in eask subject to any continuing confidentiality
obligations then applicable to Barrick or any sfAtffiliates to any third party as disclosed on &dhile N.

(c) Purchaser and its Affiliates will retaith Books and Records provided by Barrick and itfilisftes, and provide Barrick and its
designated representatives with access to anyBowcks and Records that Barrick may reasonably stcfuam time to time for the purposes of
investigating, responding to or defending againgt@laim or any Liability alleged to have been ia¢al by Barrick in respect of any Purcha
Royalty.

5.14 Transfer of Certain TPPR Royalties

(a) The parties acknowledge and agree thaicéordance with the terms and conditions of tigse&ment, those TPPR Royalties in respect
of which Third Party Purchase Rights are exercaatithe TPPR Royalty is transferred to a thirdypsinall not be transferred to Purchaser.

(b) Notwithstanding any other provision ofsiligreement, neither Barrick nor any of its Affiéa shall be under any obligation to transfi
Purchaser any TPPR Royalty in respect of whichafi@icable Third Party Purchase Rights have beercesed and such TPPR Royalty has
been transferred to a third party and neither Blamr any of its Affiliates shall be under anyightion to take any action in connection with
the transfer of any such TPPR Royalty to Purchaselyding obtaining any Third Party Consent inpes of such a transfer of such TPPR
Royalty to Purchaser.

(c) Notwithstanding any other provision ofsiligreement, neither Purchaser nor any of its iaféis shall take any action to transfer or
facilitate the transfer of any TPPR Royalty to Puaser, including providing any notice to any Opearatintil such time as the applicable Third
Party Purchase Rights are waived or have lapsadeastherwise terminated.
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ARTICLE 6
CONDITIONS OF CLOSING

6.1 Conditions of Closing in Favour of Barrick

The obligation of Barrick to complete tin@nsactions contemplated by this Agreement igestibo each of the following conditions for
the exclusive benefit of Barrick, being fulfilled performed at or prior to the Closing Date:

(a) Representations and Warranties. The representations and warranties of Purchasgained in this Agreement (including t
representations and warranties contained in Sex8dhand 3.2) shall be true and correct in allemiatrespects on and as of the
Closing Date (other than the representations andawties which are qualified with reference to miateey, which representations and
warranties shall be true and correct in all respeatand as of the Closing Date) with the sameefard effect as though such
representations and warranties had been made asasfdthe Closing Dat:

(b) Covenants. All of the terms, covenants, obligations and dgtods of this Agreement to be performed, obsermedomplied with by
Purchaser on or before the Closing Date shall baes duly performed, observed or complied with bycRaser

(c) No Orders or Proceedings. No injunction or restraining order or other demis ruling or order of any Governmental Authority
competent jurisdiction being in effect which pratsbrestrains, materially limits or imposes matkdadverse conditions on, the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement analction or proceeding having been instituted or ieing pending or having been
threatened and not resolved before any such GowartainAuthority to restrain, prohibit, materialiyniit or impose material adverse
conditions on such contemplated transacti

(d) Certificate of Purchaser. Purchaser shall have delivered to Barrick afiegite of Purchaser dated the Closing Date, exdduyean
authorized senior officer of Purchaser, certifyihgt the representations and warranties made 3hBser in this Agreement are true
and correct in all material respects as at thei@joBate (other than the representations and waesawhich are qualified with
reference to materiality, which representations\aadanties shall be certified to be true and atrireall respects as at the Closing
Date) and that all terms, covenants, obligatiorssa@mditions to be observed, performed or comphigd by Purchaser on or before
the Closing Date pursuant to the terms of this Agrent have been duly observed, performed or cothpligh by Purchase

(e) Royalty Assignment Agreement:. In respect of each of the Transferable Royalfeschaser shall have delivered to Barrick a duly
executed Royalty Assignment Agreement (in the applie form);
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(f) Assignment of Consideration Royaltie:. In respect of each of the Consideration Royalffeschaser shall have delivered to Barrii
duly executed original of each of the documentscaiéd hereto as Schedule

(g) Encumbrances. In respect of each of the Consideration Royalteschaser shall have obtained a full dischargeralease of all
Encumbrances identified to be removed on Schedumd/ishall deliver evidence satisfactory to Barraiiting reasonably, of such
discharge and release; ¢

(h) Delivery of Other Documents. Purchaser shall have delivered all other neceseamnsfers, assignments and other documentation in
form and substance agreed to by the parties, actagpnably, required to transfer the Considerakioyalties, including the
Consideration Royalty Agreements, to Barrick odiiliate thereof as contemplated pursuant to thigeement

In the event that any of the foregoingditions is not performed, fulfilled or compliedtviat or before the Closing Date, Barrick may
terminate this Agreement by written notice to Passr, in which event, subject to Section 11.16, Agreement shall be terminated, Barrick
shall be released from all obligations under thigement and Purchaser will also be so releasesdsifi) Purchaser was reasonably capak
causing such condition or conditions to be fulfiller (ii) Purchaser has breached any of its cousnamobligations in or under this Agreement
(in which case of clause (i) or clause (ii) Barrgtiall be entitled to make a Claim for any Lossiag therefrom in accordance with
Section 9.2). The foregoing conditions are forekelusive benefit of Barrick and accordingly Bakrigill be entitled to waive compliance with
any such conditions if it sees fit to do so.

6.2 Conditions of Closing in Favour of Purchaser

The obligation of Purchaser to complégettansactions contemplated by this Agreementhest to each of the following terms and
conditions for the exclusive benefit of Purchabeing fulfilled or performed at or prior to the Glog Date:

(a) Representations and Warranties. The representations and warranties of Barrickained in this Agreement (including the
representations and warranties contained in Sectidhand 4.2, as qualified by Section 4.3) shalirbe and correct in all material
respects on and as of the Closing Date (othertti@nepresentations and warranties which are dge@hfith reference to materiality,
which representations and warranties shall beangecorrect in all respects on and as of the CipBiate) with the same force and
effect as though such representations and warsaméid been made at and as of the Closing |

(b) Covenants.All of the terms, covenants, obligations and cdondg of this Agreement to be performed, observecbanplied with by
Barrick on or before the Closing Date shall haverbduly performed, observed or complied with byrigar

(c) No Orders or Proceedings. No injunction or restraining order or other déis ruling or order of any Governmental Authoritfy
competent jurisdiction being
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effect which prohibits, restrains, materially lisittr imposes material adverse conditions on, #restictions contemplated by t
Agreement and no action or proceeding having bestituted or remaining pending or having been tierged and not resolved before
any such Governmental Authority to restrain, prahibaterially limit or impose material adverse ddions on such contemplated
transactions

(d) Certificate of Barrick. Barrick shall have delivered to Purchaser a cedié of Barrick dated the Closing Date, executedrby
authorized senior officer of Barrick, certifyingattthe representations and warranties made bydRarrithis Agreement are true and
correct in all material respects as at the Clofate (other than the representations and warrawtigsh are qualified with reference
materiality, which representations and warrantiesl e certified to be true and correct in allpests as at the Closing Date) and that
all terms, covenants, obligations and conditionsdmbserved, performed or complied with by Bardokor before the Closing Date
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement have begnabserved, performed or complied with by Barri

(e) Royalty Assignment Agreementc. In respect of each of the Transferable RoyalBesrick shall have delivered to Purchaser a duly
executed Royalty Assignment Agreement (in the applie form) or, in the case of any TransferabledR@s for which a Third Party
Consent has yet to be obtained, an executed décfafeom Barrick that it is holding such Transfela Royalties in trust for Purchas
pursuant to and in accordance with Section

(f) Assignment of Consideration Royaltie:. In respect of each of the Consideration RoyalBssrick shall have delivered to Purchas
duly executed original of each of the documentschttd hereto as Schedule S;

(g) Delivery of Other Documents. Barrick shall have delivered all other necessamgsfers, assignments and other documentati
form and substance agreed to by the parties, aaemgpnably, required to transfer the TransferRolgalties, including the Purchased
Royalty Agreements relating thereto, to Purchasemoatemplated pursuant to this Agreem

In the event that any of the foregoingditions is not performed, fulfilled or compliedtWiat or before the Closing Date, Purchaser may
terminate this Agreement by written notice to Bariin which event, subject to Section 11.10, thigeement shall be terminated, Purchaser
shall be released from all obligations under thige®ement and Barrick will also be so released grig8arrick was reasonably capable of
causing such condition or conditions to be fulllier (ii) Barrick has breached any of its covenamtebligations in or under this Agreement
which case of clause (i) or clause (ii) Purchabatl ©e entitled to make a Claim for any Loss agsherefrom in accordance with Section 9.3).
The foregoing conditions are for the exclusive li¢iwé Purchaser and accordingly Purchaser wilebétled to waive compliance with any
such conditions if it sees fit to do so.
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ARTICLE 7
CLOSING ARRANGEMENTS

7.1 Date and Place of Closing

Subject to Article 6, the closing of thansactions contemplated by this Agreement (t8&%ing”) shall occur on October 1, 2008 or on
such other date as may be mutually agreed upomiimgvby the parties (the Closing Date”). The Closing shall take place in the offices of
Davies Ward Phillips & Vineberg LLP at Suite 44Q0irst Canadian Place, Toronto, Ontario at 8:8@ &Toronto time) or at such other
locations or times as may be agreed upon by thepar

7.2 Purchasets Closing Deliveries

At the Closing, Purchaser shall deliver tollowing to Barrick:
(a) the Purchase Price paid and satisfied in accordaitheSection 2.4(b) herec

(b) certified copies of resolutions of the directordPofrchaser approving the transactions contemplatedis Agreement and tt
execution and delivery of this Agreement and aiutoents, instruments and agreements required éadmited and delivered by
Purchaser pursuant to this Agreement and the peafioce by Purchaser of its rights and obligatioesathnder

(c) in respect of each of the Transferable Royaltitisefothan any Australian Royalties if there is ars&tisfied FIRB Condition and al
Transferable Royalties for which a Third Party Gantshas yet to be obtained), an executed RoyalsjgAment Agreement (in the
applicable form)

(d) in respect of each of the Consideration Royalteduly executed original of each of the documettéched hereto as Schedule

(e) all Books and Records relating to the Considerdiopgalties (other than notices, correspondencesnaetritten information, data au
other documents provided to Purchaser by Barriskffiliates or their predecessors in intere

(f) copies of all Third Party Consents received in emtion with the Consideration Royalti¢

(g) unless there is an Unsatisfied FIRB Conditioriglerce to Barrick acting reasonably that the FIRBi@ition has been satisfied or
fulfilled;

(h) a certificate of Purchaser pursuant to and in ataomre with Section 6.1(d
(i) a FIRPTA certificate in form and substance reashynsdtisfactory to Barrick to the effect that Puaskr and/or each of its Affiliats
that is transferring a Consideration Royalty relgtio property located in the United States isar
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“foreign perso” within the meaning of Section 1445(f)(3) of iinternal Revenue Code of 19¢and

such other transfers, assignments and other daation in form and substance agreed to by thiepagacting reasonably, required to
transfer the Consideration Royalties, including @mnsideration Royalty Agreements, to Barrick orAdifiliate thereof.

7.3 Barrick’s Closing Deliveries

At the Closing Barrick shall deliver tf@lowing to Purchaser:

(a) the Consideration Price paid and satisfied in atamoce with Section 2.4(a) here

(b) in respect of each of the Transferable Royalties)@cuted Royalty Assignment Agreement (in thdiegiple form), or in the case

any Transferable Royalties for which a Third P&btnsent has yet to be obtained, an executed déclafeom Barrick that it is
holding such Purchased Royalties in trust for Paseh pursuant to and in accordance with Sectigrnpbodided that if there is an
Unsatisfied FIRB Condition, no Australian Royaltsll be transferred on the Closing Date or helglist after the Closing Date
except as provided in Section 7.5(

(c) the TPPR Payment Amount for each TPPR Sold Rpyaithout interest) (other than any Australian Rbies if there is an

Unsatisfied FIRB Condition’

(d) in respect of each of the Consideration Royaltediily executed original of each of the documetitehed hereto as Schedule

(e) an update to Schedule Q to this Agreement identifyll of the additional Books and Records provitteBurchaser following the de

()

hereof and prior to the Closing Date (which, foeaer certainty and as provided in Section 4.3,upitlate the Schedule Q attached to
this Agreement after the Closing Date, includingdlh purposes relating to any claim for indemrafion, but will not update
Schedule Q for purposes of determining whetheckhsing conditions in Section 6.2 are satisfiedfthe Closing Date]

copies of any Third Party Consents received imeation with the Transferable Royalties (othenthay Australian Royalties if there
is an Unsatisfied FIRB Conditior

(g) a certificate of Barrick pursuant to and in accai@awith Section 6.2(d

(h) a FIRPTA certificate in form and substance reashynsdtisfactory to Purchaser to the effect thatriBrand/or each of its Affiliate

that is transferring a Purchased Royalty relatongroperty located in the United States is n
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“foreign perso” within the meaning of Section 1445(f)(3) of linternal Revenue Code of 19; and

(i) such other transfers, assignments and other datation in form and substance agreed to by thieepaacting reasonably, required to
transfer the Transferable Royalties (other thanfumtralian Royalties if there is an Unsatisfie@RBICondition), including the
Purchased Royalty Agreements relating theretoutchaser

7.4 Concurrent Delivery

It shall be a condition of the Closingtlall matters of payment and the execution anidelgl of documents by any party to the other
party pursuant to the terms of this Agreement dtmltoncurrent requirements and that nothing wilcbmplete at the Closing until everything
required as a condition precedent to the Closirmghieen paid, executed and delivered, as the cagbena

7.5 PostClosing Deliveries and Payments

(a) From time to time, with respect to TPB&Rstanding Royalties where the applicable ThirdyPRurchase Rights are waived, lapse or
are otherwise terminated on or after the Closinte@subject to Section 7.5(d) in respect of anynstliePR Outstanding Royalties that are
Australian Royalties if the FIRB Transfer Date Ima$ occurred), within 30 days after such waivepskor termination, or on such later date as
may be instructed by Purchaser pursuant to Sebtlin

(i) Barrick shall deliver (or cause to be deliveredPtochaser

(A) an executed Royalty Assignment Agreement (in thiegble form), or in the case of any such TPPRs@uiding Royaltie
for which a Third Party Consent has yet to be ol#dj an executed declaration from Barrick that halding such TPPR
Outstanding Royalties in trust for Purchaser purstmand in accordance with Section ¢

(B) such other transfers, assignments and other dodatitenin form and substance agreed to by thegmrécting reasonabl
required to transfer such TPPR Outstanding Royaltieluding the Purchased Royalty Agreementsimgldhereto, to
Purchaser; an

(C) copies of all Third Party Consents received in @mtion with such TPPR Outstanding Royalties;
(i) Purchaser shall deliver to Barrick an executegaRp Assignment Agreement (in the applicable fomith respect to such TPPR
Outstanding Royalties, other than such TPPR OulstgrRoyalties for which a Third Party Consent pasto be obtainec
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(b) From time to time, with respect to TPPR<Panding Royalties where the applicable ThirdyRurchase Rights are exercised and the
TPPR Royalty is transferred to a third party punéua the applicable Third Party Purchase Rightsioafter the Closing Date (subject to
Section 7.5(d) in respect of any such TPPR Out#tgridoyalties that are Australian Royalties if FI&B Transfer Date has not occurred),
within 30 days after completion of such transfearik shall deliver (or cause to be deliveredptochaser the TPPR Payment Amount for
such TPPR Outstanding Royalty, with interest frbwe €losing Date to the date of payment at Barrick'st of borrowing.

(c) From time to time, with respect to Pura@thRoyalties that are subject to Section 5.4 wherepplicable Third Party Consent is
obtained on or after the Closing Date (subjectdoti®n 7.5(d) in respect of any such Purchased Regdhat are Australian Royalties if the
FIRB Transfer Date has not occurred), within 30giafter such consent:

(i) Barrick shall deliver (or cause to be deliveredptochaser
(A) an executed Royalty Assignment Agreement (in theiegole form) with respect to such Purchased R@s

(B) such other transfers, assignments and other deation in form and substance agreed to by thi@gepagacting reasonably,
required to transfer such Purchased Royaltiesydieg the Purchased Royalty Agreements relatingetbeto Purchaser; ai

(C) copies of all Third Party Consents received in @mtion with such Transferable Royalties;

(i) Purchaser shall deliver to Barrick an executed Rpysssignment Agreement (in the applicable formjhwespect to suc
Purchased Royaltie

(d) Notwithstanding any other provision ofgiigreement, in no circumstances shall any AusinaRoyalties be transferred or held in trust
for Purchaser (or any of its Affiliates) until tRéRB Transfer Date nor will any gross proceeds ftomtransfer of any Australian Royalty to
any third party holding Third Party Purchase Righgaid to Purchaser (or any of its Affiliates}iltine FIRB Transfer Date. Subject to
Section 7.5(e), if there is an Unsatisfied FIRB @itian, within 30 days after receipt by Barrick findPurchaser of evidence to Barrick acting
reasonably of the satisfaction or fulfillment oétRIRB Condition:

(i) Barrick shall deliver (or cause to be deliveredptochaser

(A) an executed Royalty Assignment Agreement (irathi@icable form) with respect to the Australian BRlbigs, other than
Australian Royalties that are subject to a ThirdyPRurchase Right where (l) on or before the FIRBnsfer Date, the Third
Party Purchase Rights have been exercised andusteafian Royalty transferred to a third party @c@dance with such
Third Party Purchase Rights, or (Il) such ThirdtiP&urchase Right
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have not been waived, lapse or otherwise terminaear before the FIRB Transfer Date, which shalblealt with ir
accordance with Section 7.5(a) from and after #fRBFTransfer Date, (the Australian Transferable Royalties”), or in the
case of any such Australian Transferable Royaltiesvhich a Third Party Consent has yet to be ol#dj an executed
declaration from Barrick that it is holding suchgialian Transferable Royalties in trust for Pusgrgoursuant to and in
accordance with Section 5.

(B) such other transfers, assignments and other dodatitenin form and substance agreed to by thegqmrécting reasonabl
required to transfer the Australian Transferablgd®es, including the Purchased Royalty Agreemegltting thereto, to
Purchaser

(C) in respect of any Australian Royalties that afgject to a Third Party Purchase Right where obefore the FIRB Transfer
Date, the Third Party Purchase Rights have beertisgd and the Australian Royalty transferred thial party pursuant to
such Third Party Purchase Rights, the TPPR Payfmount for each Australian Royalty, with interesirh the Closing Dat
to the FIRB Transfer Date at Barr’'s cost of borrowing

(D) all amounts required to be paid on the FIRB TranBfgte pursuant to Section 7.6(
(E) copies of all Third Party Consents received in @mtion with the Australian Transferable Royaltiasgl

(i) Purchaser shall deliver to Barrick an executed Rpysssignment Agreement (in the applicable fornijhwespect to suc
Australian Transferable Royalties, other than stigktralian Transferable Royalties for which a THrarty Consent has yet to be
obtained

(e) If the FIRB Condition is not satisfied the date that is three months after the Closing D&t Australian Royalties shall be transferre
or held in trust for Purchaser, in which case:

(i) the transfers contemplated by Section 7.5(d) stwdlbccur;

(i) within five Business Days of such th-month anniversary of the Closing Date, Barrick kpay to Purchaser in cash t
aggregate amount allocated to the Australian Riggatursuant to Schedule D, plus interest fronQlusing Date to such
payment date at Barri’s cost of borrowing; an

(i) no payments shall be made by Barrick to Purchasesupnt to Section 7.6 in respect of the AustraRagalties, no Liabilities
shall be assumed by Purchaser pursuant to Artitle@&spect of the Australie
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Royalties and no Claims shall be made by Purctinsespect of the Australian Royalti¢

7.6 Payments Received on Purchased Royalties

(a) Subject to Section 7.6(c), the partiegaghat amounts paid in respect of the Purchasgdlfis in respect of, as applicable, production
and/or operations at the underlying Mineral Prapsroccurring on or after the Closing Date (regessllof when such amounts are actually
received) shall be for the account of Purchasemi&aagrees that it will pay (or cause its Affiato pay) to Purchaser any such amounts that
are received by Barrick or its Affiliates, whichymaent shall be made, without interest, from timénee no later than 30 days after receipt of
such amounts by Barrick or its Affiliate.

(b) The parties agree that amounts paid ipeetsof the Purchased Royalties in respect ofpplcable, production and/or operations at the
underlying Mineral Properties occurring prior tet@losing Date (including amounts paid in respéetny underpayments that occurred during
such period that are subsequently identified) (idigas of when such amounts are actually receisfedl) be for the account of Barrick (or its
Affiliate). Purchaser agrees that it will pay torBek (or its Affiliate) any such amounts that aezeived by Purchaser or its Affiliates, which
payment shall be made, without interest, from ttméme no later than 30 days after receipt of saitlounts by Purchaser or its Affiliate.

(c) With respect to the Australian Royaltite parties agree that no payments shall be ma@atrick or any of its Affiliates pursuant to
Section 7.6(a) prior to the FIRB Transfer Date.ilthe FIRB Transfer Date, all amounts paid in exspof the Australian Royalties in respect
of, as applicable, production and/or operatiorth@tunderlying Mineral Properties occurring on fieiathe Closing Date (regardless of when
such amounts are actually received) shall be heBabrick or its Affiliate for the account of Puraber, and shall be paid to Purchaser, without
interest, on or before the later of (i) the FIREafsfer Date, and (ii) 30 days after receipt of sairtiounts by Barrick or its Affiliate.

(d) To the extent that any overpayment occlimerespect of the Purchased Royalties in respfeets applicable, production and/or
operations at the underlying Mineral Propertiesipid the Closing Date, such overpayment shalbb&érrick’s account, and Barrick shall
reimburse Purchaser for any such overpayment textent that the applicable Operator reduces suleseggpayments to Purchaser or its
Affiliate as a result of such historical overpayren

7.7 Payments Received on Consideration Royalties

(a) The parties agree that amounts paid ipeef the Consideration Royalties in respecasfapplicable, production and/or operations at
the underlying Mineral Properties occurring on fieathe Closing Date (regardless of when such ansoare actually received) shall be for the
account of Barrick. Purchaser agrees that it vélf for cause its Affiliate to pay) to Barrick, & Barrick otherwise directs, any such amounts
that are received by Purchaser or its Affiliatebjoli payment shall be made, without interest, ftone to time no later than 30 days after
receipt of such amounts by Purchaser or its Afélia
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(b) The parties agree that amounts paid ipeetsof the Consideration Royalties in respecasfapplicable, production and/or operations at
the underlying Mineral Properties occurring priottiie Closing Date (including amounts paid in resjpé any underpayments that occurred
during such period that are subsequently idenjifieshardless of when such amounts are actualived) shall be for the account of Purch
(or its Affiliate), and Barrick (or its Affiliateshall make such payments, without interest, in etaace with the terms of the applicable
Consideration Royalty Agreement.

(c) To the extent that any overpayment occlimeespect of the Consideration Royalties in eespf, as applicable, production and/or
operations at the underlying Mineral Propertiesipid the Closing Date, such overpayment shalbbéfirchaser’s account, and Purchaser
shall reimburse Barrick for any such overpaymentyptly after receiving notice thereof.

7.8 Further Assurances

Each party to this Agreement covenantsagrees that, from time to time subsequent taléte hereof, such party will, at the request
expense of the requesting party, execute and dellveuch documents, instruments and agreemertsiding all such conveyances, transfers,
consents, assumption documents and other assuramdeko all such other acts and things as the ptivéy hereto, acting reasonably, may
from time to time request be executed or done deioto better evidence or perfect or effectuate@oyision of this Agreement or of any
agreement or other document executed pursuanistéginieement or any of the respective obligatiarierided to be created hereby or thereby.

ARTICLE 8
RESPONSIBILITY FOR OBLIGATIONS AND LIABILITIES

8.1 Assumption and Retention of Liabilities

(a) Assumption and Retention of Liabilities by Purchase

(i) Purchased RoyaltieErom and after the Closing, Purchaser shall assamd be responsible for the satisfaction, disehdtdfillment,
observance, performance and payment of all Ligslivhatsoever in respect of, or arising out ofdvaership of, the Purchased Royalties on
or after the Closing Date and the Purchased Royajtgements on or after the Closing Date (othen tha Barrick Retained Liabilities) except
(x) as may be reasonably necessary for Barriclbseve any Third Party Purchase Right requiremafieach Purchased Royalty Agreement,
(y) Liabilities arising out of the ownership of TRESold Royalties, and (z) Liabilities arising otitlee ownership of TPPR Outstanding
Royalties if the applicable Third Party Purchasgh® are exercised as contemplated by Section)7.5(c

(i) Consideration RoyaltiedAt all times, including from and after the ClogjriPurchaser or its Affiliates shall retain, pay aischarge
as and when due and be responsible for all Ligslitf any, in respect of, or arising out of (xyrership of the Consideration Royalties and
Consideration Royalty Agreements by PurchaseAffiiates or their predecessors in interest ptimthe Closing Date, or (y) ownership of the
Mineral Properties at any time subject to the Caasition Royalties, including any fixtures and

44




improvements situated thereon, by Purchaser, fitighés or their predecessors in interest, andcthrduct by Purchaser, its Affiliates or their
predecessors in interest of any activity or operathereon (the Purchaser Retained Liabilities”).

(b) Assumption and Retention of Liabilities by Barrick:

(i) Purchased Royaltieat all times, including from and after the ClogjrBarrick or its Affiliates shall retain, pay adischarge as and
when due and be responsible for all Liabilitiesrify, in respect of, or arising out of (x) ownepsbf the Purchased Royalties and Purchased
Royalty Agreements by Barrick, its Affiliates orih predecessors in interest prior to the ClosiageDor (y) ownership of the Mineral
Properties at any time subject to the Purchase@lRey, including any fixtures and improvementsaiéed thereon, by Barrick, its Affiliates or
their predecessors in interest, and the condu@dsick, its Affiliates or their predecessors iterrest of any activity or operation thereon (the “
Barrick Retained Liabilities ).

(ii) Consideration Royalties=rom and after the Closing, Barrick shall assame be responsible for the satisfaction, discharge,
fulfilment, observance, performance and paymerdlofiabilities whatsoever in respect of, or angiout of the ownership of, the
Consideration Royalties on or after the ClosingeDaid the Consideration Royalty Agreements onter #ie Closing Date (other than the
Purchaser Retained Liabilities).

8.2 Payment of Taxes on Sale and Transfer

Purchaser shall be responsible for aadl pay when due any excise taxes (goods and ssrtéxes), stamp duties and similar taxes (but
not income taxes of Barrick) and any registratieasf payable in respect of the sale and transthed?urchased Royalties to Purchaser. Ba
shall be responsible for and shall pay when dueexcise taxes (goods and services taxes), stangsdutd similar taxes (but not income taxes
of Purchaser) and any registration fees payablespect of the sale and transfer of the Consider&boyalties to Barrick.

ARTICLE 9
SURVIVAL OF REPRESENTATIONS AND INDEMNIFICATION

9.1 Survival

The representations, warranties, covenamd obligations of (i) Purchaser in or under &gseement and in or under any documents,
instruments and agreements delivered pursuantg@treement (including the representations andawmies set forth in the certificate
delivered pursuant to Section 6.1(d)), and (ii)rig&rin or under this Agreement and in or under doguments, instruments and agreements
delivered pursuant to this Agreement (includingfigresentations and warranties set forth in thificate delivered pursuant to Section 6.2
(d)), shall survive the Closing and shall contitmuéull force and effect for a period of eighteelomths from the Closing Date, except that:

(a) such representations, warranties, covenants aightibhs shall not terminate with respect to aeynitas to which an Indemnifie
Party has, prior to th
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(b)

expiration of such period, previously made a Clagainst the Indemnifying Party by delivering writteotice in accordance wi
Section 9.7; an

the covenants and obligations of Purchaser anddRaas applicable, in or under each of Sectioiis 5.3(c), 5.3(d), 5.4, 5.7, 5.13(c),
7.5,7.6, 7.7 and 7.8 and pursuant to Article 8 artitle 9 of this Agreement shall survive the Ghegsand shall continue in full force
and effect until such covenants and obligationehazeen performed or satisfied in accordance wihehms thereo

9.2 Indemnification by Purchaser

Subject to Section 9.4, Purchaser agregslemnify and save harmless Barrick from andregall Losses suffered or incurred by
Barrick or its Affiliates as a result of or arisidgectly or indirectly out of or in connection \wit

@)

(b)

(©)

(@)

any breach by Purchaser or any misrepresentatigraocuracy of any representation or warranty atRaser contained in th
Agreement or in any document, instrument or agregmelivered pursuant hereto (including the cexdife delivered pursuant to
Section 6.1(d)) (provided that Purchaser shalb@otequired to indemnify or save harmless Barmictespect of any breach or
inaccuracy of any representation or warranty unBessick shall have provided notice to Purchasexdoordance with Section 9.7 on
or prior to the expiration of the applicable timeripd related to such representation and warra

any breach or non-performance by Purchaser otamgnant or obligation to be performed by Purchagech is contained in this
Agreement or in any document, instrument or agregmelivered pursuant hereto (provided that Purehsisall not be required to
indemnify or save harmless Barrick in respect of lreach or nomperformance of any covenant or obligation unlessiBashall hav
provided notice to Purchaser in accordance withi&@e®.7 on or prior to the expiration of any apphle time period related to such
covenant or obligation

all actions taken or not taken by Barrick or itdiketes with respect to any Third Party Purchasghi® that are not Independe

Actions (regardless of whether such Losses aremadfor incurred prior to or after the time that TTPPR Royalty is transferred to
Purchaser or its Affiliate or to another Personth@scase may be, and regardless of whether sussekare suffered or incurred prior
to or after the time that Barrick takes any Indefet Action) and for purposes of greater certaiRtyrchaser shall not be obligated to
indemnify Barrick for Losses suffered or incurrgdBarrick or its Affiliates as a result of or angi directly or indirectly out of or in
connection with actions taken or not taken by B#rar its Affiliates that were Independent Actio

any action taken or not taken at or after the @ipén respect of any Purchased Royalties, Purchidegdlty Agreements or Sp
Contract held, in whole or in part, for the benefiPurchaser pursuant to Section 5.4 of this Ages#, othel
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than (i) any action taken or not taken at or atterClosing by Barrick or its Affiliates in respegftany Split Contract pursuant
Section 5.4(b) in respect of ongoing rights andgattions of Barrick or its Affiliates that are nelated to a Purchased Royalty, (ii) i
action taken or not taken that conflicts with dtregs given to Barrick by Purchaser, which diresti@o not conflict with the terms of
the applicable Purchased Royalty, Purchased Ropgitgement or Split Contract, or (iii) Losses stéfi or incurred by Purchaser or
its Affiliates as a direct result of the gross ngghce or wilful misconduct of Barrick or its Affites; anc

(e) any failure of Purchaser or its Affiliates to perfoor pay any of the Liabilities referred to in 8en 8.1(a) and for which Purchaser
its Affiliates is responsible in this Agreeme

9.3 Indemnification by Barrick

Subject to Sections 9.4 and 9.5, Baraigkees to indemnify and save harmless Purchaserdmal against all Losses suffered or incurred
by Purchaser or its Affiliates as a result of dsiag directly or indirectly out of or in connectiavith:

(a) any breach by Barrick or any misrepresentatiomaccuracy of any representation or warranty afiBla contained in this Agreement
or in any document, instrument or agreement dadivguursuant hereto (including the representatiodsaarranties set forth in the
certificate delivered pursuant to Section 6.2(gypyided that Barrick shall not be required to imehéfy or save harmless Purchaser in
respect of any breach or inaccuracy of any reptaten or warranty unless Purchaser shall haveigeavnotice to Barrick in
accordance with Section 9.7 on or prior to the etjuin of the applicable time period related totstepresentation and warrant

(b) any breach or nc-performance by Barrick of any covenant or obligatio be performed by Barrick which is containedhiis
Agreement or in any document, instrument or agreg¢melivered pursuant hereto (provided that Barsic&ll not be required to
indemnify or save harmless Purchaser in respezhybreach or non-performance of any covenant ligation unless Purchaser shall
have provided notice to Barrick in accordance V@#ttion 9.7 on or prior to the expiration of anplagable time period related to st
covenant or obligation); ar

(c) any failure of Barrick or its Affiliates to perforor pay any of the Liabilities referred to in Secti8.1(b) and for which Barrick or i
Affiliates is responsible in this Agreeme
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9.4 Limitation on Claims for Indemnification

(a) Within the applicable time period as specified actton 9.1

(i) Barrick shall be entitled to make a Claim againstcRaser in respect of the breach, misrepresentaticnaccuracy of an
warranty or representation or the breach or nofepaance of any covenant or obligation of Purchaigsegach case in or under
this Agreement or in or under any document, insaminor agreement delivered pursuant to this Agreeiiecluding the
representations and warranties set forth in théficate delivered pursuant to Section 6.1(d)) yafl

(A) written notice of any such Claim is given by orlmehalf of Barrick to Purchaser in accordance wiht®n 9.7,

(B) the amount of the Claim, excluding interest ands;exceeds the greater of (x) $250,000, and (ypb#e amount of th
Consideration Price allocated to the Considerdfogalty to which the Claim relates in Schedule @&he anc

(C) the aggregate amount of all indemnification Ckaioy Barrick pursuant to this Agreement meetingdtiteria in clause
(A) and clause (B) above, excluding interest anstsaexceeds $1,000,0(

provided that Purchaser’s liability to Barrick dhzé for the entire aggregate amount of such Chaich not only for amounts in
excess of the said minimum amount in clause (Byalmr said minimum aggregate amount in clause §Gy@, and the total
liability, including interest and costs, of Purcbam respect of all indemnification Claims pursutanthis Agreement shall not
exceed the Consideration Price.

(i) Purchaser shall be entitled to make a Claim ag&arrick in respect of the breach, misrepresimtatr inaccuracy of any
warranty or representation or the breach or nofepaance of any covenant or obligation of Barrickeach case in or under this
Agreement or in or under any document, instrumemtgoeement delivered pursuant to this Agreementyding the
representations and warranties set forth in théficate delivered pursuant to Section 6.2(d)) yafl

(A) written notice of any such Claim is given by orlmehalf of Purchaser to Barrick in accordance wiht®n 9.7;
(B) the amount of the Claim, excluding interest aosts, exceeds the greater of (x) $250,000, an8%ydf the amount of the
Purchase Price allocated to the Purchased Royaithich the Claim relates in Schedule D hereto;
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(C) the aggregate amount of all indemnification ClabgysPurchaser pursuant to this Agreement meetingritexia in claust
(A) and clause (B) above, excluding interest arsts;aexceeds $1,000,0(

provided that Barrick’s liability to Purchaser dha¢ for the entire aggregate amount of such Chaiich not only for amounts in
excess of the said minimum amount in clause (Byalmw said minimum aggregate amount in clause @y@, and (x) the total
liability, including interest and costs, of Barrigkrespect of all indemnification Claims relatittgga particular Purchased Royalty
shall not exceed the amount of the Purchase Plimsated to such Purchased Royalty in SchedulerBtbgand (y) in no event
shall the aggregate liability of Barrick in respetgll indemnification Claims pursuant to this &gment, including interest and
costs, exceed the amount of the Purchase Pricegesunts paid to Purchaser pursuant to Sectigo)/Section 7.5(b) and
Section 7.5(e)).

(b) For greater certainty, the limitations d#sed in Section 9.4(a) shall not apply to ClafimsLosses described in Sections 9.2(c), 9.2(d),
9.2(e) or 9.3(c).

9.5 Barrick Buy-Back Option

(a) Notwithstanding any other provision ofstiigreement, in the event Purchaser notifies Banfany Claim for indemnification in
respect of any Purchased Royalty, Barrick shalktthe right, at its sole election and in lieu afaleing such Claim (and any other outstanding
Claims in respect of such Purchased Royalty) wittcRaser (or its Affiliate(s)) or indemnifying Ptnaser (or its Affiliate(s)) for any Losses
suffered in respect of such Claim, to repurchasé furchased Royalty for an amount equal to theuatnaf the Purchase Price allocated tc
Purchased Royalty in Schedule D Ié3sny amounts paid to Purchaser (or any Affilititereof) in respect of any other Claims brought in
respect of such Purchased Royalty and (ii) any amsoeceived by Purchaser (or any Affiliate theyéofrespect of such Purchased Royalty in
respect of, as applicable, production and/or operatat the underlying Mineral Properties occurramgor after the Closing Date.

(b) In the event Barrick elects to exerciseight pursuant to Section 9.5(a), Barrick sheallwkr to Purchaser written notice of such election
at any time before the Claim is fully and finalgsolved (the Buy-Back Notice”). Within 30 days of receipt of such Buy-Back Nuj
Purchaser (or its Affiliate) shall deliver to Bankia duly executed Royalty Assignment Agreementh@applicable form) transferring such
Purchased Royalty to Barrick (or its designatedliafe), together with such other documents orrimsients as may be necessary or desirat
effect, record or register such transfer, alondnwaitduly executed release, in form and substanisfesdory to Barrick, acting reasonably,
releasing and discharging Barrick and its Affilmfeom and against any and all Claims whatsoevegspect of such Purchased Royalty. As a
condition to any transfer set forth in this Sect®&(b), Barrick and its designated Affiliate shetlecute and deliver to Purchaser (or its
Affiliate) an assumption agreement, in form andssabce satisfactory to Purchaser, acting reasonatdyiming any Third Party Claim
whatsoever in respect of such Purchased Royalty.
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(c) If Purchaser or any of its Affiliates tsdars, directly or indirectly, all or any portiofi@ Purchased Royalty, then (i) all outstanding
Claims made by Purchaser in respect of such PurdiReyalty shall automatically and without any fiert action by any Person terminate and
be fully and finally released and Barrick shall betrequired to make any payment to Purchaseryoter Person in respect of any such
Claim, (ii) Purchaser shall not be entitled to makg Claims in respect of such Purchased Royatity (&) the repurchase right contained in
this Section 9.5 shall terminate in respect of Raithased Royalty.

(d) Section 9.5(c) shall not apply to (i) artsfer of a Purchased Royalty from Purchaser oobite Affiliates to Purchaser or one of its
Affiliates (but Section 9.5(c) shall apply to amgrisfer of any direct or indirect interest in arfiliéfte of Purchaser that holds an interest in a
Purchased Royalty where such transfer resultsdh sifiliate no longer being an Affiliate of Purcéer or Purchaser no longer having a
majority of the economic interest in such Affilixtéi) any merger of Purchaser with or into anfi@tentity, any consolidation of Purchaser
with or into any other entity, or any sale of allsmbstantially all of the assets of Purchase(iiipany grant of a security interest in, or anlien
any Purchased Royalty (but Section 9.5(c) shallyafgpany subsequent transfer of a Purchased Rot@the holder of such security interes
lien).

9.6 No Special Damages

IN NO EVENT SHALL EITHER PARTY BE LIABLEFOR ANY INDIRECT, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, PUNITIVE, OR
EXEMPLARY OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, INCLUDING ANY UIABILITY RELATING TO LOSS OF PROFIT, LOSS OF
GOODWILL OR LOSS OF OPPORTUNITY OR OTHER SIMILAR DMAGES ARISING OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY OTHER
DOCUMENT, INSTRUMENT OR AGREEMENT DELIVERED PURSUANTO THIS AGREEMENT.

9.7 Notice of Claim

In the event that a party (thentlemnified Party ") shall become aware of any Proceeding or othdtenéa “Claim ) in respect of
which the other party (thelhdemnifying Party ") agreed to indemnify the Indemnified Party pursiu@ this Agreement, the Indemnified
Party shall promptly give written notice thereothe Indemnifying Party. Such notice shall speuifyether the Claim arises as a result of a
claim by a third party Person (arhird Party ") against the Indemnified Party (arhird Party Claim ") or whether the Claim does not so
arise (a “Direct Claim "), and shall also specify with reasonable particyldtit the extent that the information is availalite) factual basis fi
the Claim and the amount of the Claim, if known.

If, through the fault of the Indemnifi€arty, the Indemnifying Party does not receiveasotif any Claim in time to contest effectively
the determination of any liability susceptible efitg contested, the Indemnifying Party shall bétledtto set off against the amount claimec
the Indemnified Party the amount of any Lossesrireliby the Indemnifying Party resulting from tmelémnified Party’s failure to give such
notice on a timely basis.
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9.8 Direct Claims

With respect to any Direct Claim, followi receipt of notice from the Indemnified Partytiod Claim, the Indemnifying Party shall have
60 days to make such investigation of the Clains a®nsidered necessary or desirable. For the parpbsuch investigation, the Indemnified
Party shall make available to the Indemnifying Pé#ne information relied upon by the Indemnifiedtiydo substantiate the Claim, together
with all such other information as the IndemnifyiRgrty may reasonably request. If both partieseagt®r prior to the expiration of such 60-
day period (or any mutually agreed upon extendienetof) to the validity and amount of such Claihg thdemnifying Party shall, subject to
Section 9.4, immediately pay to the IndemnifiedtyP#re full agreed upon amount of the Claim.

9.9 Third Party Claims

With respect to any Third Party Clainréspect of which, subject to Section 9.4, the Intiéying Party is or may be obligated under or
arising out of this Agreement to indemnify, pay @®es to or otherwise compensate the Indemnifiety Rlae following provisions shall app

The Indemnified Party shall promptly givatten notice to the Indemnifying Party of anyiifthParty Claim in respect of which the
Indemnified Party intends to claim for indemnificet against the Indemnifying Party. The IndemnifyParty shall, at its own expense, ass
control of the negotiation, settlement and defefsrich Third Party Claim. The Indemnified Partalslo-operate with the Indemnifying Pa
in respect of such Third Party Claim and the Indiéyimg Party shall reimburse the Indemnified Péddyall the Indemnified Partg’ reasonabl
out-of-pocket expenses as a result of the IndenmgfiPartys assumption of control of such Third Party Claimd arising from the Indemnifie
Party’s co-operation.

The Indemnified Party shall have the rigghparticipate in the negotiation, settlement datense of such Third Party Claim at its own
expense, provided that the fees and disbursemétiie tndemnified Party’s counsel shall be paidtuy Indemnifying Party if the named
parties to any action or proceeding include bo¢hltidemnifying Party and the Indemnified Party #melrepresentation of both of them by the
same counsel would be inappropriate due to theabotypotential differing interests between thencsas the availability of different
defences), and the Indemnified Party will havertgbt to disagree on reasonable grounds with tlezgen and retention of counsel by the
Indemnifying Party, in which case counsel satigfecto the Indemnifying Party and the Indemnifieattly shall be retained by the
Indemnifying Party. If the Indemnifying Party faiis defend any Third Party Claim within a reasordbhe, the Indemnified Party shall be
entitled to assume control of the Third Party Claihthe expense of the Indemnifying Party and tideinnifying Party shall be bound by the
results obtained by the Indemnified Party with eedfio such Third Party Claim.

The following provisions shall also applith respect to Third Party Claims:
(&) Inthe event that any Third Party Claim is ofadune such that the Indemnified Party is legallyfmbor required by applicable Law to
make a payment to al
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(b)

(€)

(@)

()

()

(9)

Third Party with respect to such Third Party Clddefore the completion of settlement negotiationeetated legal proceedincg
including the posting of any security to stay anggess of execution or judgment, the Indemnifyiagty’shall be obligated to make
such payment or post security therefor on behatfiefindemnified Party. If the Indemnifying Pargil$ to do so, the Indemnified
Party may make such payment or post security tbeesfd the Indemnifying Party shall, forthwith afteemand by the Indemnified
Party, reimburse the Indemnified Party for any spapment or cause the security to be replacedeladsed. If the amount of any
liability of the Indemnified Party under the ThilRérty Claim in respect of which such a payment made, as finally determined, is
less than the amount which was paid by the IndegrmgjfParty, the Indemnified Party shall, forthwiétfier receipt of the difference
from the Third Party, pay the amount of such défere to the Indemnifying Pari

Except in the circumstance contemplated by Se&i®(a) above, and unless the Indemnifying Partg faiassume control of tt
negotiation, settlement and defense of any ThirtlyRalaim, the Indemnified Party shall not negaiaettle, compromise or pay any
Third Party Claim except with the prior written samt of the Indemnifying Party (which consent shall be unreasonably withhelt

The Indemnifying Party shall not settle any ThHaarty Claim for an amount in excess of the Indéyimmy Party’s maximum
indemnification obligation in respect thereof pwastito this Article 9 without the prior written cgent of the Indemnified Party (not to
be unreasonably withheld or delaye

The Indemnifying Party shall not settle any ThHiarty Claim for an amount in equal to or less ttenindemnifying Partg maximur
indemnification obligation in respect thereof puastto this Article 9 without the prior written ceent of the Indemnified Party (not to
be unreasonably withheld or delayed); provided, éx@w, that the liability of the Indemnifying Paityrespect of such Third Party
Claim shall be limited to the proposed settlemendant if any such consent is not obtained for aason

The Indemnified Party shall not permit any rightappeal in respect of any Third Party Claim to feate without giving the
Indemnifying Party notice thereof and an opportutotcontest such Third Party Clai

The Indemnified Party and the Indemnifying Paittwall co-operate fully with each other with respecthird Party Claims, shall keep
each other fully advised with respect thereto (idaig supplying copies of all relevant documentagioomptly as it becomes
available) and shall each designate a senior offit® will keep himself or herself informed abouatlebe prepared to discuss the Tl
Party Claim with his or her counterpart and witluesel at all reasonable tim¢

Notwithstanding the above provisions of this Set8®, the Indemnifying Party shall not settle dimrd Party Claim or conduct ar
related legal o
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administrative proceeding in a manner which woirldhe opinion of the Indemnified Party, actinggeaably, have a material adve
impact on the Indemnified Pari

The provisions of this Section 9.9 aterued to set out the procedures to be followel wmspect to a Third Party Claim and, provided
the Indemnified Party follows such procedures Imsdterial respects, nothing contained in this ac®.9 shall derogate from the
Indemnifying Party’s obligations to indemnify thedemnified Party.

9.10 Exclusivity

The provisions of this Article 9 shallpypto any Claim for breach of any covenant, repngéation, warranty or other provision of this
Agreement or any agreement, certificate or otheudeent delivered pursuant hereto (other than andlai specific performance, injunctive
relief or other equitable remedies) with the intdvat all such Claims shall be subject to the ktiiins and other provisions contained in this
Article 9, except in the case of fraud or wilfulsoonduct by any party.

ARTICLE 10
[INTENTIONALLY OMITTED.]

ARTICLE 11
MISCELLANEOUS

11.1 Legal and Other Fees and Expenses

Unless otherwise specifically provideddie, the parties will pay their respective legacounting and other professional fees and
expenses incurred by each of them in connectio tli# negotiation and settlement of this Agreemtetcompletion of the Transaction and
other matters pertaining hereto.

11.2 Notices

(a) Any notice, request, demand or ottenmunication required or permitted to be giverahy party to another pursuant to this
Agreement shall be in writing and shall be delideireperson, transmitted by facsimile, sent byatdk overnight courier for next Business Day
delivery or sent by prepaid registered mail, adskdsas follows:

(i) if to Barrick:

Barrick Gold Corporation

Brookfield Place, TD Canada Trust Tower
Suite 3700, 161 Bay Street

Toronto, ON M5J 2S1

Attention: General Counsel
Facsimile: (416) 861-9717
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(i) if to Purchaser

Royal Gold, Inc.
1660 Wynkoop Street, Suite 1000
Denver, CO 80202

Attention: President and Chief Executive CHfi
Facsimile: (303) 595-9385

with a copy to:

Hogan & Hartson L.L.P.

One Tabor Center

1200 Seventeenth Street, Suite 1500
Denver, CO 80202

Attention: Paul Hilton, Esq.
Facsimile: (303) 899-7333

(b) Any such notice or other communicationlishea deemed to have been given and received odah@n which it was personally delive
or transmitted (or, if such day is not a Businesy Dr if delivery or transmission is made on a Bass Day after 5:00 p.m. at the place of
receipt, then on the next following Business D#ydent by reliable overnight courier for next Busss Day delivery, on the next Business Day
following the date of deposit, or, if mailed, oretthird Business Day following the date of mailipgovided, however, that if at the time of
mailing or within three Business Days thereafteréhis or occurs a labour dispute or other evemtiwimight reasonably be expected to disrupt
the delivery of documents by mail, any notice dreostcommunication hereunder shall be deliveredamsimitted by means of recorded
electronic communication as aforesaid.

Either party may at any time change dtdrass for service from time to time by giving wetto the other party in accordance with this
Section 11.2.

11.3 Time of the Essence

Time shall be of the essence of this Agrent.

11.4 Brokers Fees and Commissions

Each of the parties acknowledges, aguadgepresents and warrants to the other partytthas not engaged any broker, agent or other
intermediary to act on its behalf on connectiorhwiite transactions contemplated by this Agreemeatlaat it is not aware of any current or
possible future claim for any brokerage, agencfimater’s fee or commission in connection with thentsactions contemplated by this
Agreement and that if any such claim should atiseugh, or under, or by virtue of any action takgrany party, such party shall indemnify
and hold harmless the others in respect thereof.
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11.5 Entire Agreement

This Agreement, together with each RgyAksignment Agreement, constitutes the entireergent between Barrick and Purchaser
pertaining to the subject matter hereof and sugessall prior agreements, undertakings, understgsdnegotiations and discussions, whether
oral or written, of Barrick and Purchaser, and ¢hare no representations, warranties, conditiangrants, obligations, agreements or other
provisions, express or implied, collateral, statytor otherwise, between Barrick and Purchaser gba@e expressly set forth in this Agreement.

11.6 Confidentiality; Public Disclosure

(a) This Agreement and the contents hereaf gy instruments or agreements in implementatiahie Agreement, shall be maintained in
confidence by the parties and not be disclosedymther Person (except as may be required bycgipé Law or securities regulatory
authority or pursuant to any royalty agreementtied only upon notice by the disclosing party ® dther party) without the prior written
approval of the other party, which shall not beeasionably withheld.

(b) Notwithstanding Section 11.6(a), eachyahall be entitled to disclose the existence isf fgreement and the contents hereof, and the
existence and contents of any instruments or ageatnin implementation of this Agreement, to anfiliéte of such party and to such party’s
(or its Affiliates’) respective directors, officeramployees, agents and advisors who have a ndewto such information in order to
consummate the transactions contemplated undeAtjiesement, provided that such Persons agree  %szh information confidential in
accordance with the obligations set forth in Secfié.6(a). Each party agrees that it shall remespansible for any breach of or default of the
confidentiality obligations of Section 11.6(a) hyyeof its Affiliates or by its or any of its Affilites’ respective directors, officers, employees,
agents or advisors.

(c) The content of any public disclosure agzrelease respecting this Agreement or the taosa contemplated hereby shall be approved
by both parties hereto prior to the making of spahlic disclosure or press release, which apprshall not be unreasonably withheld by the
party not subject to such disclosure requirememts/ided that this Section 11.6 is subject alwayalt disclosure obligations of Barrick and
Purchaser under applicable securities laws.

(d) Notwithstanding any other provision ofstifigreement, the parties hereby agree that inwbetehat this Agreement or any related
agreement, instrument or document is made avaitalday third party, including without limitatiohe filing of any such document with any
securities regulatory authorities, the PurchaseePAilocation shall not be filed, provided, howeteat if the filing of the Purchase Price
Allocation is required by any securities regulatagthority the party making such filing shall (§ek confidential treatment with respect to <
Purchase Price Allocation, (ii) keep the otheryagprised of all actions taken or to be taken watpect to any application or filing seeking
such confidential treatment, and (iii) provide titber party with a reasonable opportunity to revéewl comment on any such application or
filing in advance of the same.
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11.7 Enurement and Assignment

This Agreement shall enure to the berwdfénd shall be binding on and enforceable byptirdies and, where the context so permits,
respective successors and permitted assigns. Rercimay assign all or any part of its rights, liéies and obligations under this Agreement,
including in respect of the Purchased Royaltiesny Affiliate, provided, however, that any sucBigament shall not relieve Purchaser from
any of its obligations or liabilities hereunder.rBek may assign all or any part of its rightspiigties and obligations under this Agreement,
including in respect of the Consideration Royalties the Purchase Price, to any Affiliate, providealvever, that any such assignment shall
not relieve Barrick from any of its obligationsl@bilities hereunder.

11.8 Severability

Each of the provisions contained in thiseement is distinct and severable and a detetiomaf illegality, invalidity or unenforceabilii
of any such provision or part hereof by a court@hpetent jurisdiction shall not affect the valjdir enforceability of any other provision
hereof, unless as a result of such determinatisnAreement would fail in its essential purposes.

11.9 Waiver and Amendment

Except as expressly provided in this Agnent, no amendment or waiver of any provisiorhi#f Agreement shall be binding on either
party unless consented to by such party in wrisipgcifically referencing the provision so amendedaived. No waiver of any provision, or
any portion of any provision, of this Agreementlwibnstitute a waiver of any other part of the ps@mn or any other provision of this
Agreement nor a continuing waiver unless otherwigaressly provided.

11.10 Surviving Provisions on Termination

Notwithstanding any other provisionstistAgreement, if this Agreement is terminated, gha&visions of Section 1.7, Article 9 and
Sections 11.1, 11.2, 11.4 and 11.6 (subject tatiamy limitations referred to therein) shall survisech termination and remain in full force and
effect, along with any other provisions of this Agment which expressly or by their nature suniigetermination hereof.
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11.11 No Third Party Rights

Nothing in this Agreement shall be comstr as giving any Person other than the partidsigdAgreement any legal or equitable right,
remedy or claim under or in respect of this Agreetne

11.12 Counterparts; Facsimiles

This Agreement may be executed in separ@interparts and by facsimile counterparts, eéethich shall constitute an original and alll
of which, taken together shall constitute one dedsame instrument.

[Remainder of page deliberately left blank.]
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11.1% Enurement
This Agreement will enure to the benefiand will be binding upon the parties and thegpective successors and permitted assigns.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have exeduhis Agreement as of the day and year firsvalveritten.

BARRICK GOLD CORPORATION

by /s/Alex Davidson
Name: Alex Davidson
Title: Executive Vice President and
Corporate Developmer

/s/ Brad L. Doores

Name: Brad L. Doores

Title:  Vice President and Assistant
General Counse

ROYAL GOLD, INC.

by /s/ Tony Jensen
Name: Tony Jenser
Title: President and Chief Executive
Officer
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Exhibit 10.4¢

Mr Mike Scott, President

MinEx Projects (Proprietary) Limited
Dunkeld Court

16 North Road

Dunkeld West

Johannesburg

2196

Republic of South Africa

Fax: (011) 880 048 18 August 200

Dear Mr Scott

LETTER OF INTENT : ROYAL GOLD, INC. (“Royal Gold”) AND MINEX PROJECTS (PROPRIETARY) LIMITED
(“MinEx")

1. On 3 April 2008 Royal Gold and MinEx entered inttetier of intent, as amended by the letter agregnaated 30 June 2008 (together
“Letter of Intent”), in terms of which Royal Goldfered to purchase all of MinEX’s right, title aimderest in and to the following two
royalty's at Lonmin Platinum Limite’s Limpopo Mine .

1.1 the 0.704% gross receipts royalty on the Messiasd@areg” Messina Royalt”); and
1.2 the 1.5% gross receipts royalty on the Dwaalkopdesrea“ Dwaalkop Royalt”).

2. Section X (ACCEPTANCE OF THE OFFER) of thetkebf Intent provides that the Letter of Intemi;luding without limitation MinExs
non-solicitation obligations set forth in sectioHMNON-SOLICITATION), shall expire on 15 Augusi0P8 unlessinter alia, MinEx anc
Royal Gold agree in writing to extend the duratidrthe Letter of Intent

3. Royal Gold and MinEx now wish to amend the Letteintent by:
3.1 extending the expiry date of the Letter of Inten20 October 200¢




3.2 deleting the references to April 25, 2008 in thistfparagraph of section VII (SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITHfof the Letter of Intent ar
replacing them with October 20, 20(

3.2 deleting the reference to May %5 2008 in the second paragraph of section VII (SOHEE OF ACTIVITIES) of the Letter of Intent ar
replacing it with October 20, 200

3.4 deleting the reference to May t, 2008 in the second paragraph of section VII (SO”HEE OF ACTIVITIES) of the Letter of Intent ar
replacing it with October 20, 200

4. ltisrecorded that letters granting a rightirst refusal to Messina Platinum Mines Limited/(PML") and Western Platinum Limited
(“WPL") in respect of the Messina Royalty and therdalkop Royalty, respectively, were delivered bynE to MPML and WPL on 21
July 2008.

5. Save for the amendments specifically containedis letter and subject to the remaining primvis of this letter, the provisions of the
Letter of Intent shall remain unamended and offfuite and effect

6. Royal Gold requires MinE’'s consent to file the Letter of Intent with the téwl States Securities Exchange Commiss* SEC”) as part o
Royal Gold’s filing obligations under the Secumtiexchange Act of 1934 as amended. MinEx by itsatigre hereby consents to Royal
Gold filing the Letter of Intent with the SE!

7. This letter may be signed in any number of couratesp all of which taken together shall constitoie and the same instrument. Any p
may enter into this letter by signing any such ¢etpart.

8. Please confirm your agreement with the contentadfdry countersigning this letter in the space jated below.

Yours faithfully

Royal Gold, Inc.




AGREED AND ACCEPTED ON BEHALF ON MINEX PROJECTS (PRRIETARY) LIMITED, BY THE FOLLOWING AUTHORIZED
INDIVIDUAL

/sl Mike Scott

By:  Mike Scott
Title: Presiden
Entity: MinEx Projects
Date: 15 August 200¢




EXHIBIT 21.1

Royal Gold, Inc. and Its Subsidiaries
Denver Mining Finance Compafty
Royal Trading Compantp

Royal Gold Chile Limitad&

Battle Mountain Gold (Canad&)
Calgom Mining, Inc® @

Mono County Mining Compan{
Royal Camp Bird, Inc®

Royal Crescent Valley, In€)
Royal Kanaka Creek Corporatith
Environmental Strategies, In@
Greek American Exploration Lté®
Sofia Minerals Ltd®)

Royal Gold Pty, Ltd.

RG Russia, Indb)

High Desert Mineral Resources, I1t.

@®  Owned 100% by Royal Gold, In

@  Owned 100% by Denver Mining Finance Comp.
3  Owned 50% by Royal Gold, In

@ Owns a 100% interest in the Goldstripe Proj

®)  Owned 25% by Royal Gold, In



EXHIBIT 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtke Registration Statements on Form S-3 (N8-BB1490), Form S-4 (No. 333-111590)
and on Form S-8 (No. 33822877) of Royal Gold, Inc. of our report dated Asy19, 2008, relating to the consolidated findrst@ements ar
the effectiveness of internal control over finahogporting, which appears in this Form 10-K.

/s/PricewaterhouseCoopers LI
PricewaterhouseCoopers LI
Denver, Coloradi

August 19, 200




EXHIBIT 31.1
I, Tony Jensen, certify that:
(1) I have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Royal Gold, Inc.

(2) Based on my knowledge, this annual report doesaain any untrue statement of a material factnoit to state a material fact necess
to make the statements made, in light of the cistanmces under which such statements were madmisletading with respect to the per
covered by this annual repao

(3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statementso#imet financial information included in this anhugport fairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe period presented in this annual re|

(4) The registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disgte controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iateinal control over financial reporting (as defihin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15+a5(f), for the registrant and hax

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedureaused such disclosure controls and proceduttes designed under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly durithg tperiod in which this annual report is being preg;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réjpgr, or caused such internal control over finah@gaorting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggatite reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneeadyepted accounting principle

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and preséntb@s report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees) as of the end of the period covered by tiial report based on such
evaluation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this annual report any change irrdggstrant’s internal control over financial refiog that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrg that has materially affected
is reasonably likely to materially affect, the tgan’s internal control over financial reporting; &

(5) The registrant’s other certifying officer and I Meadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluafiorieynal controls over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theiteemmmittee of the registrant’s board of directfws persons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contralerdinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmhcial information; ant

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveanagement or other employees who have a signifioée in the registrarg’interna
controls over financial reportin

August 19, 2008

/s/Tony Jense

Tony Jense!
President and Chief Executive Offic




EXHIBIT 31.2
I, Stefan Wenger, certify that:
(1) I have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Royal Gold, Inc.

(2) Based on my knowledge, this annual report doesatin any untrue statement of a material factomoits to state a material fe
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementswade, not misleading with respec
the period covered by this annual rep

(3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statementso#imet financial information included in this anhugport fairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe period presented in this annual re|

(4) The registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disgte controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iateinal control over financial reporting (as defihin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15+a5(f), for the registrant and hax

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedureaused such disclosure controls and proceduttes designed under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly durithg tperiod in which this annual report is being preg;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réjpgr, or caused such internal control over finah@gaorting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggatite reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneeadyepted accounting principle

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and presentecbnclusions about the effectiven
of the disclosure controls and procedures, aseétid of the period covered by this annual repaset on such evaluation; a

(d) Disclosed in this annual report any change inrélggstrant’s internal controls over financial repmy that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuyabrig that has materially affected
is reasonably likely to materially affect, the &tgan’s internal control over financial reporting; &

(5) The registrar's other certifying officer and I, have disclosedsé&d on our most recent evaluation of internalrotsybver financia
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmnmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal contoeksr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; ant

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveammagement or other employees who have a significéain the registra’s interna
controls over financial reportin

August 19, 2008

/sIStefan Wenge

Stefan Wenge
Chief Financial Office!




EXHIBIT 32.1

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10fiRayal Gold, Inc. (the “Company”), for the yeardémg June 30, 2008, as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the dat@h@he “Report”), I, Tony Jensen, President anie€CExecutive Officer of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, ap#etbpursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxteyf 2002 that, to my knowledge:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934; anc

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly prets, in all material respects, the financial cbodiand result of operations of the
Company.

August 19, 2008

/s/Tony Jense

Tony Jense!
President and Chief Executive Offic




EXHIBIT 32.2

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10fiRayal Gold, Inc. (the “Company”), for the yeardémg June 30, 2008, as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the dat@h@he “Report”), I, Stefan Wenger, Chief Finaricficer of the Company, certify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adoptedigntso Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 622bat, to my knowledge:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934; anc

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly prets, in all material respects, the financial cbodiand result of operations of the
Company.

August 19, 2008

/s/Stefan Wenge

Stefan Wenge
Chief Financial Office!




